
  
TTaazzeewweellll CCoouunnttyy  BBooaarrdd     
Wednesday, July 26, 2023  
David Zimmerman, Chairman of the Board 
Michael Harris, Vice-Chairman of the Board 

 
COUNTY BOARD AGENDA            2 
     
MINUTES             4 
 
 
HEALTH SERVICES HS-23-23 SOFTWARE AGREEMENT WITH HOUNDTOWNE, INC., FOR    9 

ANIMAL CONTROL PURPOSES 
 

LAND USE LU-23-15 CASE NO. 23-42-S – TAZ CO IL S1, LLC, SPECIAL USE, DELAVAN TWP. 28 
 
LAND USE  LU-23-16 CASE NO. 23-43-Z – CYNTHIA WALLEN, REZONING, GROVELAND TWP. 37 
 
LAND USE  LU-23-17 CASE NO. 23-44-Z – DCC PROPANE/MORTON TWP., REZONING,   47 

MORTON TWP. 
 
PROPERTY  P-23-09 QUOTES FOR A STORAGE SHED AT THE TAZEWELL COUNTY    55 

ANIMAL CONTROL BUILDING 
 

PROPERTY  P-23-10 QUOTE FOR WALK-IN FREEZER UNIT REPLACEMENT AT THE JUSTICE  67 
     CENTER 

 
FINANCE   F-23-28 BUDGET TRANSFER FOR THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT   72 
FINANCE   F-23-29 RECOGNITION OF AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT EXPENSES   74  
FINANCE   F-23-30 BUDGET TRANSFER FOR SUPERVISOR OF ASSESSMENT, GIS DIVISION 78 
FINANCE   F-23-31 ILLINOIS DCEO UNIFORM APPLICATION FOR STATE GRANT ASSISTANCE 80 
     UPON APPROVAL OF IN-PLACE   
FINANCE  F-23-32 PURCHASE OF A 2023 FORD EDGE FOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  82 
     UPON APPROVAL OF IN-PLACE 
EXECUTIVE  E-23-106 TAZEWELL COUNTY TITLE VI PROGRAM     125 
EXECUTIVE  E-23-110 3RD QUARTER 2023 PAYMENT TO GREATER PEORIA ECONOMIC   140 

DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL  
 

EXECUTIVE  E-23-111 PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY ORDINANCE    142 
EXECUTIVE  E-23-112 AMENDMENTS TO THE PURCHASING POLICIES    207 
EXECUTIVE    APPOINTMENTS AND REAPPOINTMENTS      211 
AUGUST 2023 CALENDAR OF MEETINGS           215 
         

1



  TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD 
James Carius Community Room 

Wednesday, July 26, 2023 - 6:00 p.m. 
 

David Zimmerman - Chairman of the Board 
Michael Harris - Vice Chairman of the Board 

 
A. Roll Call 

B. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Communications from members of the public and county employees  

D. Communications from elected and appointed county officials   

E. Approve the minutes of the June 28, 2023 County Board Proceedings   

F. In-Place Finance Committee Meeting 

G. Consent Agenda:  

Health Services 

HS-23-23 1. Approve software agreement with Houndtowne, Inc., for Animal Control purposes 
 

Land Use: 

 LU-23-15 2. Approve Case No. 23-42-S – Taz Co IL S1, LLC, Special Use, Delavan Twp. 

 LU-23-16 3. Approve Case No. 23-43-Z – Cynthia Wallen, Rezoning, Groveland Twp. 

 LU-23-17 4. Approve Case No. 23-44-Z – DCC Propane/Morton Twp., Rezoning, Morton Twp. 

  Property 

 P-23-09 5. Approve quotes for a storage shed at the Tazewell County Animal Control building 

 P-23-10 6. Approve quotes for walk-in freezer unit replacement at the Justice Center 

Finance 

F-23-28 7. Approve budget transfer for the Community Development. 

F-23- 29 8. Approve recognition of American Rescue Plan Act expenses 

F-23-30 9. Approve budget transfer for Supervisor of Assessment, GIS Division 

 
2



F-23-31 10. Approve the Illinois DCEO Uniform Application for State Grant Assistance 
          Upon approval of In-Place meeting 
 

F-23-32 11. Approve the purchase of a 2023 Ford Edge for Community Development   
   Upon approval of In-Place meeting 
 

Executive 

E-23-106 12. Approve Tazewell County Title VI Program 

E-23-110 13. Approve 3rd quarter 2023 payment to Greater Peoria Economic Development  
Council 
 

E-23-111 14. Approve Property Assessed Clean Energy Ordinance 
 
E-23-112 15. Approve amendments to the Purchasing Policies 

 
       Appointments and Reappointments 

  E-23-103 a. Appointment of Kimberly Sevearns to the Greater Creve Coeur Sanitary  
  District 
 

  E-23-105 b. Appointment of David Catton to the Emergency Telephone System Board 
 

  E-23-107 c. Appointment of Amy Grugan to the Tazewell County Board of Health 
 
  E-23-109 d. Appointment of Samuel Miller to the Zoning Board of Appeals 

 
I. Unfinished Business 

 
J. New Business 
 

           K. Review of approved bills 
 
L. Approve the August 2023 Calendar of Meetings 
 
M. Recess to August 30, 2023  

3



Chairman David Zimmerman    Vice Chairman, Michael Harris, Dist. 3      
Kim D. Joesting, Dist. 1       Jay Hall, Dist. 1 
Nancy Proehl, Dist. 1      Michael Deppert, Dist. 1 
Mark Goddard, Dist. 1          Sam Goddard, Dist. 1 
Kaden Nelms, Dist. 1       Vivian Hagamann, Dist. 2         
Nick Graff, Dist. 2            Maxwell Schneider, Dist. 2          
Greg Menold, Dist. 2            Roy Paget, Dist. 2         
Greg Sinn, Dist. 2              Randi Krehbiel, Dist. 2        
Sierra Smith, Dist. 3         John C. Ackerman         Russ Crawford, Dist. 3 
Dave Mingus, Dist. 3         County Clerk              William (Bill) Atkins, Dist. 3 
Tammy Rich-Stimson, Dist. 3      Greg Longfellow, Dist. 3 

TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD  
MEETING MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY JUNE 28, 2023 
6:00 PM 

James Carius Community Room, Tazewell Law & Justice Center, 
101 S. Capitol Street, Pekin, Illinois 61554 

 ROLL CALL BY COUNTY CLERK 

Attendance was taken by Roll Call and the following members of the board were 
present:  Chairman Zimmerman, Vice Chairman Michael Harris, Members Atkins, 
Crawford, Deppert, Mark Goddard, Sam Goddard, Graff, Hagaman, Hall, Joesting, 
Krehbiel, Menold, Mingus, Nelms, Proehl, Rich-Stimson, Schneider, Sinn, Smith - 20.  
Absent: Longfellow, Paget – 2. 

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Chairman Zimmerman led the invocation followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

COMMUNICATION FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND COUNTY EMPLOYEES 

Matthew Johnson, a concerned citizen, spoke on the proposed demolition of the Arcade 
and Tobin buildings.  He encouraged the Board to vote against such demolition. 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM ELECTED & APPOINTED COUNTY OFFICIALS 

No communication from elected and appointed county officials. 

APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE MAY 31, 2023, COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

Member Joesting moved to approve the minutes of the Board Meeting held on May 31, 
2023, as printed; seconded by Member Rich-Stimson.   Motion to approve the minutes 
as printed were approved by voice vote of 19 Yeas, 0 Nays. DRAFT

4



IN-PLACE PROPERTY COMMITTEE MEETING 

Meeting started at 6:06 PM and ended at 6:11 PM. 

IN-PLACE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 

Meeting started at 6:11 PM and ended at 6:20 PM. 

Executive Committee went into Closed Session at 6:11 PM and returned to Open 
Session at 6:18 PM. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Land Use:  Approve subdivision modification (waiver of road requirements), 
Michael Bonham, Groveland Township, RESOLUTION LU-23-13.    

2. Land Use:  Approve subdivision modification (waiver of road requirements), 
Cedar Lake Subdivision Section Two-Washington Township, RESOLUTION LU-
23-14.   

3. Transportation:  Approve Tri-County Regional Planning Agreement – BLR 
09110, RESOLUTION T-23-19.   

4. Property:  Approve bid for sidewalk removal and replacement, and a walkway 
in front of the Courthouse, RESOLUTION P-23-07.  Upon approval of In-Place 
meeting. 

5. Property:  Approve bid for abatement and demolition of Arcade/Monge Building 
and demolition of Tobin Building, RESOLUTION P-23-08.  Upon approval of In-
Place meeting. 

6.  Finance:  Approve pay increase for Election Judges, RESOLUTION F-23-24. 

7.  Finance:  Approve budget transfer for Veteran’s Assistance, RESOLUTION F-
23-26   

8.  Finance:  Approve annual purchase of network and email licensing, 
RESOLUTION F-23-27.  

9.  Executive:  Approve twin community resolution with Tazewell, Tennessee, 
RESOLUTION E-23-76. 

10. Executive:  Approve per diems and mileage reimbursement for Member Roy 
Paget, RESOLUTION E-23-93. DRAFT

5



11.  Executive:  Approve Site Owner Estoppel Certificate and Agreement 
RESOLUTION E-23-96. 

12.  Executive:  Approve bid for Heritage Lake Subdivision seal coat work, 
RESOLUTION E-23-97. 

13.  Executive:  Approve payment for contractual services for the Community 
Development Block Grant Revolving Loan Closeout – Accessibility 
Improvements, Grant # 18-248592 per contractual agreement with Knapp 
Concrete Contractors Inc., RESOLUTION E-23-98. 

14.  Executive:  Approve third change order for the Community Development 
Block Grant Revolving Loan Closeout – Sidewalks, Grant # 18-248952, 
RESOLUTION E-23-99. 

15.  Executive:  Approve payment for contractual services for the Community 
Development Block Grant Revolving Loan Closeout – Building, Grant # 18-248591 
per contractual agreement with Bishop Bros., RESOLUTION E-23-100. 

16.  Executive:  Approve purchase of 1800 Broadway Street, Pekin, the purchase 
of two neighboring lots, and a partial leaseback, RESOLUTION E-23-104.  Upon 
approval of In-Place meeting. 

17.  Executive:  Approve precinct boundaries and polling locations, RESOLUTION 
E-23-73.   Upon approval of In-Place meeting. 

Member Crawford moved to approve the Consent Agenda items as outlined in the 
agenda packet; seconded by Member Deppert.  The Consent Agenda was approved by 
voice vote of 19 Yeas; 0 Nays. 

The following items were removed from the Consent Agenda for further discussion: 

Item 3 Transportation:  Member Sinn questioned why the cost to PUATS has risen 
over the years.  Highway Department Director Dan Parr responded to Member Sinn’s 
question by stating that the cost had been consistent, but the higher cost of living has 
recently Affected the amount.  Member Crawford motioned to approve Tri-County 
Regional Planning Agreement – BLR 09110; seconded by Member Rich-Stimson.  
Motion passed by voice vote of 19 Yeas; 0 Nays  

Item 4 Property:  Member Rich-Stimson motioned to approve bid for sidewalk removal 
and replacement, and a walkway in front of the Courthouse; seconded by Member 
Harris. Motion passed by voice vote of 19 Yeas; 0 Nays. DRAFT

6



Item 5 Property:  Member Menold moved to remove the amendment from the Property 
Committee Meeting, which would remove $13,000 for the salvage of the Arcade 
Building facade; seconded by Member Graff.   Discussion took place regarding the 
proposed amendment.  Motion to remove $13,000 for the salvage of the Arcade 
Building façade failed by voice vote of 2 Yeas – Graff, Menold; 17 Nays.     

Motioned to approve bid for abatement and demolition of Arcade/Monge Building and 
demolition of Tobin Building as amended to include $13,000 for salvage of the Arcade 
Building façade passed by voice vote of 18 Yeas; 1 Nay – Crawford. 

Item 6 Finance:  Member Smith stated she would be abstaining from this vote since 
family members were election judges.  Member Smith motioned to approve increase for 
Election Judges; seconded by Member Atkins.  Motion passed by voice vote of 18 
Yeas; 0 Nays; 1 Abstention - Smith. 

Item 14 Executive:  Member Schneider motioned to amend the third change order for 
the Community Development Block Grant Revolving Loan Closeout – Sidewalks, Grant 
# 18-248952 to change amount from $3577 to $4474; seconded by Member Graff.  
Motion to amend passed by roll call vote of 19 Yeas; 0 Nays.  Motion to approve as 
amended passed by voice vote of 19 Yeas; 0 Nays. 

Item 16 Executive:  Member Schneider motioned to approve purchase of 1800 
Broadway Street, Pekin, the purchasing of two neighboring lots, and a partial leaseback; 
seconded by Member Graff.  Motion passed by voice vote of 19 Yeas; 0 Nays. 

Item 17 Executive:  Member Sam Goddard moved to approve Precinct boundaries and 
polling locations; seconded by Member Crawford.  Motion passed by voice vote of 19 
Yeas; 0 Nays. 

APPOINTMENTS/REAPPOINTMENTS 

E-23-94:  Member Sinn moved to Reappoint David Dingledine to the Tazewell County 
Board of Health; seconded by Member Atkins.  Resolution E-23-94 was approved by 
voice vote of 19 Yeas; 0 Nays. 

E-23-95:  Member Sinn moved to Reappoint Dr. Adam Sturdivant to the Tazewell 
County Board of Health; seconded by Member Atkins.  Resolution E-23-95 was 
approved by voice vote of 19 Yeas; 0 Nays.  

E-23-102:  Member Sinn moved to Appoint Valerie Fehr to the Zoning Board of 
Appeals; seconded by Member Atkins.  Resolution E-23-102 was approved by voice 
vote of 19 Yeas; 0 Nays. 

 

DRAFT

7



UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

Member Mingus thanked Facilities Director Mike Schone for his hard work and 
dedication on preparing bid documents for the County. 

Chairman Zimmerman stated per request of the local fire chiefs he will be issuing a burn 
ban for open burning in Tazewell County. 

NEW BUSINESS 

It was determined no new business for the board at this time. 

Review of approved bills. 

Board Members reviewed the approved bills as presented. 

APPROVE THE JULY 2023 CALENDAR 

Member Atkins moved to approve the July 2023 calendar; seconded by Member 
Deppert.  Motion to approve the July 2023 calendar was approved by voice vote of 19 
Yeas; 0 Nays. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business before the Board, Board Chairman Zimmerman 
announced the meeting was adjourned.  The Tazewell County Board Meeting adjourned 
at 6:32 PM.  The next scheduled County Board meeting will be July 26, 2023. 

 

DRAFT

8



9



Ordering Form +
Terms & Conditions

Prepared for:

Libby Aeschleman 
Tazewell County Animal Control 

10



Ordering Document

Houndtowne, Inc. (“Houndtowne”) and the shelter identified below (“Shelter”) hereby enter into this Ordering 

Document as of the date of full execution, as set forth below. This Ordering Document is governed by the terms and 

conditions available at: https://www.shelterluv.com/pdf/termsandconditions (the “Terms”, and collectively, with this 

Ordering Document, the “Agreement”). Capitalized terms not defined in this Order Form will have the meanings set 

forth in the Terms.

 
Terms with initial capital letters that are not defined in this Ordering Document are defined in the applicable Exhibit.  
In the event of a conflict, the terms of this Ordering Document control over the terms of the Exhibit.

Organization Information

Customer Name: Tazewell County Animal Control 

Street Address: 

City/State/Zip: 

Country:

Contact: Libby Aeschleman
Phone: +13099253370 
Email Address: laeschleman@tazewell-il.gov 

Payment Method
 
Credit Card

Retailer to pay all fees set forth below:

Item Description Fee Per Adoption

Houndtowne Service $0/adoption for first year if activate by June 30th.

$2.00 USD

Term:  The Initial Term of this Agreement begins on the Effective Date and continues until 12 months after the 

Launch Date (the “Initial Term”).  The Agreement will automatically renew for additional, successive one-month 

periods,(each a “Renewal Term” and collectively with the Initial Term, the “Term”), unless either party gives written 

notice to the other party of its intent not to renew within five (5) days of the end of any Renewal Term, or the 

Agreement is terminated in accordance with the Terms and Conditions.  

11



You will automatically be charged, on a monthly basis, in arrears, for the adoptions completed in the 
preceding month, based on the Fee per Adoption set forth above.  You acknowledge and agree that 
Houndtowne is authorized to charge the Payment Method above in this manner. 

You further acknowledge and agree that Houndtowne may change the payment terms at any time upon 

notice to Customer.

12



By signing below, you certify that you are an authorized representative of the Shelter and that Shelter agrees to be 

bound by this Agreement, including all Exhibits referenced in this Ordering Document. This Agreement may be 

executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and together shall constitute one instrument.  

This Agreement, together with all Exhibits referenced in this Order Document, constitutes the sole, final and entire 

agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes and replaces all prior or 

contemporaneous agreements between the parties regarding such subject matter. 

Houndtowne, Inc. Tazewell County Animal Control 

Name: Greg Lucas

Title: President

Name: Libby Aeschleman
 
Title: 

06-15-2023

13



Terms & Conditions

The communications between Customer and Houndtowne relating to the Service may use electronic 
means. For contractual purposes, Customer: (a) consents to receive communications from Houndtowne in 
an electronic form, whether via email or posting on the Service or other reasonable means; and (b) agrees 
that all terms and conditions, agreements, notices, disclosures, and other communications that Houndtowne 
provides to Customer electronically satisfy any legal requirement that such communications would satisfy if 
they were in a print-on-paper writing.

1. Definitions

1. “Confidential Information” means all written or oral information, disclosed by either Party to the other, related 

to the operations of either Party or a third party that has been identified as confidential or that by the nature 

of the information or the circumstances surrounding disclosure ought reasonably to be treated as 

confidential.

2. “Customer Data” means any content, information, photos, or other materials provided, imported or uploaded 

to the Service by Customer or Users or on Customer’s behalf.

3. “Documentation” means Houndtowne-provided standard user manuals and documentation for the Service.

4. “Order Form” means the form evidencing the initial subscription for the Service and any subsequent order 

forms submitted in written form and specifying, among other things, the number of licenses and other 

service contracted for, the applicable fees and other terms as agreed to between the Parties.

5. “Professional Services” means any implementation, set-up, integration, training, custom development or 

other professional services made available to Customer by Houndtowne pursuant to a statement of work 

hereto.

6.  “Service” means Houndtowne’s proprietary software application(s) regarding which a right to access is 

granted pursuant to these Terms.

7. “Users” means Customer’s employees, consultants and representatives who are authorized to utilize the 

Service and who are provided with access to the Service by virtue of a password or the equivalent thereof.

2. Access Grant and Restrictions.

1. Access Grant. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Agreement, Houndtowne grants Customer a non-
exclusive, non-transferable right to permit Users to access the features and functions of the Service ordered 
under an Order Form solely for Customer’s internal business purposes during the Term.

14



2. Limitations. Customer agrees that it and its Users will not: (a) permit any third party to access and/or use 
the Service, other than the Users; (b) rent, lease, loan, or sell access to the Service to any third party; (c) 
interfere with, disrupt, alter, translate, or modify the Service or any part thereof, or create an undue burden 
on the Service or the networks or services connected to the Service, including any external websites that 
are linked to via the Service; (d) reverse engineer, decompile, disassemble or otherwise attempt to obtain or 
perceive the source code from which any software component of the Service is compiled or interpreted, and 
Customer acknowledges that nothing in this Agreement will be construed to grant Customer any right to 
obtain or use such code; (e) access the Service in order to build or create a derivative, competitive or similar 
product or service or copy any ideas, features, functions or graphics of the Service; (f) use the Service to 
stalk, harm and/or harass another; or (g) access or use the Service in any manner that could damage, 
disable, overburden or impair any Houndtowne server or the networks connected to any Houndtowne 
server. Customer shall undertake reasonable efforts to make all Users aware of the provisions of this 
Section 2.2. Customer acknowledges and agrees that the Service will not be used, and are not licensed for 
use, in connection with any time-critical or mission-critical functions. Customer will be responsible for 
acquiring, installing and maintaining all connectivity equipment, hardware, software and other equipment as 
may be necessary for it and its Users to connect to, access, and use the Service.

3. Usernames and Passwords. Customer will provide to Houndtowne information and other assistance as 
necessary to enable Houndtowne to establish usernames for Users, and Customer will verify all User 
requests for account passwords. Customer will ensure that each username and password issued to a User 
will be used only by that User. Customer is responsible for maintaining the confidentiality of all Users’ 
usernames and passwords, and is solely responsible for all activities that occur under these usernames. 
Customer will notify Houndtowne promptly of any actual or suspected unauthorized use of Customer’s 
account, usernames or passwords, or any other breach or suspected breach of the Agreement. 

Houndtowne reserves the right to terminate any username and password, which Houndtowne reasonably 
determines may have been used by an unauthorized third party or for an unlawful purpose. Any act or 
omission by a User which, if undertaken by Customer, would constitute a breach of the Agreement, will be 
deemed a breach of this Agreement by Customer.

4. IP Ownership. The Service and any of the Houndtowne’s proprietary technology, including software, 
hardware, products, processes, algorithms, user interfaces, know-how, technologies, designs and other 
tangible or intangible technical material or information made available to Customer by Houndtowne in 
providing the Service and, if applicable, Professional Services, as well as any intellectual property rights 
therein (the “Houndtowne Technology”) is the exclusive property of Houndtowne or its suppliers. Except as 
expressly set forth herein, no express or implied license or right of any kind is granted to Customer 
regarding the Service or the Houndtowne Technology, or any part thereof, including any right to obtain 
possession of any source code, data or other technical material relating to the Houndtowne Technology. All 
rights not expressly granted to Customer are reserved to Houndtowne. 

Ownership of all work product, developments, inventions, technology or materials provided by Houndtowne 
under this Agreement will be solely owned by Houndtowne. Houndtowne, in its sole discretion, may utilize all 
comments and suggestions, whether written or oral, furnished by Customer or Users to Houndtowne in 

15



connection with the Service (all such comments and suggestions, collectively, “Feedback”). Customer 
hereby grants Houndtowne a worldwide, non-exclusive, irrevocable, perpetual, royalty-free right and license 
to incorporate the Feedback into Houndtowne products and services.

5. Modifications. Houndtowne may change, suspend or discontinue any aspect of the Service at any time 
without notice or liability to Customer. Houndtowne may also impose limits on certain features and services 
or restrict Customer’s access to part of the Service without liability. Houndtowne may also change the Terms 
from time to time at its sole discretion, and if Houndtowne makes any substantial changes, it will notify 
Customer by sending an email to the last email address Customer provided. These changes will be effective 
thirty (30) days following Houndtowne’s dispatch of an email notice to Customer. Houndtowne may require 
Customer to provide consent to the updated Terms in a specified manner before further use of the Service is 
permitted. Otherwise, Customer’s continued use of the Service constitutes Customer’s acceptance of the 
changes.

6. Open Source Software. The Service may include certain software licensed under “open source” or “free 
software” licenses and nothing in this Agreement limits Customer’s rights under, or grants Customer rights 
that supersede, the terms and conditions of any applicable license for such software.

7. Professional Services. Houndtowne may, in its sole discretion, offer Professional Services to Customer 
related to the Service. Until the Customer has ordered such Professional Services pursuant to a statement 
of work or Order Form, Houndtowne will have no obligation to provide Professional Services to Customer. 
Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Houndtowne shall use commercially 
reasonable efforts to perform such Professional Services in a professional manner in accordance with 
industry standards. Houndtowne’s ability to successfully perform hereunder is dependent upon Customer’s 
provision of timely information, access to resources, and participation. 

3. Customer Data.

1. Usage of Customer Data. In connection with the Service, Houndtowne may collect and/or receive 
Customer Data. As between the Parties, Customer owns the Customer Data. Customer acknowledges that 
Houndtowne may use the Customer Data, and Customer hereby licenses Houndtowne to use the Customer 
Data to provide and improve the Services. At any point during the Term, Customer may export and 
download a copy of the Customer Data through the Service, as described in the Documentation.

2. Customer Commitment. Customer will procure all rights and privileges to obtain and transfer data to 
Houndtowne under the terms of this Agreement including the Customer Data. The provision of such data 
from Customer to Houndtowne shall be in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations, including all 
privacy laws and regulations. Customer hereby represents and warrants that it owns or otherwise has 
sufficient right to grant Houndtowne access to and use of the Customer Data in accordance with the terms 
of this Agreement. Customer shall be responsible for and assumes the risk, responsibility and expense of 
any problems resulting from, the accuracy, quality, integrity, legality, reliability, and appropriateness of all 

16



such Customer Data.

3. Data Loss. During the Term, Houndtowne will use commercially reasonable efforts to back up and protect 
the Customer Data. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Houndtowne recommends that Customer download 
backup copies of Customer Data from on the Service on a regular basis. Customer agrees that Houndtowne 
may remove or modify any Customer Data which it deems to violate this Agreement. In the event of a loss of 
Customer Data caused by Houndtowne’s negligence or willful misconduct, Houndtowne will use 
commercially reasonable efforts to recover the Customer Data within ninety-six (96) hours of notification of 
loss. If Houndtowne performs recovery services for a loss of Customer Data not caused by Houndtowne, 
Customer agrees to pay Houndtowne’s then-current time and materials rate to recover the Customer Data.  

The foregoing constitutes Customer’s sole and exclusive remedy for any loss of Customer Data.

4. Access to Customer Data. In the event Customer’s access to the Service is terminated (other than for 
Customer’s breach), Houndtowne will continue to make available to Customer a file of the Customer Data 
for thirty (30) days after such termination. Customer agrees and acknowledges that Houndtowne has no 
obligation to retain the Customer Data, and may delete such Customer Data, at any time on or after the 
thirty-first (31st) day following termination. Houndtowne reserves the right to withhold, remove and/or 
discard Customer Data, without notice, for any breach of this Agreement, including Customer’s non-payment 
or violation of any applicable law. Upon termination for cause, Customer’s right to access or use Customer 
Data shall immediately cease, and Houndtowne will have no obligation to maintain or provide any Customer 
Data. 

4. Confidentiality.

1. Confidentiality. Each Party agrees to: (a) use the Confidential Information of the other Party only as 
permitted herein; and (b) restrict access to the Confidential Information to such of its personnel, agents, 
and/or consultants, if any, who have a need to have access and who have been advised of and have agreed 
in writing or are otherwise bound to treat such information in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
The foregoing provision will not apply to Confidential Information that (i) is publicly available or in the public 
domain at the time disclosed; (ii) is or becomes publicly available or enters the public domain through no 
fault of the recipient; (iii) is rightfully communicated to the recipient by persons not bound by confidentiality 
obligations with respect thereto; (iv) is already in the recipient’s possession free of any confidentiality 
obligations with respect thereto at the time of disclosure; (v) is independently developed by the recipient; or 
(vi) is approved for release or disclosure by the disclosing Party without restriction.

2. Exceptions. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Party may disclose Confidential Information to the limited 
extent required (a) in order to comply with the order of a court or other governmental body, or as otherwise 
necessary to comply with applicable law, provided that the Party making the disclosure pursuant to the order 
will first have given written notice to the other Party and made a reasonable effort to obtain a protective 

17



order; or (b) to establish a Party’s rights under this Agreement, including to make such court filings as it may 
be required to do.

5. Payment.

1. Fees. Customer shall pay all fees or charges set forth on the Order Form. Houndtowne has the right to 
increase such fees or charges at any time upon notice to Customer. Unless otherwise set forth therein, all 
payments are due within thirty (30) days of the date of the invoice sent by Houndtowne. 

All payment obligations are non-cancelable and all amounts paid are nonrefundable.

2. Billing. You agree to promptly notify Houndtowne of any changes to the Payment Method you provided 

during the Term. Houndtowne shall be entitled to withhold performance and discontinue all services until all 

amounts due are paid in full. Houndtowne’s fees are exclusive of all taxes, levies or duties imposed by 

taxing authorities, and Customer shall be responsible for payment of all such taxes, levies, or duties, 

excluding only United States taxes based solely on Houndtowne’s income. Customer agrees to provide 

Houndtowne with complete and accurate billing and contact information. Customer will update this 

information within thirty (30) days.

6. Limited Warranty and Disclaimer.

1. Warranty. Houndtowne warrants that it will provide the Service and any Professional Services in a manner 
consistent with general industry standards reasonably applicable to the provision thereof and that the 
Service will materially conform to Houndtowne’s then current Documentation for the Service under normal 
use and circumstances. If Customer notifies Houndtowne of a breach, Houndtowne will reperform the 
nonconforming portion of the Service or Professional Services. The foregoing constitutes Customer’s sole 
and exclusive remedy for any breach of warranty.

2. Disclaimer. THE LIMITED WARRANTY SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT IS MADE FOR CUSTOMER’S 
BENEFIT ONLY. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED IN THIS SECTION AND TO THE MAXIMUM 
EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, THE SERVICE AND ALL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES ARE 
PROVIDED “AS IS,” AND HOUNDTOWNE MAKES NO (AND HEREBY DISCLAIMS ALL) WARRANTIES, 
REPRESENTATIONS, OR CONDITIONS, WHETHER WRITTEN, ORAL, EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR 
STATUTORY, INCLUDING ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, TITLE, 
NONINFRINGEMENT, OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, WITH RESPECT TO THE USE, 
MISUSE, OR INABILITY TO USE THE SERVICE (IN WHOLE OR IN PART) OR ANY OTHER PRODUCTS 
OR SERVICES PROVIDED TO CUSTOMER BY HOUNDTOWNE. HOUNDTOWNE DOES NOT WARRANT 
THAT ALL ERRORS CAN BE CORRECTED, OR THAT OPERATION OF THE SERVICE SHALL BE 

18



UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR-FREE.

3. Internet Delays. THE SERVICE MAY BE SUBJECT TO LIMITATIONS, DELAYS, AND OTHER PROBLEMS 
INHERENT IN THE USE OF THE INTERNET AND ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS. HOUNDTOWNE IS 
NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DELAYS, DELIVERY FAILURES OR OTHER DAMAGES RESULTING 
FROM SUCH PROBLEMS OR ANY OTHER FORCE MAJEURE EVENT. HOUNDTOWNE DOES NOT 
WARRANT THAT THE SERVICE WILL ALWAYS BE AVAILABLE. 

19



7. Limitation of Liability.

1. Types of Damages. TO THE EXTENT LEGALLY PERMITTED UNDER APPLICABLE LAW, IN NO EVENT 
SHALL HOUNDTOWNE, OR ITS SUPPLIERS, BE LIABLE TO CUSTOMER FOR ANY SPECIAL, 
INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, INCLUDING DAMAGES OR COSTS DUE TO 
LOSS OF PROFITS, DATA, USE OR GOODWILL, PERSONAL OR PROPERTY DAMAGE RESULTING 
FROM OR IN CONNECTION WITH HOUNDTOWNE’S PERFORMANCE HEREUNDER OR THE USE, 
MISUSE, OR INABILITY TO USE THE SERVICE OR OTHER PRODUCTS OR SERVICES HEREUNDER, 
REGARDLESS OF THE CAUSE OF ACTION OR THE THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN TORT, 
CONTRACT, OR OTHERWISE, EVEN IF HOUNDTOWNE HAS BEEN NOTIFIED OF THE LIKELIHOOD 
OF SUCH DAMAGES. 

IN NO EVENT SHALL HOUNDTOWNE BE LIABLE FOR PROCUREMENT COSTS OF SUBSTITUTE 
PRODUCTS OR SERVICES.

2. Amount of Damages. THE MAXIMUM LIABILITY OF HOUNDTOWNE ARISING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY 
CONNECTED TO THIS AGREEMENT SHALL NOT EXCEED THE GREATER OF: (A) THE FEES PAID BY 
CUSTOMER TO HOUNDTOWNE UNDER THE APPLICABLE ORDER FORM DURING THE TWELVE (12) 
MONTHS IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING THE CLAIM; AND (B) ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100.00). THE 
EXISTENCE OF ONE OR MORE CLAIMS UNDER THE AGREEMENT WILL NOT INCREASE 
HOUNDTOWNE’S LIABILITY. IN NO EVENT SHALL HOUNDTOWNE’S SUPPLIERS HAVE ANY LIABILITY 
ARISING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY CONNECTED TO THIS AGREEMENT.

3. Additional Rights. Certain states and/or jurisdictions do not allow the exclusion of implied warranties or 
limitation of liability for incidental, consequential or certain other types of damages, so the exclusions set 
forth above may not apply to Customer.

4. Basis of the Bargain. The Parties acknowledge that the prices have been set and this Agreement entered 
into in reliance upon these limitations of liability and that all such limitations form an essential basis of the 
bargain between the Parties.

8. Termination.

1. Term. This Agreement will commence on the Effective Date set forth on the initial Order Form and continue 
as long as an Order Form remains in effect, unless earlier terminated by either Customer or Houndtowne as 
set forth herein (the “Term”).

2. Termination for Breach. Either Party may terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice in the 
event that the other Party materially breaches the Agreement and thereafter has failed to cure any other 
material breach (or to commence diligent efforts to cure such breach that are reasonably acceptable to the 

20



terminating Party) within thirty (30) days after receiving written notice thereof.

3. Effect of Termination. Termination of Customer’s account includes: (a) removal of access to all offerings 

within the Service; (b) deletion of Customer’s password and all related information; and (c) barring of further 

use of the Service. Upon expiration or termination, Customer shall promptly discontinue use of the Service. 

However, the sections titled IP Ownership, Payment, Customer Data, Limited Warranty and Disclaimer, 

Limitation of Liability, Effect of Termination and Miscellaneous will survive any termination of the Agreement.

9. Miscellaneous.

1. Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement and any action related thereto will be governed and 
interpreted by and under the laws of the State of California, without giving effect to any conflicts of laws 
principles that require the application of the law of a different jurisdiction. Customer hereby expressly 
consents to the personal jurisdiction and venue in the state and federal courts for the county in San Mateo 
County, California. The United Nations Convention on Contracts for the International Sale of Goods does not 
apply to this Agreement.

2. Publicity. Houndtowne may publicly refer to Customer, including on Houndtowne’s website and in sales 
presentations, as a Houndtowne customer and may use Customer’s logo for such purposes. Similarly, 
Customer may publicly refer to itself as a customer of Houndtowne. Each Party hereby grants the other a 
limited, worldwide license to use the other’s logo in conformance with such Party’s trademark usage 
guidelines and solely for the purposes of fulfilling its obligations hereunder and as set forth in this Section 
9.2. Houndtowne may also issue a press release announcing the relationship with Customer.

3. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is, for any reason, held to be invalid or unenforceable, the 
other provisions of this Agreement will remain enforceable and the invalid or unenforceable provision will be 
deemed modified so that it is valid and enforceable to the maximum extent permitted by law. Without limiting 
the generality of the foregoing, Customer agrees that the section titled Limitation of Liability will remain in 
effect notwithstanding the unenforceability of any provision in the section titled Limited Warranty and 
Disclaimer.

4. Waiver. Any waiver or failure to enforce any provision of this Agreement on one occasion will not be deemed 
a waiver of any other provision or of such provision on any other occasion.

5. Remedies. The Parties acknowledge that any actual or threatened breach of the section titled Access Grant 
and Restrictions will constitute immediate, irreparable harm to the non-breaching Party for which monetary 
damages would be an inadequate remedy, and that injunctive relief is an appropriate remedy for such 
breach. If any legal action is brought to enforce this Agreement, the prevailing Party will be entitled to 
receive its attorneys’ fees, court costs, and other collection expenses, in addition to any other relief it may 
receive.

21



6. No Assignment. Neither Party shall assign, subcontract, delegate, or otherwise transfer this Agreement, or 
its rights and obligations herein, without obtaining the prior written consent of the other Party, and any 
attempted assignment, subcontract, delegation, or transfer in violation of the foregoing will be null and void; 
provided, however, that either Party may assign this Agreement in connection with a merger, acquisition, 
reorganization or sale of all or substantially all of its assets, or other operation of law, without any consent of 
the other Party. This Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties and their respective successors and 
permitted assigns.

7. Force Majeure. Any delay in the performance of any duties or obligations of either Party (except the 
payment of money owed) will not be considered a breach of this Agreement if such delay is caused by a 
labor dispute, shortage of materials, fire, earthquake, flood, or any other event beyond the control of such 
Party, provided that such Party uses reasonable efforts, under the circumstances, to notify the other Party of 
the cause of such delay and to resume performance as soon as possible.

8. Independent Contractors. Customer’s relationship to Houndtowne is that of an independent contractor, 
and neither Party is an agent or partner of the other. Customer will not have, and will not represent to any 
third party that it has, any authority to act on behalf of Houndtowne.

9. Notices. Customer is responsible for updating Customer’s data to provide Houndtowne with Customer’s 
most current email address. In the event that the last email address Customer have provided to 
Houndtowne is not valid, or for any reason is not capable of delivering to Customer any notices required by 
this Agreement, Houndtowne’s dispatch of the email containing such notice will nonetheless constitute 
effective notice of the changes described on the notice. Any notice provided to Houndtowne pursuant to this 
Agreement should be sent to Houndtowne at the address on the applicable Order Form, attention Chief 
Executive Officer.

10. Entire Agreement. This Agreement are the final, complete and exclusive agreement of the Parties with 
respect to the subject matters hereof and supersede and merge all prior discussions between the Parties 
with respect to such subject matters. Unless otherwise specifically stated: (i) the word “including” shall not 
be construed as terms of limitation, and shall mean “including without limitation” and (ii) any reference to 
days shall mean calendar days. 

Houndtowne, Inc Tazewell County Animal Control 

Name: Greg Lucas

Title: President

Name: Libby Aeschleman 

Title: 

22



06 / 15 / 2023

23



Addendum to Houndtowne Service Agreement
This Addendum (this “Addendum”) is entered into by and between Houndtowne, Inc. having its principal place of 

business at 736 College Avenue, Menlo Park, CA 94025 (“Houndtowne”) and the customer identified below 

(“Customer”) (each of Houndtowne and Customer, a “Party” and collectively, the “Parties”). This Addendum will 

become effective upon its execution by authorized representatives of both Parties (the “Effective Date”). All 

capitalized terms used in this Addendum and not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective meaning set 

forth in the Agreement.

WHEREAS, Houndtowne and Customer are Parties to the Houndtowne Service Agreement, as modified or 
amended (the “Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, as further described in this Addendum, Houndtowne and Customer desire to supplement the 
Agreement to include additional terms as set forth herein.

NOW THEREFORE, Houndtowne and Customer agree as follows:

1. Definitions

a. “Adoption” means each transaction pursuant to which an end customer of Customer adopts (1) pet from the 

Customer. If an end customer adopts three (3) pets from the Customer simultaneously, each adoption is 

calculated as a separate transaction such that three (3) “Adoptions” have occurred.

b. “CCPA” means the California Consumer Privacy Act of 2018 and any binding regulations promulgated 
thereunder. 

c. “Personal Information” means any “personal information” (as such term is defined in the CCPA) contained 
within the Customer Data that Houndtowne is processing in connection with performing the Service under 
the Agreement. 

d. For purposes of this Addendum, the terms “business,” “commercial purpose,” “processing,” “sale,” “sell,” 
“service provider,” and “third party” shall have the respective meanings given thereto in the CCPA. 

Section 2

With respect to any Personal Information, Customer is a business and Houndtowne is a service provider. Customer 
represents and warrants that it shall comply with the obligations applicable to it as a business under the CCPA 
including as it relates to its use of the Service, processing of Personal Information, any instructions of Customer to 
Houndtowne relating to the processing of Personal Information, and any sale of Personal Information to another 
business or any third party. Customer agrees to hold harmless Houndtowne from any alleged violation of 
Customer’s obligations under the CCPA.

24



Section 3

Houndtowne shall not (a) sell any Personal Information; (b) retain, use or disclose any Personal Information for any 

purpose other than for the specific purpose of providing the Service; or (c) retain, use or disclose the Personal 

Information outside of the direct business relationship between Houndtowne and Customer. Houndtowne hereby 

certifies that it understands its obligations under this Section 3 and will comply with them.

Section 4

The Parties acknowledge that Houndtowne’s retention, use and disclosure of Personal Information authorized by 

Customer’s instructions documented in the Agreement are integral to Houndtowne’s provision of the Service and 

the business relationship between the Parties.

Section 5

During the Term, Customer will not enter into any agreement with a third party that competes with or otherwise 

conflicts with a provider of the products, services and offerings made available through the “Shelterpay” 

functionality of the Service. Customer shall not engage or otherwise use any competing providers, suppliers, or 

vendors to offer or provide the same or similar products, services, or offerings made available through “Shelterpay”.

Section 6

Customer agrees that it will endeavor to ensure that all Adoptions will be processed and concluded through the 

“Shelterpay” functionality of the Service, such that the adopter directly views and completes the transaction 

(“Eligible Transaction”). Any Adoption where the Customer (or its employees or independent contractors) completes 

the transaction on the adopter’s behalf is not considered an “Eligible Transaction”. Notwithstanding any fees set 

forth on the Order Form, Customer acknowledges and agrees that, except as otherwise agreed to in writing in 

advance by Customer and Houndtowne, in the event fewer than ninety-four percent (94%) of Customer’s Adoptions 

are processed as Eligible Transactions in any monthly period (“Minimum Threshold”), Houndtowne has the right to 

charge fees in an amount equal to eighteen dollars ($18) for each Adoption that falls below the Minimum Threshold 

in the applicable month. For illustrative purposes only, if Customer is below the Minimum Threshold in a given 

month by two (2) Adoptions, Houndtowne shall have the right to charge Customer, and Customer will pay, an 

additional thirty-six dollars ($36) for such month (i.e., eighteen dollars ($18) multiplied by two (2) Adoptions). 

Section 7

25



Houndtowne shall have the right to suspend access to and/or terminate the Agreement upon sixty (60) days’ prior 

written notice in the event Houndtowne determines, in its sole discretion, that Customer or any of its end customers, 

are accessing and/or using the Service in a manner that threatens the security or integrity of the Service or 

otherwise interferes with or disrupts the integrity or performance of the Service.

Section 8

This Addendum supplements and is made part of the Agreement.  The terms of the Agreement remain in full force 

and effect.  In the event of any conflict between this Addendum and the Agreement, this Addendum shall control. 

The Parties have caused their duly authorized representatives to execute this Addendum as of the Effective Date.

Houndtowne, Inc                Tazewell County Animal Control                

Name: Greg Lucas              Name: Libby Aeschleman 

Title: President                Title:  

              

                 

06-15-2023

26



 
TAZEWELL COUNTY LAND USE COMMITTEE 

SUMMARY OF COMMITTEE AGENDA 
July 11, 2023 Meeting 

TO BE PRESENTED TO THE TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD ON 
July 26, 2023 

 
 
 
LU-23-15 
CASE NO. 23-42-S The petition of Tazewell County, IL S1, LLC d/b/a SolAmerica, LLC for a Special 

Use to allow the construction of a 2 Mega Watt Commercial Solar Farm (originally 
approved under Case No. 18-18-S on June 5, 2018) in an A-1 Agriculture 
Preservation District. 

 
 ZBA recommended approval.  Land Use concurred. 
 
LU-23-16 
CASE NO. 23-43-Z The petition of Cynthia Wallen for a Map Amendment to the Official Groveland 

Township Zoning Map of Tazewell County to change the zoning classification of 
property from an A-1 Agriculture Preservation District to a R-R Rural Residential 
District. 

 
   ZBA recommended approval.  Land Use concurred. 
 
LU-23-17 
CASE NO. 23-44-Z The petition of DCC Propane, LLC d/b/a Hicks Gas, LLC and Morton Township 

Road District for a Map Amendment to the Official Morton Township Zoning Maps 
of Tazewell County to change the zoning classification of property from a A-1 
Agriculture Preservation District to an I-1 Light Industrial District. 

 
   ZBA recommended approval.  Land Use concurred. 
 
 

27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



Garage: 12' x 32'
Order ID: Customer Name:                 G062319095                                mike schone
Quote Date: Expiration Date:                       6/29/2023                              7/13/2023

1195 Cruger Road

Eureka, IL 61530 USA

Tel 800.467.4614

Fax 309.512.8249

www.countrysidebarns.com

salesteam@countrysidebarns.com

 

Page 1 of 2

ORDER INFORMATION

Style: 

Size: 

Siding: 

Wall Color: 

Trim Color: 

Roof: 

Sidewall Height: 

Garage

12' x 32'

Metal

Light Stone

Light Stone

Metal (Forest Green)

7' 10"

PRICING CUSTOMER INFORMATION

Name:

Email:

mike schone

mschone@tazewell-il.com

DELIVERY INFORMATION

Pekin, IL 61554

Base Price

Metal Roof Upgrade

Upgrade to Tall Sidewalls

3' Exterior 6-panel Door (1 x $380)

3' Exterior 9-lite Door Credit (1 x $435)

9' x 7' Roll Up Garage Door (1 x $800)

2' x 3' Non-Insulated Window Credit (2 x $85)

29" Aluminum Transom Window, White (2 x $95)

Heavy Duty Floor

4'x8' Wood Ramp - for garage doors (1 x $252)

Auger Anchors Installed (4 x $54)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Subtotal

Tax (8.25%)

Delivery Fee (30.00 Miles)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Total

 $11,611.00

 $0

 included

 $380.00

 -$435.00

 included

 -$170.00

 $190.00

 included

 $252.00

 $216.00

 $12,044.00

 $993.63

 Free Delivery

 $13,037.63

It is the customer's responsibility to obtain any/all

necessary permits and follow zoning requirements.

Countryside Barns is not responsible for any zoning or

permitting requirements.

Customer Signature                                        Date

56



Garage: 12' x 32'
Order ID: Customer Name:                 G062319095                                mike schone
Quote Date: Expiration Date:                       6/29/2023                              7/13/2023

1195 Cruger Road

Eureka, IL 61530 USA

Tel 800.467.4614

Fax 309.512.8249

www.countrysidebarns.com

salesteam@countrysidebarns.com

 

Page 2 of 2

FRONT

LEFT

BACK

RIGHT

The preview images are computer generated. Minor discrepancies may occur between actual product and what appears on the screen.

57



Quote

Customer ID: PR57229
Date: 6/27/2023

TO   Coach House of Peoria
Tazewell County Animal Control and Mike Harris   Greg Smith
21314 Ilinois Route 9   7428 West Plank Rd.
Tremont, IL 61568   Peoria, IL 61604
(309) 359-8969   (309) 697-2020

 
Quote valid through: 7/31/2023
 

Qty Unit Description Total

336.0 SF Site prep - fill, rebar, concrete for thickened edge, labor $ 2,016.00

80.0 LF 9x9 concrete footing $ 1,600.00

336.0 SF 4" thick, 4000 psi concrete floor, sawcut $ 3,864.00

60.0 SF 4" thick, 4000 psi concrete approach, sawcut $ 690.00

1.0 EA 12x28 Garage, 2x4 walls, 16" oc, 8' tall $ 9,203.00

640.0 SF 7/16" OSB exterior wall sheathing $ 364.80

640.0 SF House wrap on walls & gables $ 0.00

2.0 EA 48x12 Picture Window White $ 726.00

1.0 EA Service Door 3'0" w/Raised Panel, insulated steel, vinyl coated, keyed lever set $ 804.00

1.0 EA #400 8x7 White OHD Inside Lock, window, double steel, insulated $ 1,568.00

640.0 SF Metal Siding - Legacy 40 Year G-Rib - Color TBD $ 3,846.40

80.0 LF 8" gable overhang, 16" eave overhang, aluminum covered, vented, white $ 0.00

15.0 SF 4/12 Pitch Common Trusses 24" O.C. $ 0.00

1.0 EA SDWC Screws - truss tie downs $ 48.00

336.0 SF 1/2" OSB Roof Sheathing $ 0.00

56.0 LF Ice & Water Shield at Eaves $ 226.24

336.0 EA Synthetic Roofing Underlayment $ 0.00

336.0 SF Metal Roofing - Legacy 40 Year G-Rib - Color TBD $ 947.52

28.0 LF Ridge Vent $ 197.96

96.0 LF 5" seamless gutters, downspouts, & tails $ 528.00

Total $ 26,629.92

 12x28 garage, 2x4 walls, 16" ocComments:  

58



CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or on clicking 
links from unknown senders.  

 

Diamond Buildings LLC 
217-589-4987 

info.diamondbuildings@gmail.com 

 

Customer Order - Jun 28, 2023  
 

 

Ship To 
 

Customer Name mike Schone 
  

Order # 1687960728759364 
  

Installation Address 21314 Ill Rt 9 
  

City Tremont 
  

State IL 
  

ZIP Code 61568 
  

Email mschone@tazewell-il.gov 
  

Phone 309 478-5663 
  

Mobile Â  
   

 
 

Dealer 
 

Diamond Buildings 
Arthur, IL 61911 
Phone: 217-589-4987 
info.diamondbuildings@gmail.com 

 
 

Building Info 
 

Style:  Garage 
 

Roof Overhang:  Standard 
 

Roof Material:  Metal Roof 
 

Base 12' Wide Skid 
 

Siding Metal 
 

 

 

Size 
 

12x30 
93.5" Walls 

Sidewall Height 
 

 

Color 
 

Roof Dark Green Â  
 

 
 

Trim Brillant White Â  
 

 

 

Siding Light Stone Â  
 

 
 

 
 

Design Link & Notes 
 

Design LinkÂ https://shedview.diamondbuildings.com/?lng=en-US&dealer=Arthur#3ac64a00a1957ec5a9a8bb3a593ef519 
 

Notes, Comments, QuestionsÂ We are a County Municipality and tax exempt 
 

 

  

59

mailto:info.diamondbuildings@gmail.com
https://shedview.diamondbuildings.com/?lng=en-US&dealer=Arthur#3ac64a00a1957ec5a9a8bb3a593ef519


Images 

 
Perspective 

 
Front 

 
Left 

 
Right 

 
Back 

Â  

Description Quantity Amount 

Structure Details   

Style: Garage 1 $13,153.00 

60



Description Quantity Amount 

Sidewall Height: 93.5" Walls 1 Included 

Size: 12x30 1 Included 

Roof Overhang: Standard 1 Included 

Base: 12' Wide Skid 1 Included 

Siding: Metal 1 Included 

Roof Pitch: Standard 1 Included 

Siding Color: Light Stone  Included 

Trim Color: Brillant White  Included 

Roof Color: Dark Green  Included 

Roof Material: Metal Roof 1 Included 

 Â   

Doors & Ramps   

Hinges: Right Door Swing 2 Included 

Fiberglass Door w/ Window 1 $350.00 

Color: White  Included 

36" Fiberglass Door (Credit) 1 -$300.00 

 Â   

61



Description Quantity Amount 

Garage Doors & Ramps   

9'x7' Garage Door (Credit) 1 -$675.00 

 Â   

Rollup Doors & Ramps   

6'x7' Roll-up Door 1 $675.00 

Color: White  Included 

 Â   

Windows & Accessories   

2x3 Slider (Credit) 1 -$100.00 

Dormer: None 1 Included 

72" Transom Window 2 $200.00 

Color: White  Included 

 Â   

Flooring & Interior   

Flooring: 3/4" Edge Gold T&G Flooring 1 Included 

 Â   

Vents   

62



Description Quantity Amount 

12" x 12" Vent 2 Included 

Color: White  Included 

invoice-taxable-services $13,303.00 

Discount: -$1,330.00 

Subtotal: $11,973.00 

Sales Tax (6.75%): $808.18 

Total Order Amount: $12,781.18 

Final Balance Due at Installation: $12,781.18 

Signatures 

Customer Signature:  

Date  

Desired Delivery Date:  

Delivery Notes:  

Â  

Â  

Dealer or Manufacturer Signature:  

63



Signatures 

Date  

Pricing and options shown are subject to change at any time and may vary based upon current promotions, specials, or annual pricing adjustments. Current 
pricing will be included in the final quote and will require your review and approval prior to order. 

We will do all we can to ensure your complete satisfaction. Please contact us for questions, concerns, or custom styles or sizes. 

Pricing Table (For Internal Use): - Service Area 

Buy This Building Now! 

 

This estimate is provided by Diamond Buildings LLC for use by customers of Diamond Buildings LLC only. 

 
Diamond Buildings 
Arthur, IL, 61911 
217-589-4987 
info.diamondbuildings@gmail.com 

 

64

https://shedview.diamondbuildings.com/?lng=en-US&dealer=Arthur&dialog=checkout#3ac64a00a1957ec5a9a8bb3a593ef519


FLOORPLAN 

65



 

66



67



 
 

 
 

2200 W. Altorfer Drive, Peoria IL 61615 

Tazewell County Justice Center 
 

Pekin, IL 
 

The following is a scope of work and quote for work to be performed at the above location.  We will 
provide the following: 
 
Walk-In AC System Replacement  
• Recover charge under EPA guidelines and recycle. 
• Disconnect all necessary refrigerant piping, condensate piping, power, and control wiring. 
• Remove condensing unit, evaporator, and dispose.  
• Set new unit in place and install new evaporator complete with new thermostatic expansion valve, 

solenoid valve, and disconnect. 
• Purge all refrigerant lines and install new liquid line filter drier. 
• Reconnect all refrigerant piping and insulate all suction piping. 
• Pressurize system with nitrogen and leak check. Evacuate system and charge with new refrigerant. 

Refrigerant shall be provided prior to arrival on site with the Hazmat Part I filled out. The contractor 
shall provide a Hazmat Part II document once the job is complete. 

• Reconnect condensate piping and associated heat trace. Install new defrost clock. 
• Reconnect all power and control wiring and perform a startup on the system to ensure proper 

operation. 
• Contractor will provide any operations manuals, product data, and contractor warranty information. 

Warranty information will include a materials and workmanship warranty from the contractor and an 
already activated manufacturer’s warranty that begins on the date of any applicable installation.  

• We exclude all items not mentioned above. 
 
Total:  $14,900.00 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to bid this project.  We hope to be working with you on this job soon.  
Please feel free to call or email with any questions. 
 
Wes Edwards 
Montefusco HVAC, Inc. 
309-208-6225 
wes@montefuscohvac.com 
 

              7/13/23 

68



 

  

  

DATE: 7/12/2023  QUOTE NO.: 23-523 
 

PREPARED FOR: Tazewell County Courthouse 
 Attn: Mike Schone 
 342 Court Street 
 Pekin, IL 61554 

 

JOB: Walk-in freezer upgrade 
  

LOCATION: Tazewell Justice Center 
  

SCOPE: See scope attached 
 

TOTAL PRICE: $ 14,740.00 
 

Items quoted are price-protected for 30 days. 
 

PREPARED BY:  
 Adam Strausbaugh; Project Manager 

PHONE NO.: (309) 674-6644   Ext.212 

 
EMAIL: 

(309) 635-7255   mobile 
adam@ruylecorp.com 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to serve your needs. 
 

 

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL – The prices, specifications and conditions within this quote are 
satisfactory and are hereby accepted.  Ruyle is authorized to do the work as specified.  Payment 
will be made as outlined. 
 

Date of Acceptance:   
   

Signature:   

Print Name:   

   

 

 

                                         

              

Confidentiality Notice: 
This document contains information that may be 
confidential and privileged. You may not use, copy or 
disclose the information contained herein to anyone 
without authorization from an agent of Ruyle Mechanical 
Services Inc. 
 

69



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

➢ et new condensing unit in same location utilizing elevator 
➢ Existing lineset to remain.  
➢ Connect piping & electrical at new condensing unit 
➢ Existing disconnect to be reused 
➢ Pressure check, evacuate, & charge 404A in system 
➢ Existing freezer case to remain with no alterations 
➢ Perform system start-up & verify proper operation 

 

 

Exclusions 

• Overtime  

• Tax 

• Temporary freezer or food storage 

• Asbestos abatement or testing 

• Certified drawings by an engineer 

• Additional work not specified under scope 

 
 

70



Standard Heating & CoolingII 906 S.W. ADAMS - PEORIA, ILLINOIS 61602
PEO. PH: 309-671-5417 - FAX: 309-671-5405 - PEKIN PH: 309-353-3047

RESIDENTIAL
COMMERCIAL

INDUSTRIAL
INSTITUTIONAL

24 HOUR EMERGENCY SERVICE

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER

         
Tazewell County Justice Center   Date:07/13/2023 
101 S Capitol   Walk In Freezer 
Pekin Illinois 61554   Est:MH238693    
 
We propose to furnish labor and materials to provide and install (1) Walk In Freezer evaporator & condensing 
unit. Included in our proposal are the following items; 

 
• Recover existing R404a refrigerant 
• Disconnect existing refrigeration lines 
• Remove existing condensing unit & evaporator 
• Flush existing refrigeration lines 
• Provide and install new condensing unit and evaporator to include temperature control 
• Reconnect existing refrigeration piping to new units 
• Pressure test and charge new system as required 
• Ensure proper drain pan function and modify as needed 
• Provide crane 
• Provide permits as required 
• Provide startup and testing 

 
For the sum of  ……………………………………………………..………………………….……. $13,170.00 
 

Note: Above pricing is based on after hours between 5:30p.m. and 7:30 a.m 
 

  ACCEPTED:       
 
  DATE:        
 

  PREPARED BY:  Mike Hamilton  
 

  Mike Hamilton 
 Service Manager 

 
SETTING THE STANDARD IN COMFORT SINCE 1939 

 

71



72



 
 

 

 

COUNTY OF TAZEWELL 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Jaclynn Workman, Administrator 

11 South 4th Street, Room 400, Pekin, Illinois  61554 

      Phone: (309) 477-2235 / Email: zoning@tazewell-il.gov 

 

TO:  Chairman Graff and Finance Committee 
 

FROM:  Jaclynn Workman, Administrator 
 

DATE:  July 18th, 2023 
 

SUBJECT: Transfer 
 

The Appeal Board (100-300-5208) line is currently overdrawn by $1890.37 following payment of July bills. It is 

anticipated that the remainder of the year, without the use of the Court reporter for the remainder of the year 

at an average cost of $1500 per hearing, will further reduce this line by another $2100.00. The following 

transfers will be needed to cover the additional cost; 
 

 From 100-300-5130  Gasoline   in the amount of $1000.00 

 From 100-300-5135  Tech Supplies   in the amount of $400.00  

 From 100-300-5210  Building Code Inspections  in the amount of $1500.00 

 From 100-300-5614 Deposit Reimbursement  in the amount of $450.00 

  

        Total:   $3350.00 

Additionally, the Legal Notice (100-300-5203) line is currently over drawn by $83.43. The average monthly cost, 

due to notice of public hearing, is $175. However the cost to publish the two May 2023 hearings was 

extraordinarily higher and not anticipated, $3298.25. It is anticipated the additional cost for the rest of the year 

will be an additional $750.00, therefore the transfer needed  

 

 From 100-610-5400  Education and Training   in the amount of $750.00 
 

Thank you for your consideration. Please feel free to contact me at your convenience if you have further 

questions.  

 

JW 

 

 

11 South Fourth Street ~ McKenzie Building ~ Suite 400 ~ Pekin, Illinois 61554 

Phone: (309) 477-2235 ~ Fax: (309) 477-2358 ~ E-Mail: jworkman@tazewell-il.gov 
 73

mailto:zoning@tazewell-il.gov


74



75



76



77



78



79



                         F-23-31          
 COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board: 
 
Your Finance Committee have considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends 
that it be adopted by the Board: 
 
_________________________________           ______________________________________ 
 
_________________________________           ______________________________________ 
 
_________________________________           ______________________________________ 
 
_________________________________           ______________________________________ 
 
_________________________________           ______________________________________ 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

R E S O L U T I O N 
 

WHEREAS, the State of Illinois signed into law the Rebuild Illinois capital initiative in 
2019; and 
 
WHEREAS, the General Assembly of the State of Illinois appropriated three billion 
dollars to the Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Development(DCEO) for 
Capital Grants; and  
 
WHEREAS, the General Assembly of the State of Illinois enacted appropriation from the 
DCEO capital grant in the amount $5,000,000.00 for line item number 186-260 for 
Tazewell County, appropriation number 971-42085-4900-9721, for cost associated with 
street resurfacing and infrastructure improvements; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County’s Finance Committee recommends to the County Board to approve 
the Illinois DCEO Uniform Application for State Grant Assistance. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve this recommendation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Board Chairman is hereby authorized and 
directed to execute and file on behalf of Tazewell County such application and to 
furnish such additional information as may be required by the Illinois Department of 
Commerce and Economic Development in connection with the aforesaid application for 
said grant. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office, the 
County Engineer, Finance, and the Auditor of this action. 
 

80



PASSED THIS 26th DAY OF JULY, 2023. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Tazewell County Clerk    Tazewell County Board Chairman 

81



F-23-32    
 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board: 
 
Your Finance Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends that it 
be adopted by the Board: 
 
________________________________             ______________________________________ 
 
________________________________             ______________________________________ 
 
________________________________             ______________________________________ 
 
________________________________             ______________________________________ 
 
________________________________             ______________________________________ 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

R E S O L U T I O N 
 
WHEREAS, the County's Finance Committee recommends to the County Board to approve  
the purchase of a 2023 Ford Edge for Community Development; and 
 
WHEREAS, the purchase price of the vehicle is $43,110 and was included in the fiscal year 2023 
budget. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve this purchase. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office, the Finance 
Office, the Director of Community Development, and the Auditor of this action. 
 
PASSED THIS 26TH DAY OF JULY, 2023. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
County Clerk      County Board Chairman 
 
 

82



 
 
 

 

COUNTY OF TAZEWELL 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Jaclynn Workman, Administrator 

11 South 4th Street, Room 400, Pekin, Illinois  61554 

      Phone: (309) 477-2235 / Email: zoning@tazewell-il.gov 

 

TO:  Chairman Graff and Finance Committee 
 

FROM:  Jaclynn Workman, Administrator 
 

DATE:  July 26th, 2023 
 

SUBJECT: New vehicle Purchase 
 

 

 

Please find attached a quote from Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. for a 2023 Ford Edge. Also provided, a State of 

Illinois contract awarded to Morrow Brothers for the desired vehicle. The vehicle will replace the 2011 Ford 

Edge, purchased from the Sheriff’s Department in 2014, for the daily use of the building inspector. The 2011 

Edge will be retained for periodic use of the Code Enforcement Officer and other staff as needed. 

 

The vehicle came in $6,890.00 below budget at $43,110.00; 
 

Thank you for your consideration. Please feel free to contact me at your convenience if you have further 

questions.  

 

JW 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11 South Fourth Street ~ McKenzie Building ~ Suite 400 ~ Pekin, Illinois 61554 

Phone: (309) 477-2235 ~ Fax: (309) 477-2358 ~ E-Mail: jworkman@tazewell-il.gov 
 
 
 

83

mailto:zoning@tazewell-il.gov


���������	��
����������������������
����������������
����������	���
�	����������	��������������
���������������������������������	�
���
��������������������
������������������������
���������
�����������������������
�����������	�����������
���������	��������	��������
��������������������������
���
�������
��������������
�����
���� !"� #$%&�'(�)����*
�����*
��������+���
������������	���,�-������.�������/01/213/34 5
��
��6�
������7
�	��8����9�:3;3�5�����������<�������	�8��
���9�03/;;3/34�=	���;	���.+��=�>?;<@����������������A�������B����� CDE�FGHIJKGLMNIJIOP Q;4�::/�//R&S"T Q;4�::/�//*���
������������� �����������+���U84



���������	��
����������������������
����������������
����������	���
�	����������	��������������
���������������������������������	�
���
��������������������
������������������������
���������
�����������������������
�����������	�����������
���������	��������	��������
��������������������������
���
�������
��������������
�����
���� !"� #$%&�'(�)����*
�����*
��������+���
������������	���,�-������.�������/01/213/34 5
��
��6�
������7
�	��8����9�:3;3�5�����������<�������	�8��
���9�03/;;3/34�=	���;	���.+��=�>?;<@���*
�������	�A�����B&# C DE�F!GF&HI"D $J KFEL ?;< 6����A������������>?;<@�"EM"N D://� =O��������<�
���://�PQRSTUVWXYZ[Q\]QVXẐ_]QỲRabSSZcdefZ[RbgbbWhZZPQRSTUVWZiThbZWhiahYWhbjZhVRkQbSb\ldYẐaiQWm]WW]bQXZnỲjVVUZoThbmih]RZ_p̀VSVRh̀k]qhZZYZoRh]rVẐaiQWm]WW]bQZsiamYtjYZudneZovSVZwih]bYZxyswXẐgzYẐ]aVWXZc{|p}ew~nZò Zg̀ sYZskVVSWXZ~n�Z̀jia�SVZ̀]SrVaY�i]QhVUZoSTm]QTmYZ�SbhkZgTR�VhZ̀VihWZZPQRSTUVWZ{Y_ilZmiQTiSZqabQhYUa]rVaZWVihZ�qbaVpiqh�ZSTm�ia��ZcY_ilZmiQTiSqabQhYjiWWVQ\VaZWVihZ�qbaVpiqh�Z_]hkZmiQTiSZaVRS]QVZiQUZcY_ilZmiQTiSSliU�TWhi�SVZ�TjpUb_Q�ZkViUZaVWhai]QhWdYZwiU]bXZo�p��Z̀hVaVbp��uZ�iji�SVZZPQRSTUVWZ}ZWjVi�VaW�ZWjVVUYRbmjVQWihVUZrbSTmVZiQUZt̀ gZmVU]iZkT��oZiQUZ��ZWhlSVdZZYZ̀���Z{oZ_p[QkiQRVUZyb]RVZwVRb\Q]h]bQZZPQRSTUVWZ~c�Zf�zZRijiR]h]rVZhbTRkWRaVVQZ_]hkZW_]jVZRiji�]S]hl�Z_]aVSVWWjkbQVZRbQQVRh]bQ�ZRSbTUZRbQQVRhVU�Zojjf]Q�Z_]hkZijjZRihiSb\�Z�~~oWW]Wh�Zs]aVSVWWZojjSVZ�ia�SilZiQUZoQUab]UZoThbZRbmjih]�]S]hl�ZU]\]hiSb_QVaWZmiQTiS�ZiUijh]rVZUiWkRiaUWZiQUZRbQrVaWih]bQiSZrb]RVZRbmmiQUaVRb\Q]h]bQdZZYZ̀]a]TW��Z_pu}efZZPQRSTUVWZiZuYmbQhkZjaVji]UZWT�WRa]jh]bQdZ̀Var]RVZ]WZQbhZiri]Si�SVZ]QoSiW�iZiQUZ�i_i]]dZ̀]a]TW��ZiTU]bZiQUZUihiZWVar]RVWZViRkZaV�T]aVZiWT�WRa]jh]bQZWbSUZWVjiaihVSl�ZbaZiWZiZjiR�i\V�Z�lZ̀]a]TW��ZaiU]bZ]QRdZ�bTa]̀a]TW��ZWVar]RVZ_]SSZiThbmih]RiSSlZWhbjZihZhkVZVQUZbqZlbTaZha]iSZTQSVWWZlbTUVR]UVZhbZWT�WRa]�VdZPqZlbTZUVR]UVZhbZRbQh]QTVZWVar]RVZiqhVaZlbTaZha]iS�ZhkVWT�WRa]jh]bQZjSiQZlbTZRkbbWVZ_]SSZiThbmih]RiSSlZaVQV_ZhkVaViqhVaZiQUZlbT_]SSZ�VZRkia\VUZiRRbaU]Q\ZhbZlbTaZRkbWVQZjilmVQhZmVhkbUZihZhkVQYRTaaVQhaihVWdZ�VVWZiQUZhivVWZijjSldẐbZRiQRVSZlbTZmTWhZRiSSZ̀]a]TW��ZihZ~Yn}}Y}u|Ycu{�dZ̀VVZ̀]a]TW��ZRTWhbmVaZi\aVVmVQhZqbaZRbmjSVhVZhVamWZih___dW]a]TWvmdRbmdZoSSZqVVWZiQUZjab\aimm]Q\ZWT��VRhZhbZRkiQ\VdZ�bhZiSSrVk]RSVWZbaZUVr]RVWZiaVZRiji�SVZbqZaVRV]r]Q\ZiSSZWVar]RVWZbqqVaVUZ�l]̀a]TW��dZ�TaaVQhZ]Qqbamih]bQZiQUZqVihTaVWZmilZQbhZ�VZiri]Si�SVZ]QZiSSSbRih]bQW�ZbaZbQZiSSZaVRV]rVaWdZ̀ihVSS]hVZiQUZWhaVim]Q\ZS]QVTjWZrialZWS]\khSldceceZ̀]a]TW��ZaiU]bZ]QRZ̀]a]TW�Z���Z̀]a]TW��ZiQUZiSSZaVSihVUZmia�WZiQUSb\bWZiaVZhaiUVmia�WZbqZ̀]a]TWZ��ZwiU]bZPQRdZZYZ�baU�iWWZ�bQQVRh �85



���������	��
����������������������
����������������
����������	���
�	����������	��������������
���������������������������������	�
���
��������������������
������������������������
���������
�����������������������
�����������	�����������
���������	��������	��������
��������������������������
���
�������
��������������
�����
���� !"� #$%&�'(�)����*
�����*
��������+���
������������	���,�-������.�������/01/213/34 5
��
��6�
������7
�	��8����9�:3;3�5�����������<�������	�8��
���9�03/;;3/34�=	���;	���.+��=�>?;<@���*
�������	�A������>�
��B	@C&# D EF�G!HG&IJJKLMNOPQRJSTJUVWJXYZ[YJ\]̂R_]̂Ĵ\̀ ĴM]LLQM̂RJO_Ĵ]JabJPQcYMQRJdXYZ[Y\]̂R_]̂JYLMNOPQRJeYfQNQRRJP̀^̀Ĵf̀YNĴ\̀ ĴgQhYLRJO_]LJiVjVJ̀M̂Yc̀ Ŷ]LJ̀LPQk_YfQRJ̀̂Ĵ\QJQLPJ]lJmJn]L̂\RJ]fJe\QLJmToJ]lJP̀^̀JYRJORQPpJe\YM\QcQfM]nQRJlYfR̂pJgÔJM̀LL]̂JQk̂QLPJgQq]LPĴ\QĴfỲNJROgRMfY_̂Y]LJ_QfY]PJl]ffQn]̂QJlQ̀ ÔfQRrJV]J̀M̂Yc̀ Q̂pJh]Ĵ]Jeeer̀̂ r̂M]nsl]fPtrJuQn]̂QJR̂̀ f̂pJN]MvL̀PJOLN]MvJcQ\YMNQpJRM\QPONQJR_QMYlYMĴYnQRĴ]JfQn]̂QNqJR̂̀ f̂JcQ\YMNQpN]M̀ Q̂J_̀fvQPJcQ\YMNQJ̀LPJM\QMvJcQ\YMNQJR̂̀ ÔRJd[]fPẁRRJx]LLQM̂d]_̂Y]L̀NJ]LJRQNQM̂JcQ\YMNQRtpĴ\QJ[]fPẁRRJ̀__rpJ̀LPJM]n_NYnQL̂̀ fqM]LLQM̂QPJRQfcYMQRJ̀fQJfQyOYfQPJl]fJfQn]̂QJlQ̀ ÔfQRJdRQQJ[]fPẁRRĴQfnRl]fJPQ̂̀ YNRtrJx]LLQM̂QPJRQfcYMQJ̀LPJlQ̀ ÔfQRJPQ_QLPJ]LJM]n_̀ ŶgNQJiVjVLQ̂e]fvJ̀c̀YǸgYNŶqrJWc]NcYLhĴQM\L]N]hqpJMQNNOǸfJLQ̂e]fvRpJcQ\YMNQM̀_̀gYNŶqJǹ qJNYnŶJlOLM̂Y]L̀NŶqJ̀LPJ_fQcQL̂J]_Qf̀Ŷ]LJ]lJM]LLQM̂QPlQ̀ ÔfQRrJx]LLQM̂QPJRQfcYMQRJQkMNOPQPJXYZ[YJ\]̂R_]̂trJVQNQǹ ŶMRR]NÔY]LJdg]̂\JM]n_NYnQL̂̀ fqJ̀LPJROgRMfY_̂Y]LJg̀RQPtJ̀fQJ̀c̀YǸgNQJl]flNQQ̂JMOR̂]nQfRpJ_f]cYPYLhJ̀MMQRRĴ]Jǹ LOl̀M̂OfQfZhf̀PQJP̀^̀JYLMNOPYLhgÔJL]̂JNYnŶQPĴ]JcQ\YMNQJN]M̀ Ŷ]LpJR_QQPpJYPNQĴYnQpJlOQNsQLQfhqpJf̀LhQpcQ\YMNQJPỲhL]R̂YMRpJ̀LPJǹ YL̂QL̀LMQJ̀NQf̂RrJ[]fPẁRRJx]LLQM̂JSTJXYZ[Yn]PQnpJQL̀gNQRĴQNQǹ ŶMRJRQfcYMQRJPYfQM̂NqJlf]nJ[]fPJ]fĴ\f]Oh\Ò̂\]fYzQPĴ\YfPJ_̀f̂qJ_f]cYPQfRrJUQ̀fLJn]fQJ̀̂M]nnQfMỲNR]NÔY]LRrl]fPrM]nJ]fJQǹ YNJlMRa{l]fPrM]nJ]fJgqJM̀NNYLhJ|mmZ[x}Z[]fPrJd|mmZm~�Zm��mtr�&� �H�"GI��� =�����,�(�������
�3�/��=�
6

��KLMNOPQRJ̀Ô]JR̂̀ f̂ZR̂]_ĴQM\L]N]hqr;;2 (���������
�,�2�����	����
�������1����������KLMNOPQR�ZJiM̂YcQJVf̀LRnYRRY]LJX f̀nZ�_�(+�� 4�2/�����-���
�(+<A <A.-,�(6+��  �E$�$�G� E�(+(- (����,�3;�10/-:2����6�.�(+.� .����,�:2���������������������	���������:� 5����������.���uQ_ǸMQRĴYfQJYLlǸ̂]fJ̀LPJRQ̀ǸL̂JvŶrKLMNOPQR�ZJ�YLYJ}_̀fQJVYfQ� "HE$�$� "H$��G�* *
���6�����������KLMNOPQRJSZè qJǹ LÒNJlf]L̂ZPfYcQfJRQ̀ Ĵdl]fQs̀l̂pJNOng̀ftpJ~Zè qJǹ LÒNlf]L̂Z_̀RRQLhQfJRQ̀ Ĵdl]fQs̀l̂tJeŶ\Jǹ LÒNJfQMNYLQJ̀LPJ~Zè qJǹ LÒNNqP̀�OR̂̀ gNQJdO_sP]eLtJ\Q̀PJfQR̂f̀YL̂Rr�H� �$�!HG&IE��8�( 5
�
�
�����������������
� �86



���������	��
����������������������
����������������
����������	���
�	����������	��������������
���������������������������������	�
���
��������������������
������������������������
���������
�����������������������
�����������	�����������
���������	��������	��������
��������������������������
���
�������
��������������
�����
���� !"� #$%&�'(�)����*
�����*
��������+���
������������	���,�-������.�������/01/213/34 5
��
��6�
������7
�	��8����9�:3;3�5�����������<�������	�8��
���9�03/;;3/34�=	���;	���.+��=�>?;<@���*
�������	�A������>�
��B	@C&# D EF�G!HG&I::3.6 ::3�3J�.��������(+-+ -�	�
,��5175������
15�4�*�����KLMNOPQRSTSRUQVWQXRYSRUQQPZM[\UQLRV]QPŜ[NO\QSVLPS_̀ aS\QPbVScOdSefVLPSghSR]iNQjKLMNOPQRkZS̀lmgSnfSopqLcVLMQPSr[bMQSsQM[tLb]b[LSSKLMNOPQRSuvwSxgySMVUVMb]b̂QS][OMcRMXQQLSob]cSRobUQSMVUVdbNb]iYSobXQNQRRUc[LQSM[LLQM]b[LYSMN[OPSM[LLQM]QPYSfUUxbLWSob]cSVUUSMV]VN[tYSzuufRRbR]YS{bXQNQRRSfUUNQSgVX|NViSVLPSfLPX[bPSfO][SM[\UV]bdbNb]iYSPbtb]VN[oLQXRS\VLOVNYSVPVU]b̂QSPVRcMVXPRSVLPSM[L̂QXRV]b[LVNŜ[bMQSM[\\VLPXQM[tLb]b[LjZS̀bXbOR}~Sop�T�xSSKLMNOPQRSVS�Z\[L]cSUXQUVbPSROdRMXbU]b[LjS̀QX̂bMQSbRSL[]SV̂VbNVdNQSbLfNVRWVSVLPS�VoVbbjS̀bXbOR}~SVOPb[SVLPSPV]VSRQX̂bMQRSQVMcSXQ�ObXQSVROdRMXbU]b[LSR[NPSRQUVXV]QNiYS[XSVRSVSUVMWVtQYSdiS̀bXbOR}~SXVPb[SbLMjSl[OXb̀XbOR}~SRQX̂bMQSobNNSVO][\V]bMVNNiSR][USV]S]cQSQLPS[�Si[OXS]XbVNSOLNQRRSi[OPQMbPQS][SROdRMXbdQjSK�Si[OSPQMbPQS][SM[L]bLOQSRQX̂bMQSV�]QXSi[OXS]XbVNYS]cQROdRMXbU]b[LSUNVLSi[OSMc[[RQSobNNSVO][\V]bMVNNiSXQLQoS]cQXQV�]QXSVLPSi[OobNNSdQSMcVXtQPSVMM[XPbLtS][Si[OXSMc[RQLSUVi\QL]S\Q]c[PSV]S]cQLZMOXXQL]XV]QRjS�QQRSVLPS]V�QRSVUUNijS�[SMVLMQNSi[OS\OR]SMVNNS̀bXbOR}~SV]SuZ�TTZT��Zv�nzjS̀QQS̀bXbOR}~SMOR][\QXSVtXQQ\QL]S�[XSM[\UNQ]QS]QX\RSV]ooojRbXbOR�\jM[\jSfNNS�QQRSVLPSUX[tXV\\bLtSROd�QM]S][SMcVLtQjSm[]SVNNQ̂cbMNQRS[XSPQ̂bMQRSVXQSMVUVdNQS[�SXQMQb̂bLtSVNNSRQX̂bMQRS[��QXQPSdib̀XbOR}~jSgOXXQL]SbL�[X\V]b[LSVLPS�QV]OXQRS\ViSL[]SdQSV̂VbNVdNQSbLSVNNN[MV]b[LRYS[XS[LSVNNSXQMQb̂QXRjS̀V]QNNb]QSVLPSR]XQV\bLtSNbLQOURŜVXiSRNbtc]Nijv�v�S̀bXbOR}~SXVPb[SbLMS̀bXbORYS}~YS̀bXbOR}~SVLPSVNNSXQNV]QPS\VXWRSVLPN[t[RSVXQS]XVPQ\VXWRS[�S̀bXbORS}~SsVPb[SKLMjZS�[XP|VRRSg[LLQM]SSKLMNOPQRSn�Sx�qS{bZ�bSc[]RU[]S]cV]SM[LLQM]RSOUS][Su�SPQ̂bMQRSe{bZ�bc[]RU[]SbLMNOPQRSobXQNQRRSPV]VS]XVbNS]cV]SdQtbLRSOU[LSf���SVM]b̂V]b[LSVLPQ�UbXQRSV]S]cQSQLPS[�S�S\[L]cRS[XSocQLS��aS[�SPV]VSbRSORQPYSocbMcQ̂QXM[\QRS�bXR]YSdO]SMVLL[]SQ�]QLPSdQi[LPS]cQS]XbVNSROdRMXbU]b[LSUQXb[PS�[XXQ\[]QS�QV]OXQRjS�[SVM]b̂V]QYSt[S][SooojV]]jM[\p�[XPhjSsQ\[]QSR]VX]YSN[MWVLPSOLN[MWŜQcbMNQYSRMcQPONQSRUQMb�bMS]b\QRS][SXQ\[]QNiSR]VX]ŜQcbMNQYN[MV]QSUVXWQPŜQcbMNQSVLPSMcQMWŜQcbMNQSR]V]ORSe�[XP|VRRSg[LLQM]e[U]b[LVNS[LSRQNQM]ŜQcbMNQRhYS]cQS�[XP|VRRSVUUjYSVLPSM[\UNb\QL]VXiM[LLQM]QPSRQX̂bMQRSVXQSXQ�ObXQPS�[XSXQ\[]QS�QV]OXQRSeRQQS�[XP|VRRS]QX\R�[XSPQ]VbNRhjSg[LLQM]QPSRQX̂bMQSVLPS�QV]OXQRSPQUQLPS[LSM[\UV]bdNQSf���LQ]o[XWSV̂VbNVdbNb]ijSq̂[N̂bLtS]QMcL[N[tiYSMQNNONVXSLQ]o[XWRYŜQcbMNQMVUVdbNb]iS\ViSNb\b]S�OLM]b[LVNb]iSVLPSUXQ̂QL]S[UQXV]b[LS[�SM[LLQM]QP�QV]OXQRjSg[LLQM]QPSRQX̂bMQRSQ�MNOPQPS{bZ�bSc[]RU[]hjS�QNQ\V]bMRR[NO]b[LSed[]cSM[\UNb\QL]VXiSVLPSROdRMXbU]b[LSdVRQPhSVXQSV̂VbNVdNQS�[X�NQQ]SMOR][\QXRYSUX[̂bPbLtSVMMQRRS][S\VLO�VM]OXQXZtXVPQSPV]VSbLMNOPbLtdO]SL[]SNb\b]QPS][ŜQcbMNQSN[MV]b[LYSRUQQPYSbPNQS]b\QYS�OQNpQLQXtiYSXVLtQYQ̂cbMNQSPbVtL[R]bMRYSVLPS\VbL]QLVLMQSVNQX]RjS�[XP|VRRSg[LLQM]Sn�S{bZ�b\[PQ\YSQLVdNQRS]QNQ\V]bMRSRQX̂bMQRSPbXQM]NiS�X[\S�[XPS[XS]cX[OtcVO]c[Xb�QPS]cbXPSUVX]iSUX[̂bPQXRjSxQVXLS\[XQSV]M[\\QXMbVNR[NO]b[LRj�[XPjM[\S[XSQ\VbNS�MRu��[XPjM[\S[XSdiSMVNNbLtS���Z�g̀ Z�[XPjSe���Z�v�Z�T��hj��GEEG&IE;3� �/�������=�����
�����������H �G&�$C&�&����/: 8�
����������5������IH �G&�$C&�&� �87



���������	��
����������������������
����������������
����������	���
�	����������	��������������
���������������������������������	�
���
��������������������
������������������������
���������
�����������������������
�����������	�����������
���������	��������	��������
��������������������������
���
�������
��������������
�����
���� !"� #$%&�'(�)����*
�����*
��������+���
������������	���,�-������.�������/01/213/34 5
��
��6�
������7
�	��8����9�:3;3�5�����������<�������	�8��
���9�03/;;3/34�=	���;	���.+��=�>?;<@���*
�������	�A������>�
��B	@C&# D EF�G!HG&I*+J/: +�����1*
���6�����������K!%GH$L!HG&IE+������ +��������
�(**+5?( 5�������	������������
�������.(M .������(����7

��N�����5N( O���5�N������1(��� P88



���������	��
����������������������
����������������
����������	���
�	����������	��������������
���������������������������������	�
���
��������������������
������������������������
���������
�����������������������
�����������	�����������
���������	��������	��������
��������������������������
���
�������
��������������
�����
���� !"� #$%&�'(�)����*
�����*
��������+���
������������	���,�-������.�������/01/213/34 5
��
��6�
������7
�	��8����9�:3;3�5�����������<�������	�8��
���9�03/;;3/34�=	���;	���.+��=�>?;<@������	�=A����B������CDE FGD&FGH�*
������
���*�������,�:�I//�����H�<*.-,�0�4//�����H�J�������
	�������,�:22�2K�H�J�������
	����	��,�LI�MK�H�J������
	��������,�02�4K�H�.�������,�::3�3K�H�7�
��������,�0;�2K�H�-���������,�0;�LK�H�J����������������	���,�:M�0N�H�7�
��������	�������,�:4�0K�H�-����������	�������,�:3�;K�H�8�����
�����������
��
���,�4M�3��������H�8�����
�����������
��
���������������
	�	,�L4�;��������H�5�O�������
�����������
��
���,�L4�;��������H�(
��������������
���,�::4�M��������H�P��	�

�������Q�
�,;/�3K�H�P��	�

�����
�	Q�
�,�;/�4K�H�R����

�������Q�
�,�;3�0K�H�R����

�����
�	Q�
�,�;/�0K�H���
�	����

�������Q�
�,0/�4K�H���
�	����

�����
�	Q�
�,�0/�IK�H�P����

�������Q�
�,�II�MK�H�P����

�����
�	Q�
�,�IL�IK�&S �T�"DFH�=�
6

���3R�8Q;����
����	�������������
���+UP*����������������
���
��������

�	�����
��������������3I/P��H�=���������	���,�8Q;�H�������������
���������H�P
����
���,�3I/�P�VII//��-�5�H�(
�A��,�32/���Q���V4///�-�5�H�-�	���
��H���
���
�Q�������������H�2Q����	����
������H����
��������Q������.+�H��Q�����	�����H�-��
����	�	����,������������	�	�H�=����7�������������������H�(
�A���J���
�����*
���
��������������	������	�����	�����������H��Q����	��6���	�	��������������
���
���
�H�����������
�����������
���
WX Y$Z[&F&E\$"F#$ZEDGGD&FGH�7�����
�
���>����1�������1�
�����	@,�3:����132����134�����H�7�����
�
�������,�3:�����H�7�����
�
����������,32�����H�<��
�������
�	�������������H�7�����
�
����
�����	,�34�����H�R=J4Q]R=JL/�������
��X̂G! FGD&F$"F#$_"F#YDF̀H�����	��	���	����������
��H�<��Q��������)�	���
�����
������
������H�<��Q��������)�	��������
������
�����C�Da "bDYDT\H�;Q�����	�����������H�7�
�����	��������������	�	�����������H�;Q���������
���>�6�@��������H�7
�����������6���������H=����
������������������H�7
�	�*
Q��
�40/�Q��
���*
���
��6����������
�������
��Q�
���
�����������������H����	��������������������������H�P���������������H�8�	����	������
�����������
��H���������
�����������
��H�7�
�������Q�
�����H�7�
���
����������H�8�	����	�����������������
��H�5���Q�����������������
��H�-��������Q�
�����H�=��������
���Q����������������������H�-���Q����
�����������H�3Q��������������������c&#\$ZdT �D&�H�;�	

���H�*����
���������H�5
�
�
���������H�6�����
	���	����		����H�6������	�����	
�������H�6�������	����	������H6
	�Q�

���	�	

�����	���H�6
	�Q�

���	���
����������H�6������
��������������������H�6
	�Q�

���	�������������H6��������������������������H�5���Q

���������������
�������
��	�H�6����	

������
���H�����	��	��������	������
���H*
������
����������������������	

��H�*
������
������������������������	

��H�R�����������������
�	

��H���������������������H��3;I10/-P:2����6�.���
�����	������������H�:2�O�2Q�������
�����	�������������������������e&Fa FD F[ f89



���������	��
����������������������
����������������
����������	���
�	����������	��������������
���������������������������������	�
���
��������������������
������������������������
���������
�����������������������
�����������	�����������
���������	��������	��������
��������������������������
���
�������
��������������
�����
���� !"� #$%&�'(�)����*
�����*
��������+���
������������	���,�-������.�������/01/213/34 5
��
��6�
������7
�	��8����9�:3;3�5�����������<�������	�8��
���9�03/;;3/34�=	���;	���.+��=�>?;<@������	�=A����B�������>�
��C	@D��
����	

��
���������3���������
������D�?���
����������	�	

��
����D��E��E
������
����
����	�������
������D����
E
������	

���D�8����������������������������������	�E��������������	����������
��������D��
�����������1�����	

��
���D*�������
���
���������������������
����	��
���
��D�?���
���������
���
�D�?���
�����	
���
���
�D�7
�	�����*
�����������	��������������������
���
�D�+��1F������������������
��D��
���������E�
�����	
���D�7���

���
��
��D�+�������

������D�7�G�	�����������������	����	��������D�-�������	
��	���
�����D�7�G�	���������	����	�D�H
�������
����
G�D�7�
������������
	����D�-��������������
	����D�2�����������
	����D�3������������
������
������D�+��������	�����������	

������D�-����	

�������D�8�������������������D�+����
��	���
�����D�-������	�������
����
����D��-F+����8��D�(����
������I&J%&�KD����
��������������
���
�D�+��E)
�����
�����������
���
�D�*���������������D�-������	����������������
���
�	�����DL
���E��������	���������
���
�D�-�����
��
����������
���
�	�����D�*
������	�������������D�7�����	������
�������DL����	

��������������D�7����������

���
�������D�7���

���
�������D�*��������
�����	�������

�������D�*
���������������
������D�*�����������������������
������D�5��������������������������D�5����������
������������������D�M��������������������N "KO$"P#$Q�RJD�����������������,�S�D�6��������
���������D�+����������������;E����	������
����
���
��D�7�
�����������������������;E���	������
����
���
��D�T�������	����������
�����������	������������D�5�������
�����������	������������
���
�D�7�
����������������������D�7�
������������������
�����D�5��������������	�����������D�5�����	������������
��1�����
���
�D�5����������������������������D�5���������������������
��1�����
���
�D�7�G�	������������D�-���������������D�T�������	��������������������	������������D�-������������������������D�5�����	�����������������D�*
�����
�����������
������D�5���E

��
��
��������UPK �K"RPJ PK$V "KW� OD�4��
����������
��:����
��	�������D�:3��������������H*+�	������D����������
����������	������D�������X5������40/H�51751����������	�
�D�����������D��YF*�;��G���������
����
���
�D�4��
���������������������������
��D���������������,�0��D�����	��	����	�����������D����������������
����	���	�
��
���
��D��YF*�;��
������������	���	�
��
���
��D����	������������
����D�6���

�������������	�
�����������D�8��������	��

����	�
��������ZR[\KRP[]$̂ROR_R̀RKa$"P#$bPOK�WJ PK"KR&PD�5���E

�������������������������D�+�����1���
���������������
��	������D�*
�����������������������
���������D�(���
	
������D�8�E	�����
���D�*
������D�=G����
��������������	������D�+���������
�����
���������D�(���
������D=�����1���������
�
��������������������D�+���������	����	
���D���
����
����������	������D�H=+�
����	�������������	������D����
�������
�
�1
������	������
���
�D�5���������
��	����	������D�+���E
������	������D�7
�	�*
E��
�40/E����
�T����6�������
�����E��������	������D�+-H��������������������D�L����������������������
������	����	��������D����	������������������D�7�
������	����������D�8�������	�������D�-�������	����������D�8�������	�������
���������D�L���������������������������D�H=+�	���������������������D�T�����
����	����������
�������D�H=+�������������D�7�	��������
��
������������Q c\P&̀&[a$"P#$Q ̀ J"KRcO d90



���������	��
����������������������
����������������
����������	���
�	����������	��������������
���������������������������������	�
���
��������������������
������������������������
���������
�����������������������
�����������	�����������
���������	��������	��������
��������������������������
���
�������
��������������
�����
���� !"� #$%&�'(�)����*
�����*
��������+���
������������	���,�-������.�������/01/213/34 5
��
��6�
������7
�	��8����9�:3;3�5�����������<�������	�8��
���9�03/;;3/34�=	���;	���.+��=�>?;<@������	�=A����B�������>�
��C	@D��EF*�;�G::�������������������H��������������
����	������D�6���

������	��������������	�������
�����������D�EF*�;����I���1�����*�����1��	�
�	����
�������	������������������
�����D�7
�	�����*
������;<��
�����
���
�����������������D�3�J�6��
���K"% LM$"N#$K OP�QLMD�+��������
�����������������D�������
����	���	���������	�������������D��������*��
��������������������������	����
�	R�
�
������	���������D�������������
�����������������D�������
����	���	�����������
��������������������D��������
������������
��D�+��������	�������������	��������������D�2���������D�-����������������4R�
������������D�7�
�����������	����������������D�7�
�����	����������������������
�����D�;�������������R�����
�����D�������I
������
���)���D�-��
�������������D�I����?������������D�6I8��>6��	���
��8��
�����
��������@�D����
������=���������6�������>�=6@��
����	�
���
����������
��D�*�
��R(�������������
���
����������D����R*
���
����������������	��������+������
��D�+�����������D5�?������������	�	��������
	��D�7
�	�*
R��
�40/�R�-�������*������������������������������D��	�����(�����1-
���������*
���
������
��������������
���
�����������������R�
�D�5�������������	��������	

��
���SQT NUQ&NUVWXWYZ[\]Ŵ_̀ab*���������� ;�:3;����cYẐ[WŶX_\]Ŵ_̀ab*
������
����������� :�d//���� <*.- 0�4//����eff\ghZi5�j���
��	��������� 2�/k ����
�������� :2�G+������������� 33�3lmaWŶhY\nWZboYWpWXabq�������
	������� :22�2k q�������
	����	�� rd�Gkq�������
	�������� 02�4k .������� ::3�3k7�
���������	������� :4�0k -����������	������� :3�;k7�
�������� 0;�2k -��������� 0;�rkq����������������	��� :G�0CsXaWŶhY\nWZboYWpWXab8�����
�����������
��
��� 4G�3������� 5�j�������
�����������
��
��� r4�;�������8�����
������
������������ 4;�d�k 8�����
������
������ r;�2�k8�����
������
������������	�� ;d�4�k 8�����
������
��������j���	�� 04�4�k8�����
�����������
��
����������������
	�	 r4�;������ I�������
���������� ;:�r�ksXaWŶhY\th[opW(
��������������
��� ::4�G�������uWZiYhhpv��	�

�������R�
� ;/�3k v��	�

�����
�	R�
� ;/�4kwW_Yhhp x91



���������	��
����������������������
����������������
����������	���
�	����������	��������������
���������������������������������	�
���
��������������������
������������������������
���������
�����������������������
�����������	�����������
���������	��������	��������
��������������������������
���
�������
��������������
�����
���� !"� #$%&�'(�)����*
�����*
��������+���
������������	���,�-������.�������/01/213/34 5
��
��6�
������7
�	��8����9�:3;3�5�����������<�������	�8��
���9�03/;;3/34�=	���;	���.+��=�>?;<@������	�=A����B�������>�
��C	@D����

�������E�
� ;3�0F D����

�����
�	E�
� ;/�0FGHIJKLMNOPIIQ��
�	����

�������E�
� 0/�4F ��
�	����

�����
�	E�
� 0/�RFSTUOPIIQV����

�������E�
� RR�WF V����

�����
�	E�
� RX�RF�&Y �Z�"[\]̂_T̂M=����� =�
6

���3D�8E;����
����	������������
���+̀ V*����������������
���
�������

�	�����
��������������3R/V� a�������������	�� ;=����������	��� 8E; =������
����
� 7�
����
����	�������8�����
� ������������
�������� =�������
�������	������
� (�����������
����	������=�������
���������� ����������������
�� *���	������	��������������������	������	]̂_T̂MOGUMbc+���������� 3�/D �� :33�������6
�� 4�;F ���
�� 4�4F*
�������
������
 :/�/ ��=d:4;W �e<3//;��
������]̂_T̂MOfIgMNV
����
��� 3R/�V�hRR//��-�5 (
�A�� 32/���E���h4///�-�5iKjMN̂kjIN�������
������ -������	�����������
�lkjjMNm6����������� X/�� 6����������� D��	����	��������6������������� X0/**� 6�����������	
�����
�����
� 6�����������	
����
�����
�]̂_T̂MO]njNkc-�	���
� -�	���
� �����E��
�������� ���
���
�E������������oNk̂cQTccTÎ(���������
� 2E����	����
����� (���������
�������
�����
���
 (���������
������
�����
���
�̀��	���������������
� �̀��	���������������
� D
��E�������������
� D
��E�������������
�7��������������
 ;�0W ���
�	����������
 4�4:(���	����������
 4�/: 7
��������������
 :�W37��������������
 :�;R ��p������������
 :-����������������
 3�W0 �����������������
 /�XR=���������������
 /�03 ����������
	������������
� ����������
	�����������
� q92



���������	��
����������������������
����������������
����������	���
�	����������	��������������
���������������������������������	�
���
��������������������
������������������������
���������
�����������������������
�����������	�����������
���������	��������	��������
��������������������������
���
�������
��������������
�����
���� !"� #$%&�'(�)����*
�����*
��������+���
������������	���,�-������.�������/01/213/34 5
��
��6�
������7
�	��8����9�:3;3�5�����������<�������	�8��
���9�03/;;3/34�=	���;	���.+��=�>?;<@������	�=A����B�������>�
��C	@��A��������������
���
 �������������A�������������
���
DEFGHIJKLH;.+����� ���
��������M������.+ +��������� �M�����	����DEFGHNEOFP�Q������
 4�2RSTOUVN(������ ��������������A����M	����Q�����WUHX7������� ������������	�	WUHXIJOPY*�������������� =����7������������������ 7���������������� :2�;Z����[HE\]ÊOP_H����
����������������
� �̀42� ����
�������A��������������� :a�4Z�����
�������A���������������	 2Z�2���� b���������������
��>�@ �2���
������	 a2�3����DEFGHIWHONUEHb�����	�����	����������(
�A���c���
�����*
���
�������������	������	�����	���������� (�����
���
���
 �M����	��6����	�	�������������
���
���
b
�����������
���
 ����������
����������
���
de f$gh&i&jk$"i#$gjlmml&imWUHXIR_]P]̂ K���
�	������������ <��
�������
�	����������� 7�����
�
����
�����	 34����7�����
�
������� 3:���� 7�����
�
���������� 32����7�����
�
���>����1�������1�
�����	@3:����132���134���� 7�����
�
��������� *�������������
�
��������R̂ FVVF]PV=�����
�� b=c4Mnb=c̀/�������
�� =�����
�������� (����4�6���̀/�������
��oEHHPIpOXUHV=������8��������
���>6��������������@ :3�Z *���
��7��1�(���������	�����������
���<q<�>*r3��
�����������@ �̀̀sem! iml&i$"i#$t"i#fliuvUVLHPVF]P wx93



���������	��
����������������������
����������������
����������	���
�	����������	��������������
���������������������������������	�
���
��������������������
������������������������
���������
�����������������������
�����������	�����������
���������	��������	��������
��������������������������
���
�������
��������������
�����
���� !"� #$%&�'(�)����*
�����*
��������+���
������������	���,�-������.�������/01/213/34 5
��
��6�
������7
�	��8����9�:3;3�5�����������<�������	�8��
���9�03/;;3/34�=	���;	���.+��=�>?;<@������	�=A����B�������>�
��C	@��������
� ����	��	���	����������
� 7�
�����
������
����� <��D��������)�	���
����
������
�����-������
������
����� <��D��������)�	�������
������
�����E�FG "HFIFJKLMNOPQ6��������� ;D�����	���������� R�������	�������7�
�����	��������������	�	����������6�������� 7
�����������6�������� =����
�����������������=����
������������������6�������� ;D���������
���>�6�@������� �
����
���
���������������� 7
�	�*
D��
�40/�D�
���*
���
��6����������
�������
��D�
���
����������������LMNOPSTQQUQVNWXPY�������������� Y�������������� 6������������������ ���	�������������������������ZM[WVS\]Q̂PWQU[W����D�
�������
�� 7�
�������D�
���� ��������
����	���������
�� 8�	����	������
����������
���������
���������
�� ��������
�����������
�ZM[WVS\̂MUW_-��������
���������� -��������
���������� ����������
�� 7�
����
���������P̀NMS\̂MUW_������������ -�����
��������� -����������� -���������	��������������P̀NMS\]Q̂PWQU[W����D�
��������� -��������D�
���� ��������
�����������5���D�����������������
���������
����	����������� 8�	����	����������������
�\VPPMUW_��������=��������
���D���������������������� ������������� -���D����
�������������������������������
������� 3D�������������������abJ �F&�ZM[WVScdPPeQ7�
���������	������� :2f 7�
�����������	�� 2fP̀NMScdPPeQ-����������	������� :2f -������������	�� 2fgg94



���������	��
����������������������
����������������
����������	���
�	����������	��������������
���������������������������������	�
���
��������������������
������������������������
���������
�����������������������
�����������	�����������
���������	��������	��������
��������������������������
���
�������
��������������
�����
���� !"� #$%&�'(�)����*
�����*
��������+���
������������	���,�-������.�������/01/213/34 5
��
��6�
������7
�	��8����9�:3;3�5�����������<�������	�8��
���9�03/;;3/34�=	���;	���.+��=�>?;<@������	�=A����B�������>�
��C	@DEFGHIJGKILMNEIOPMMQR���������� ����� 5������ �������DEFGHISTEMR������ 0/ +������� :2U��	���� 6�. ����	 V(���	 �� (��� �.�	�� 3;W��LMNEISTEMR������ 0/ +������� :2U��	���� 6�. ����	 V(���	 �� (��� �.�	�� 3;W��X&#Y$Z[\ �]&�_̂HMETFEIDMNH̀EMRa������
��	

�� ;�	

��bFKc6
	������� 7���������)�	�������
	��������������	��������������deNEMISTEMfg!"� $\]� h&i!"j\$k!"� $\]� $l]\m$k\  nlm  n fg!"� $\]� $n&j"\]&og!"� $\]� $i&po\ #$po# �\m $j"�q&$%n&&�JMEFKcGNrTsR��
��� -���������
���h&ot o] oj uFFEIvFswR+

��
��� �
����	

��
���������3��������
����� 7
����������
���
�8���������������������������������	�x��������������	����������
������?���
��	

��
��� ?���
����������	�	

��
��� �x��x
�������x��x
������
����
����	�������
�������
�	

��
��� ���
x
������	

�� (��������
���
 �
�����������1�����	

��
��yÈTRMIyFGHEFQ*�������
���
 *�������
���
��������������������
����	��
���
�zMcIDF{IyFGHEFQR |}95



���������	��
����������������������
����������������
����������	���
�	����������	��������������
���������������������������������	�
���
��������������������
������������������������
���������
�����������������������
�����������	�����������
���������	��������	��������
��������������������������
���
�������
��������������
�����
���� !"� #$%&�'(�)����*
�����*
��������+���
������������	���,�-������.�������/01/213/34 5
��
��6�
������7
�	��8����9�:3;3�5�����������<�������	�8��
���9�03/;;3/34�=	���;	���.+��=�>?;<@������	�=A����B�������>�
��C	@?���
������
��
���
� ?���
���������
���
 7
�����
�����������
���
� 7
�	�����*
�����������	��������������������
���
7
�����	
���
���
� ?���
�����	
���
���
DEFGHIJEKHLJGGMG+��1N������������������
� +��1N�����������������
�OPQEGJMGHLJGGMGR+

������
�� �
����	

������
�� 7
	����	

������
��5������
	����	

������
��SGMTQHUJVEHWJTVMKR7����X�
�����	
�� �
���������X�
�����	
��SYMMGHZMTRMYE7

���
��
� 7���

���
��
� 7

���
��
����
���� *
����	��

���
��
���
����[\EG]EFVHZMTRMYE�̂�����	��
��
� 5����
������	��
��
� �̂�����	��
��
����
���� �̂�����	��
��
���
����_GJ\EGHIJRMG�̀�
��	����������
� +���������
������
� �̀�
����������	�	����������
� 8�������	�	��������
������
�aFRRETbEGHIJRMG�̀�
����������������
� �������������
������
� �̀�
����������	���������������
� 8�������	�������������
������
�aMKEGH[cQYEQR:3̀��
����
����� 3�:3̀��
����
�����ZFGbMHSEFQcGER*���
�����	
��� *���
����������	
��� *���
����� *���
����������*
�����	�����
���
����*���
�������
�����	��
����ZFGbMHdGJe*���
��

������ *����������
�������

� (������	����� ��������������	�����aEVFYR+�������

������ +�������

������DEFGHWJTVR]JEYV-�������	
��	���
���� -�������	
��	���
���� -�������	����	 7�f�	���������	����	-�������	����	������� 7�f�	����������������	����	������� gh96



���������	��
����������������������
����������������
����������	���
�	����������	��������������
���������������������������������	�
���
��������������������
������������������������
���������
�����������������������
�����������	�����������
���������	��������	��������
��������������������������
���
�������
��������������
�����
���� !"� #$%&�'(�)����*
�����*
��������+���
������������	���,�-������.�������/01/213/34 5
��
��6�
������7
�	��8����9�:3;3�5�����������<�������	�8��
���9�03/;;3/34�=	���;	���.+��=�>?;<@������	�=A����B�������>�
��C	@DEFGHIJ+

���������
��+��������	�����������	

������ +

����������� -����	

������K������
������������
	���2�����������
	��� 6���������
	��� 7�
�������������
	���6���������
	�������� -��������������
	��� <
����
L M
�������
����
L8�����������������
���� 8������������������ +����
��	���
���� +����
��	���
���������������
������
����� 3������������
�����
�����NOPQFRSTUJHEVGJW��X�
����������	
� +��������	����������
��X�
����������	
�� W��X�
����	
������	
� +��������	����������
��X�
����	
������	
��NOPQFRSTYJHGTDOQJ���
�	X�
�����	
�� �
�������
�	X�
����	
�� (���	X�
�����	
�� 7�L�	�����	X�
�����	
��ZOS[J\\HPJFVS(�����
������ (�����
������ �-K+����8� �-K+����8�������
����
��� -������	�������
����
���]&̂ %&�_\̀OaHEJT̀FPEGF\*�������
���
 ���
��������������
���
 +��X)
�����
�����������
���
 +��X)
�����
����������
���
*�������������� *�������������� b
������������	���������
���
 b
���X��������	��������
���
-������	��������	���� -������	���������������
���
�	���� -�����
��
����������
���
�	���� -�����
��
���������
���
�	����cJHQ\OPJGd��	������������ *
������	������������ d��	������
������ 7�����	������
������eFFGTfGOa+

������������� b����	

������������� +

������������� 5���X

��	

�������������U\FFGTfGOa7

���
������ 7����������

���
������ 7

���
������ 7���

���
������7

������ *��������
�����	�������

������DJ[FPQgYFRTDJHETfGOa-������������
�����*
����������������
����� -����������������
����� *����������������������
�����DEJJGOPITNhJJ\�������������������
��� 5����������
���������������� ���������������������i���������������������jk97



���������	��
����������������������
����������������
����������	���
�	����������	��������������
���������������������������������	�
���
��������������������
������������������������
���������
�����������������������
�����������	�����������
���������	��������	��������
��������������������������
���
�������
��������������
�����
���� !"� #$%&�'(�)����*
�����*
��������+���
������������	���,�-������.�������/01/213/34 5
��
��6�
������7
�	��8����9�:3;3�5�����������<�������	�8��
���9�03/;;3/34�=	���;	���.+��=�>?;<@������	�=A����B�������>�
��C	@�����������������5�������������������������D "EF$"G#$H�IJKLMNOPMQMRSNT���������������� UVWXYNOKLMNZ+�����������	������
� +����������������;[���	������
����
���
� +������������
��1�����
���
 5�����	�����������
��1�����
���
���������������	������
� 7�
����������������������;[����	������
����
���
� �������
�������� 6��������
��������-���������������������� 5��������������������������� ����������������
��1�����
���
5��������������������
��1�����
���
7�
������	����������� \�������	����������
����������	����������� 7�
������	������������
���
 5�������
����������	������������
���
�����������
���������7�
���������������������� �����������
�����
���� 7�
�����������������
����-��������	����������5��������������	����������]LMWOKLMNZ6���������� -�������������� -������������̂�	�
�����
���� 7�̂�	�����������7
	�������
�	[�
������� 0/[;/��
	������������� -�����������
�	[�
������������5�����������������������-���������	������
� 7�
������������������� -����������
	�����
����
� 7
	��
����	�������������-�������	�����������\�������	��������������������	����������� -�������	������������
���
 5�����������������	������������
���
_������
����������	����������� 4��������������	���������� ������������� -�����������������������àbcMWOKLMNZ+����������� 5�����	����������������VWXYNOKLMNOdWSb7�
�����������
�����*
�����
�����������
����� 7�
���������������
����� *
�����
��������������
�����eYNLWSXWOfRRLYNZ8�����
���������*��
�����	�����[

��������
��������gLMWZhSiNLWOjMNLWSMk<������������������ 5���[

���������������������PXYZXkLOdWSb lm98



���������	��
����������������������
����������������
����������	���
�	����������	��������������
���������������������������������	�
���
��������������������
������������������������
���������
�����������������������
�����������	�����������
���������	��������	��������
��������������������������
���
�������
��������������
�����
���� !"� #$%&�'(�)����*
�����*
��������+���
������������	���,�-������.�������/01/213/34 5
��
��6�
������7
�	��8����9�:3;3�5�����������<�������	�8��
���9�03/;;3/34�=	���;	���.+��=�>?;<@������	�=A����B�������>�
��C	@*
��
����������������5���D

���
��
��������EFG �G"HFI FG$J "GK� LMNOPOQRSTUVR���������
����������	��������������
���������	����� W������
�������D�
��X*+�	������4��
����������
�:����
��	������X*+���������	��������)� :3��������������X*+	�����YUZQ[P\]Û_̀]R=a���������
�� �bW*�;��a���������
���
���
 ��������� ���������cS]Ud]̀R�������� ����	��	����	���������� ��������������� 0e_ZQ[P\]Û_̀]R����������
����	���	�
��
���
 ��������������
����	���	�
��
���
� ����	������������
�������	������������
���f
������������	���	�
 �bW*�;��
������������	��	�
��
���
� .���������������� 6���

�������������	�
���������gHhiGHFhj$kHLHlHmHGn$"F#$oFLG�KI FG"GH&FpqR̂̀_r]q̂PsUq]TPt̀Qr�����������5���D

������������������������pqR̂̀_r]q̂ÛQ[q(����
	
����� (����
	
����� 8������������
��	����� +�����1���
��������������
��	�����*
�����������������������
��������*
����������������������
��������pqR̂̀_r]q̂ÛQ[qPOQRSTUVR(�����������	����� =a����
�������������	����� +���������
�����
�������� +���������
�����
�������*
�� 8�D	�����
�� *
����� *
�����pqR̂̀_r]q̂ÛQ[qPuU_v]R(���
����� (���
����� =�����1���������
�
������������������ =�����1���������
�
������������������pqR̂̀_r]q̂ÛQ[qPwÙqQqvRx������������������ x������������������ X
��
��������� X
��
���������X
������������� X
������������� X
������������	�������� X
������������	������� yz99



���������	��
����������������������
����������������
����������	���
�	����������	��������������
���������������������������������	�
���
��������������������
������������������������
���������
�����������������������
�����������	�����������
���������	��������	��������
��������������������������
���
�������
��������������
�����
���� !"� #$%&�'(�)����*
�����*
��������+���
������������	���,�-������.�������/01/213/34 5
��
��6�
������7
�	��8����9�:3;3�5�����������<�������	�8��
���9�03/;;3/34�=	���;	���.+��=�>?;<@������	�=A����B�������>�
��C	@D
�����������	��������D
�����������	�������� 6��������������������� 6���������������������E��	������
�������	��E��	������
�������	�� ?�������������������� ?��������������������+

�������������� +

�������������� (������������ -��������
������������������������������������ 8���������F�GD���5
���
��������������������	����
� D
����������������������� (�������������
���������������������HIJKK(����	����	
�� +���������	����	
��LMJNIOPQRKE��	�����D=+�
����	��������������	����� E��	��������� ��
����
����������	��������
����	��������
�������
�
�1
������	�����
���
 5���������	�����5���������
��	����	�����+����
������	����� +���G
������	����� ���
�����G��������	����� 7
�	�*
G��
�40/�G���
�E����6�������
�����G��������	�����+-D������������������� +-D�������������������STUVRWXOVNKQOMIN.����� Y����������������������
������	����	������ ����	����������������� ����	�����������������ZVRMTOUTW[OPQROVP8�������	������ 8�������	������ 8�������	�������
�������� 8�������	�������
�������Y���������������� Y�������������������������� 7�
������	��������� 7�
������	���������-�������	��������� -�������	���������[OPQRK-������������ D=+�	�������������������� 8�����
���
������������ 7�	��������
���
�����������D=+������������ D=+������������ E�����
������
������E�����
����	����������
�����\ ]̂_&̀&ab$"_#$\ ̀ c"de]fgUVVMhROiORjE��	����� 6���

������	�������������	�������
���������� ������	���������������
��kl*�;����D���1����*�����1��	�
�	����
�������	�����������������
����=����������F� �kl*�;�m::������������������F��������������
����	�����ZVRMTVMRWnhhMKK8�������������� 7
�	�����*
������;<��
����
���
����������������� op100



���������	��
����������������������
����������������
����������	���
�	����������	��������������
���������������������������������	�
���
��������������������
������������������������
���������
�����������������������
�����������	�����������
���������	��������	��������
��������������������������
���
�������
��������������
�����
���� !"� #$%&�'(�)����*
�����*
��������+���
������������	���,�-������.�������/01/213/34 5
��
��6�
������7
�	��8����9�:3;3�5�����������<�������	�8��
���9�03/;;3/34�=	���;	���.+��=�>?;<@������	�=A����B�������>�
��C	@DEFGHIJKLM�6��
��� 3�M�6��
���N"% OP$"Q#$N RS�TOPUVJWXYL7�
�����������������	����� +��������
��������������� Z������
��������� 2��������7�
�������������������������� ������������
��������������� ?���������� +��������	�������������	������������7�
�����	����������������	�����������
����	���	��������	������������ 7�
�����	�������������������������������
����	��	�����������
�������������������[�������������
� �������
�������������
� [������	�������� �������*��
�������������������������	����
�	\�
��
������	�������E]XKW]̂KL4\�
����������� -����������������4\�
���������� _�������	���������������� 7�
����������	��������������������������������
���� 7�
�����	���������������������
���� ����������������
����������� ;�������������\�����
����E]̀aJVKbGEbLK]c8��
���)�� ������d
������
���)�� -��
������������� -��
�������������ÙKVe]GfJVeVgYGULLVLKXg̀]d����	�������� d����?����������� 6��	���
� 6d8��>6��	���
��8��
�����
�������@7
����	��
���
������������
������=��������6�������>�=6@��
����	��
���
����������
� -�����
���
��������� *�
��\(������������
���
�����������	��������	������
� ���\*
���
���������������	��������+������
� +�������������
���
���
� +����������-��������	�	��������
	�5�?������������	�	�������
	�hXc]JXL-���������� 7
�	�*
\��
�40/�\�-������*�����������������������������iJX̀KVIgGhIgKJÎ=����
��������������
���
 �	�����(�����1-
���������*
���
������
��������������
���
����������������\�
j̀ àkXgKGEXl]Kb mn101



���������	��
����������������������
����������������
����������	���
�	����������	��������������
���������������������������������	�
���
��������������������
������������������������
���������
�����������������������
�����������	�����������
���������	��������	��������
��������������������������
���
�������
��������������
�����
���� !"� #$%&�'(�)����*
�����*
��������+���
������������	���,�-������.�������/01/213/34 5
��
��6�
������7
�	��8����9�:3;3�5�����������<�������	�8��
���9�03/;;3/34�=	���;	���.+��=�>?;<@������	�=A����B�������>�
��C	@*��	�	

��
��� 5�������������	��������	

�
��� DE102



���������	��
����������������������
����������������
����������	���
�	����������	��������������
���������������������������������	�
���
��������������������
������������������������
���������
�����������������������
�����������	�����������
���������	��������	��������
��������������������������
���
�������
��������������
�����
���� !"� #$%&�'(�)����*
�����*
��������+���
������������	���,�-������.�������/01/213/34 5
��
��6�
������7
�	��8����9�:3;3�5�����������<�������	�8��
���9�03/;;3/34�=	���;	���.+��=�>?;<@.�������AB"C#"�#$D"��"CBEFGHIJKLGMMGNOP6������������� 40��
����140�///�����QRSTMOMGINKLGMMGNOP�
����������������� 0/��
����10/�///�����URMMRHIRNKQTMVRMGOIRN*
��
��
������
����
���������� 0/��
����1�������	WRGXHIXTKYHHIHOGNJTKLGMMGNOP-
�	��	���������� 0/��
����10/�///�����Z[103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



 
 

TAZEWELL COUNTY 
TITLE VI PROGRAM  

 
Purpose 

Introduction: 
 

Tazewell County is committed to ensuring that no person is excluded from participation in, or 
denied the benefits of, or subjected to discrimination in the receipt of any of Tazewell County 
services on the basis of race, color, or national origin. The contents of this program have been 
prepared in accordance with Section 601 of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Executive 
Order 13116.. 
 
Tazewell County is committed to a workplace complaint to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964.  

 
Under the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and as a recipient of federal funding under the programs of 
the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and the US Department of Transportation, Tazewell 
County has an obligation to ensure that: 

 • A program is in place for correcting any discrimination, whether intentional or 
unintentional; 

 • The benefits of services that are provided within the County are shared equitably 
throughout the county; 

 • No one is precluded from participating in Tazewell County’s service planning and 
development process; 

 • The level and quality of services are sufficient to provide equal access to all riders in 
its service area; 

 • Decisions regarding service changes or facility locations are made without regard to 
race, color, or national origin.  

Definitions: 
Tazewell County recognizes that the definitions in Chapter 53 of title 49, United States Code, and 
in 49 CFR part 21 apply to FTA Circular 4702.1 B.  Tazewell County uses the following 
definitions: 

 
Discrimination   refers to any action or inaction, whether intentional or unintentional, in any 
program or activity of a federal aid recipient, sub-recipient, or contractor that results in disparate 
treatment, disparate impact, or perpetuating the effects of prior discrimination based on race, 
color, or national origin. 

 
Limited  English  Proficiency  (LEP) Person  refers to persons for whom  English  is not their 
primary  language   and  who  have  a  limited  ability  to  read,  write,  speak,  or  understand 
English.  It includes people who reported to the U.S. Census that they speak English less than 
very well, not well, or not at all. 

 
 

127



Low-Income Person means a person whose median household income is at or below the 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services poverty guidelines. 
 
Minority Person includes the following: 

 
1.   American   Indian and Alaska  Native, which  refers to people  having  origins  in any of 

the  original  peoples  of North  and South  America  (including  Central  America), and 
who  maintain  tribal affiliation  or community  attachment. 

2.  Asian,  which  refers to people  having  origins  in any of the original  peoples  of the Far  
East,  Southeast   Asia,  or  the  Indian  subcontinent,   including,   for  example, Cambodia,  
China,  India, Japan,  Korea, Malaysia,  Pakistan,  the Philippine  Islands, Thailand,  and 
Vietnam. 

3. Black or African American, which refers to people having origins in any of the Black 
racial groups of Africa. 

4. Hispanic   or  Latino,  which  includes  persons  of  Cuban,  Mexican,   Puerto  Rican, 
South or Central American,  or other Spanish  culture  or origin,  regardless  of race. 

5. Native  Hawaiian  or Other Pacific  Islander, which  refers to people  having origins  in 
any of the original  peoples  of Hawaii,  Guam, Samoa,  or other  Pacific  Islands. 

 
 

General Requirements: 
 
 

•    Tazewell County Board Resolution Approval 
 
 

•    Notifying Beneficiaries of Their Rights under Title VI 
 
 

•   Title VI Complaint Procedure 
 
 

•    Title VI Complaint Form 
 
 

•    Record of Title VI Investigations Complaints and Lawsuits 
 
 

•    Inclusive Public Participation 
 
 

•    Provide Meaningful Access to LEP Persons 
 
 

•    Demographic Data 
 
 

•    Minority Representation on Planning and Advisory Bodies 
 
 

•    System-Wide Service Standards and Policies 
 
 

•    Monitoring Procedures and Efforts 
128



 
 

STATE OF ILLINOIS                    )     TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD 
 )    SS. 

COUNTY OF TAZEWELL             )      July 26, 2023 
 
 

RESOLUTION  _____ 
 Tazewell County Title VI Program  

 
WHEREAS, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, requires that “no person in 
the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, or nation origin, be excluded from 
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any 
program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance;” and 
 
WHEREAS, Tazewell County contracts with TCRC dba We Care, Inc. to provide 
transportation services for the residents of Tazewell County; and  
 
WHEREAS, TCRC dba We Care, Inc.is funded through Federal Funds; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the FTA requires recipients and sub-recipients of federal public transportation 
funds to submit, every three years, at Title VI program update as a condition of receipt of 
FTA financial assistance; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the intent of Tazewell County to adopt the 2023 to 2026 Title VI Program 
with subsequent submission to the FTA. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
1. That the Tazewell County Board hereby authorizes and adopts the Title VI Program. 
2. That the Tazewell County Chairman, or his designee, is hereby authorized to administer to 

provide such information as may be required to submit the Title VI Program to the FTA. 
 
ADOPTED by a majority vote of all the members of the Tazewell County Board this 26th day 
of July, A. D. 2023. 

 
 ATTEST: 
 

 
 ______________________________   ______________________________ 
 John Ackerman      David Zimmerman 
 Clerk of the Tazewell County Board   Chairman of  Tazewell County Board 

129



 
 

Notifying Beneficiaries of Their Rights under Title VI: 
 
To make Tazewell County residents aware of its commitment to Title VI compliance, and of 
their right to file a complaint, Tazewell County has presented the following language on its 
website (www.tazewell-il.gov). 

 
The following is the Tazewell County Title VI Notice: 

 
Notifying the Public of Rights under Title VI  

 
• Tazewell County operates without regard to race, color, and national origin in accordance 

with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act. Any person who believes he or she has been aggrieved 
by any unlawful discriminatory practice under Title VI may file a complaint with Tazewell 
County.  

 
•  For more information on Tazewell County’s procedures to file a complaint, contact Tazewell 

County Human Resource (HR) Department (309) 478-5813; fax (309) 478-5614 or email the 
office at: hr@tazewell-il.gov. 

 
• A complainant may file a complaint directly with the Federal Transit Administration by filing 

a complaint with the Office of Civil Rights, Attention: Title VI Program Coordinator, East 
Building, 5th Floor-TCR, 1200 New Jersey Ave., SE, Washington, DC 20590. 

 
•    If information is needed in another language, contact the Tazewell County HR department 
      at (309) 478-5813. 

 
Title VI Complaint Procedure: 

 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, 
color and national origin for programs and activities receiving federal financial assistance. As a 
recipient of federal financial assistance, Tazewell County has in place the following complaint 
procedure. 

 
1.   Any person who believes that he or she, or any specific class of persons, has been 

subjected to discrimination or retaliation by Tazewell County’s administration of 
federally funded programs, as prohibited by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as 
amended, and related statutes, may file a written complaint. Tazewell County investigates 
complaints received no more than 180 days after the alleged incident. 

 
Written complaints shall be sent to: 

Tazewell County HR, 11 S. 4th St., Suite 114, Pekin, IL 61554 
 

2.  Verbal and non-written complaints received by Tazewell County shall be resolved 
informally by the Tazewell County HR Department. If the issue has not been 
satisfactorily resolved through informal means, or if at any time the complainant requests 

130

http://(www.tazewell-il.gov)/
mailto:hr@tazewell-il.gov


to file a formal written complaint, the Complainant shall be permitted to do so, and the 
complaint shall follow the process for written complaints. 

 
3.  Within   thirty   (30)  calendar   days  of  receipt of  the complaint(s), the  Tazewell County 

HR Department will  acknowledge  receipt of the complaint(s),  inform  the complainant 
of  proposed action to process the complaint(s),and advise the complainant  of other 
avenues. 

 
4.  Within one-hundred twenty (120) calendar days of receipt of the complaint(s), the HR 

Department will conduct and complete a full investigation of the complaint(s) and,   based 
on the information obtained,   will render a recommendation for action in a report of 
findings to the Board.  A resolution with no actions will be recommended if the complaint 
is found not valid or questionable. 

 
5.  Within thirty days (30) calendar days of the completion of the full investigation (one 

hundred fifty (150) calendar days since the original receipt of the complaint(s)), the HR 
Department will notify the complainant in writing of the final decision reached.   The 
notification will advise the complainant of his or her right to submit a request for 
reconsideration within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of the notice of disposition 
is issued.  Appeals will be reviewed within thirty (30) calendar days from the dated 
request for reconsideration.   

 
 

7.  The Tazewell County HR Department will maintain a log of all verbal and non-written   
complaints received.     The log will include the following information: 

 
 

•    Name of complainant 
•    Name of respondent 
•    Basis of complaint 
•    Date complaint received 
• Explanation of the actions taken or proposed to resolve the issue raised 

in the complaint 
 

8.  A person may also file a complaint directly with the Federal Transit Administration at: 
Office of Civil Rights 
Attention:  Title VI Program Coordinator 
East Building 5th Floor-TCR 
1200 New Jersey Avenue SE 
Washington,   DC, 20590 

 
 
 
 

131



 
The County Board will conduct a review of all Title VI complaints received.   Corrective actions 
taken at the time of each resolution will be reviewed in these quarterly sessions.     

SECTION l 
Name: 
Address: 
Telephone:    (          )             - 
Accessible Format requirements? (circle)    Large Print    TDD    Audio     Other 

SECTION ll 
Are you filing the complaint on your own behalf?   Yes_____  No_____ 
If yes, go to SECTION lll. 
 
Name & relationship of the person for whom you are filing the complaint: 
 
 
Please explain why you have filed for a third party: 
 
 
You do___or do not___ have permission from the aggrieved third party to file 
complaint. 

SECTION lll 
I believe the discrimination I experienced was based on (check all that apply): 
     _____Race        ____Color         _____National Origin      ____Disability 
Date of alleged discrimination (Month, Day, Year):_______________________ 
 
Explain as clearly as possible what happened and why you believe you were 
discriminated against.  Describe all persons who were involved. Include the 
name and contact information of the person(s) who discriminated against you 
(if known) as well as names and contact information of any witnesses.  If more 
space is needed, please use back of this form.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

132



 
SECTION lV 

Have you previously filed a complaint with the County   ____Yes   ____No 
SECTION V 

Have you filed this complaint with any other Federal, State or local agency, or 
with any Federal or State Court?        ____Yes    _____No 

 
If yes, check all that apply: 
___Federal Agency:____________________________________________ 
___Federal Court:_____________________________________________ 
___State Court:_______________________________________________ 
___State Agency: _____________________________________________ 
___Local Agency: _____________________________________________ 

 
Please provide information about a contact person at the agency/court where 
complaint was filed: 
 
Name: 
Title: 
Agency/Court 
Telephone 

SECTION Vl 
Printed name: 
Signature:                                                                                  Date: 

Form must be signed and dated 
Include additional information here (or attach addition sheet as needed, indicate below) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____Check if additional sheet is attached 

*****For Office Use Only***** 
Received by:                                                                           Date: 

Please submit this form in person or by mail to: Tazewell County HR Department, 11 S. 4th St., 
Suite 114, Pekin, IL 61554 

133



 
Record of Title VI Investigations Complaints and Lawsuits: 

 
 

All FTA recipients are required to prepare and maintain a list of any complaints alleging 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin. Tazewell County has not had any 
Title VI investigations, complaints, or lawsuits. 

 
Inclusive Public Participation: 

 
 

The Tazewell County Board meets monthly, with all meetings open to the public. A time is 
allotted for the public to comment on any issue at each meeting. The Tazewell County Board 
Secretary maintains a list of persons and organizations that wish to receive information from the 
County. Information sent to those on the list include Board meeting agendas and minutes, 
appointments, resolutions/ordinances, monthly financial statements, monthly claims, budget 
documents, and quarterly reports along with any new business information. Persons and 
organizations can be added to the list at their request for no charge. 

 
 

Tazewell County seeks to understand public comments/concerns by meeting to investigate ways 
to reduce or eliminate any negative impacts. 
Persons and organizations are afforded an opportunity to provide input in several ways: 

•    By e-mail 
•    By telephone 
•    In writing 
•    In person by coming into the Board Office at 11 S. 4th St., Pekin, IL (by appt.) 
•    In person at Committee meetings 
•  In person at public meetings conducted by the Tazewell County Board.  

Meetings are held in the Justice Center at 101 S. Capitol on the last 
Wednesday of each month at 6:00 P.M. 

 
Tazewell County’s public input process emphasizes two-way communication. The intention is 
not just to receive comments, but to be transparent in all government matters.  In many cases 
several messages or a conversation takes place. 

 
 

Provide Meaningful Access to LEP Persons 
Limited English Proficiency Plan (LEP) 

 
 

The purpose of the Language Assistance Implementation plan (hereinafter "plan") is to meet 
Federal Transit Administration's (FTA's) requirements to comply with obligations of Executive 
Order  13166 and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of race, color, or national origin, including limited English proficiency.  As a sub-recipient 
of FTA funds, the County is pledged to take reasonable steps to provide meaningful access to its 

134



citizens for person who do not speak English as their primary language and who limited ability 
to read, speak, write, or understand English.  The FTA refers to these persons as Limited English 
Proficient (LEP) persons. 

 
 

The U.S. DOJ's Federal Coordination and Compliance Section (FCS) publication Language 
Access Assessment Planning Tool for Federally Conducted and Federally Assisted Programs 
was used in the preparation of this plan. 

 
 
  This plan contains: 

A.  A needs assessment based on the four-factor analysis 
B.  Language assistance measures 
C. Staff training plan 
D. Methods for notifying LEP person about available language assistance 
E. Methods for monitoring, evaluating and updating plan 

 
 

Part I 
Four Factor Analysis  

 
LEP guidance requires a four factor analysis to determine the level of assistance required to 
provide meaningful access. The assessment performed by the County is contained within this 
document. 

 
 

I. 
The Number or Proportion of LEP Persons served or 

encountered by the program or recipient.  
 

Utilizing available US Census Bureau data, Tazewell County was able to determine that of 
125,847 persons within Tazewell County's service area, 2.7 % speak a language other than 
English at home.  Of those speaking another language at home .07% reported as having a limited 
English proficiency. Persons of limited English proficiency, or LEP, indicated on the census that 
they speak English less than "very well". 

 
Of the portion of respondents with a limited English proficiency, the following information is 
provided: 

 
 

Language Spoken at Home  Total % 
Total  Population  - Service Area 125,847  
Language  other than English      3,449 2.7 

Speak  English  less than "very well"     828   .7 
Spanish  1693  1.3 

Speak  English  less than "very well"       499    .4 

135



Other  lndo-European   languages 759    .6 
Speak  English  less than "very well"   53    .1 

Asian  and Pacific  Islander  languages 878    .7 
Speak  English  less than "very well" 250    .2 

Other  languages 119    .1 
Speak  English  less than "very well"    6    .0 

 
 

(a)   Information obtained from the U.S. Census Bureau (quickfacts) 
(b)  Information obtained from 2010 American Community Survey Language 
Spoken at Home Information.  

 
II. 

The Frequency That People of Limited English Proficiency Come Into Contact 
With the Programs, Activities, and Services 

 
Tazewell County has had no requests for translated materials or interpreters. 

 
III. 

The Importance of Tazewell County’s Programs, Activities, and 
Services to Persons of Limited English Proficiency 

 
Tazewell County is a suburban and rural area operating as a county government.  Its contact 
with LEP individuals is limited; however Tazewell County ensures that its LEP population 
groups are afforded the opportunity to participate in the services.    
 

IV. 
 

Resources Available to Customers and the Associated Costs 
 

Although Tazewell County will provide translators upon request at no cost to the citizen, there 
have been no requests for translated materials or interpreters.    

 
Conclusion 

 
Based on the above four factors, Tazewell County will continue to monitor the LEP population 
and continue to rely on local community organizations for aid in language interpreting, while 
outlining additional steps to give meaningful access to persons of limited English proficiency. 
These steps are outlined in the next pages as part of the county’s Limited English Proficiency 
Plan. 

  

136



Part II: 
Tazewell County’s Limited English Proficiency Plan  

Identification of Limited English Persons and Notices 
 

Tazewell County employees make every reasonable effort to accommodate all customers, 
regardless of the challenge.  In order to ensure persons of limited English proficiency have 
meaningful access to services, employees should follow these few guidelines: 

 
 

a. Examine requests for language assistance from past meetings or events to 
anticipate future language service needs; 

b.  At any future outreach meetings, an employee member will be at the door to greet 
any people entering the meeting and should also be tasked with identifying any 
persons of limited English proficiency; 

c.  Maintain a tabulation of persons requiring language assistance, including 
individuals that provide their own interpreting service. 

 
 

Language Assistance Measures 
 
Tazewell County's following procedures are based on the relatively low need for language 
service and the limited resources that can be dedicated for this purpose. 

 
 

1. Attempt to determine what language is required; 
2. If the person can speak some English, try to discern their needs without the help of 

language service; 
3. Oral Interpretation: Staff that are bi-lingual will attempt to communicate with LEP 

individuals in their native languages; 
4. Oral Interpretation Telephone support will utilize services of a professional telephone 

interpretation service when needed; 
5. For help with translating individual words, visit https://www.babelfish.com/ for a 

free translator; 
6. In limited instances where telephone interpretation services or bilingual staff are 

insufficient, Tazewell County will provide LEP individuals with the following community 
organizations for language services: 

 
Western Community Center 
600 N. Western Ave 
Bloomington, IL  61701 
(309) 829-4807 

 
      Language Line 
      866-874-3972  
 

137

http://www.babelfish.com/


       
•     If the above does not work, the citizen will be given a copy of the list of agencies so 

they can call for assistance; 
•       Should it be necessary, and all other options are exhausted, employees may use 

any other creative means of communicating with the person of limited English 
proficiency. 

Training and Coordination 
 
 
Tazewell County will provide training on LEP awareness and required assistance actions under 
the Language Assistance Plan for employees. This will include: 

1.   Employees be given an opportunity to review this Language Assistance Plan ("LAP"); 
2.  Informing staff of their responsibilities related to LEP persons 
3.  Each department will be given a hardcopy of this plan to consult should the need arise; 
4.  Customer service employees will also be directed to keep a record of any language 

assistance requests. 
 
Tazewell County will continue to update the LEP analysis and address staff with questions and 
issues related to LEP matters. 
 

Outreach Techniques 
 
Tazewell County has a low need for language service but will make every effort to service and 
assist the LEP population in communication efforts. Tazewell County will continue to monitor 
the LEP citizen and update our outreach efforts as well as future options should the need arise. 

 
Monitoring and Updating the LEP Plan 

 
This plan is meant to be a flexible guide and reference tool for employees. It should be updated 
when it becomes necessary, but minimally it should follow the Title VI Program's update 
schedule.   This plan will be revisited once the Census 2020 data becomes available, as this will 
help identify any unmet needs. 

 
Future revisions and updates to this plan will be based upon the following: 

 
• LEP populations in the service area or population encountered; 
• Frequency of encounters with LEP language groups; 
• Availability  of  resources,  including  technological  advances  and  sources  of additional 

resources, and the costs imposed; 
• Whether existing assistance is meeting the needs of LEP persons; 
• Whether employees know and understand the LEP plan and how to implement it; 
• Whether identified sources for assistance are still available and viable. 

 
 

 
 

138



Minority Representation on Planning and Advisory Bodies: 

The Tazewell County Board meets once a month on the last Wednesday of each month at      6:00 
PM in the County Board room located at 101 S. Capitol, Pekin, IL   The demographics of the 
Tazewell County Board is 100% Caucasian. Any Tazewell County citizen may run for County 
Board.     

System-Wide Service Standards and Policies: Introduction 
 

Tazewell County only receives FTA funds by operating as a pass-through for FTA funds.    
Tazewell County has no restrictions and is fully complaint with FTA’s requirements determined 
by the examination of grant management, program implementation, and audits.    
 
The Service Standards and Policies are a planning and decision making guide, and not a rigid set 
of rules.  It does not limit the discretion of the Board to approve, deny or modify any proposed or 
existing service.  It may be necessary, from time to time, to revise as local, State, or Federal 
guidelines, regulations and circumstances may dictate. 
 

 
Sub-recipient Assistance and Monitoring 

 
Tazewell County receives Federal Grant Funds for a sub-recipient which offers transportation 
throughout Tazewell County.  This sub-recipient offers rides to any and all Tazewell County 
citizens and the disabled, but is not a transit system.  All rides are scheduled through the sub-
recipient’s office.   Tazewell County ensures that this financial assistance is passed through to 
the sub-recipient in a non-discriminatory manner.  The sub-recipient is required to provide the 
Program Compliance Oversight Manager (PCOM) reports on a monthly basis.  These reports 
include number of citizens serviced, miles traveled, safety issues, financial information, 
complaints, investigations, accidents, driver evaluations, and compliance information. The 
PCOM attends monthly meetings of the sub-recipient and oversees the operations. The PCOM 
also oversees that the sub-recipient is in compliance with all DOT’s Title VI regulations.    
 

Conclusion 
On  an  annual   basis  Tazewell County signs  the  FTA's  Certifications   and  Assurances   which 
stipulates  that Tazewell County agrees to assure compliance  by any sub-recipients,   lessees, 
third party contractors,   or any other participant  involved  in an FTA grant award with all Title 
VI requirements.  . Tazewell County will submit an updated Title VI Program to the regional 
FTA Civil Rights Officer every three years. 
 
 

139



140



Invoice
Date

7/1/2023

Invoice #

2023_08-03

Bill To

Tazewell County
David Zimmerman
11 S. Fourth St., Suite 432
Pekin, IL 61554

401 NE Jefferson Ave.
Peoria IL 61603
Tel. (309) 495-5910

Due Date

8/31/2023

Total

Description Amount

2023 Investment  - 3 of 4 18,750.00

$18,750.00

141



142



AN ORDINANCE CREATING A PACE AREA AND ESTABLISHING THE ILLINOIS 
FINANCE AUTHORITY PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY PROGRAM FOR 
RECORD OWNERS OF PROPERTY THAT, FROM TIME TO TIME, MAY 
VOLUNTARILY REQUEST THE LEVY OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS TO SECURE 
THE FINANCING OR REFINANCING OF THEIR PACE PROJECTS; AUTHORIZING 
PROGRAM ADMINISTRATORS TO ACT THEREUNDER; DESIGNATING THE 
ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY AS THE SOLE ISSUER OF BONDS AND NOTES; 
AND APPROVING RELATED MATTERS 

 
 

WHEREAS, Tazewell County, a duly organized and validly existing County under 
the Constitution and the laws of the State of Illinois (the “Governmental Unit”), is a  non-home 
rule unit of local government of the State of Illinois, and is authorized pursuant to the Property 
Assessed Clean Energy Act, 50 ILCS 50/1 et seq., as amended (the “PACE Act”), to create a 
“PACE area” (as defined in the PACE Act) and establish a “property assessed clean energy 
program” or “program” (as defined in the PACE Act) to facilitate access to capital used by “record 
owners” (as defined in the PACE Act) of “property” (as defined in the PACE Act) for the financing 
or refinancing of “energy projects” (as defined in the PACE Act); and 

WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority, a body politic and corporate duly 
organized and validly existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Illinois (the 
“Authority”), is authorized to issue bonds or notes in accordance with the PACE Act and pursuant 
to subsection (d) of Section 825-65 of the Illinois Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1 et 
seq., to fund “PACE Projects” (as defined in the Illinois Finance Authority Act, and energy 
projects, which are known as “PACE Projects” herein), which bonds or notes will be secured, in 
part, by “assessments” (as defined in the PACE Act) levied on properties benefitted by PACE 
Projects as voluntarily requested by the record owners pursuant to “assessment contracts” (as 
defined in the PACE Act); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 10 of the PACE Act, the Governmental Unit may 
establish a program administered by either one or more than one “program administrator” (as 
defined in the PACE Act) for a PACE area on behalf of or at the discretion of the Governmental 
Unit, and under such program, the Governmental Unit, from time to time, may assign such 
assessment contracts to “permitted assignees” (as defined in the PACE Act), including the 
Authority, without competitive bidding or the solicitation of requests for proposals or requests for 
qualifications to fund PACE Projects; and 

WHEREAS, in order to lessen the burdens on counties and municipalities 
throughout Illinois that may desire to create PACE areas and establish property assessed clean 
energy programs, to attract “capital providers” (as defined in the PACE Act) to purchase bonds or 
notes issued by the Authority to fund PACE Projects throughout Illinois, and to assist record 
owners in the financing or refinancing of PACE Projects throughout Illinois, the Authority, 
pursuant to its Resolution 2022-0412-GP10, authorized the formation of Illinois C-PACE Open 
Market Initiative, d/b/a C-PACE Open Market Initiative, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation and 
component unit of the Authority (the “C-PACE Open Market Initiative”), to administer a 
nonpartisan, nonpolitical property assessed clean energy program for interested “governmental 
units” (as defined in the PACE Act) throughout Illinois (the “Illinois Finance Authority PACE 

143



Program”) for the benefit of a statewide, open market in which the “governing body” (as defined 
in the PACE Act) of each governmental unit may create a PACE area and establish the Illinois 
Finance Authority PACE Program pursuant to the procedures provided in Section 15 of the PACE 
Act by the adoption of an ordinance or resolution; and 

WHEREAS, as further described in the report of the Illinois Finance Authority 
PACE Program described below and attached hereto, the Authority shall be the sole issuer of any 
bonds or notes to finance or refinance PACE Projects of record owners that have applied and have 
been approved for such financing or refinancing under the Illinois Finance Authority PACE 
Program, and any such bonds or notes purchased by capital providers or any interim financing 
provided by a “warehouse fund” (as defined in the PACE Act) prior to the issuance of such bonds 
or notes shall not be general obligations of the State of Illinois or any governmental unit including 
the Governmental Unit; and 

WHEREAS, in consideration of the Governmental Unit’s desire to avoid the need 
to devote the time and resources necessary to develop and implement a property assessed clean 
energy program with the features of the Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program and to otherwise 
be required to issue bonds or notes to finance or refinance PACE Projects and incur the related 
compliance or accounting obligations, the Governmental Unit now desires to create a PACE area, 
to establish the Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program as a property assessed clean energy 
program for such PACE area that shall be administered on behalf of the Governmental Unit at all 
times by the C-PACE Open Market Initiative, to facilitate access to capital from more than one 
program administrator, and to benefit from the Authority issuing all bonds and notes to finance or 
refinance PACE Projects approved under the Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program in a 
statewide, open market; and 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of its participation in such statewide, open market, the 
Governmental Unit now desires to delegate to the C-PACE Open Market Initiative, among other 
things, the discretion to consider and approve capital providers or their affiliates as participants in  
the Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program to act as program administrators on a non-exclusive 
basis, for their own account and for the account of others of their choosing, to originate financings 
or refinancing of PACE Projects, to purchase or arrange for the purchases of the related bonds or 
notes issued by the Authority, to provide or arrange any related interim financing by a warehouse 
fund prior to the issuance of such bonds or notes, and to provide or arrange for the administration 
and servicing of such PACE Projects; and 

  

144



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY TAZEWELL COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Incorporation of the Recitals.  The Governmental Unit hereby 
finds that all of the statements contained in the recitals to this Ordinance are true, correct  and 
complete and are hereby incorporated by reference thereto and are made a part hereof. 

Section 2. Authorization of More than One Program Administrator.   

a. The Governmental Unit hereby authorizes the Illinois C-PACE Open Market 
Initiative to act as a program administrator (the “Program Sponsor” or the “PACE Area 
Administrator”) for the Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program on behalf of the Governmental 
Unit on the terms and pursuant to the conditions set forth in this Ordinance, including the report 
of the Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program, as provided herein and therein.   

b. The duties of the PACE Area Administrator are to act as a liaison to the 
Governmental Unit and its residents, taxpayers, and other interested persons as further described 
in the report of the Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program, to prescribe the terms and conditions 
whereby the Governmental Unit can facilitate access to capital from more than one program 
administrator, and to consider and approve capital providers or their affiliates to act as program 
administrators for one or more PACE Projects (each, a “PACE Project Administrator) under the 
Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program at the discretion of the Governmental Unit, which 
discretion is hereby delegated by the Governmental Unit to the PACE Area Administrator.  Each 
PACE Project Administrator shall be authorized, on a non-exclusive basis, for its own account and 
for the account of others of its choosing, to originate financings or refinancing of PACE Projects, 
to purchase or arrange for the purchases of the related bonds or notes issued by the Authority, to 
provide or arrange any related interim financing by a warehouse fund prior to the issuance of such 
bonds or notes, and to provide or arrange for the administration and servicing of such PACE 
Projects. 

c. Upon approval by the PACE Area Administrator to act as a program 
administrator for the Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program, each PACE Project Administrator 
shall be deemed to have agreed to perform the duties and obligations set forth in this Ordinance, 
including the duties and obligations set forth in the report of the Illinois Finance Authority PACE 
Program, as provided herein and therein, and any other duties or obligations necessary, 
appropriate, or desirable in connection with the Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program as the 
PACE Area Administrator may prescribe from time to time, as such duties and obligations are 
allocated among the Governmental Unit, the PACE Area Administrator, and the PACE Project 
Administrator, in each case, at the PACE Project Administrator’s sole cost and expense. 

d. The Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program shall terminate at such time as 
the Authority ceases to issue bonds or notes to fund PACE Projects, as evidenced by the notice 
hereinafter provided.  The PACE Area Administrator, as a component unit of the Authority, shall 
use its best efforts to provide at least sixty (60) calendar days prior written notice thereof to the 
Governmental Unit and provide at least thirty (30) calendar days prior written notice thereof to 
each PACE Project Administrator.  The Governmental Unit may terminate or suspend the Illinois 
Finance Authority PACE Program at any time, for any reason or no reason, after giving written 

145



notice thereof to the PACE Area Administrator at least sixty (60) calendar days before the 
termination or suspension is to be effective.  Upon receiving such written notice from the 
Governmental Unit, the PACE Area Administrator shall give written notice thereof to any PACE 
Project Administrator at least thirty (30) calendar days before the termination or suspension is to 
be effective.  The termination or suspension of the Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program shall 
not relieve the PACE Area Administrator and any PACE Project Administrator of their respective 
obligations incurred before such termination or suspension and that are required to be performed 
thereafter, all of which shall survive.   

e. Without limiting the right of the PACE Area Administrator to approve, deny, 
terminate, or suspend any PACE Project Administrator at its discretion, the Governmental Unit 
reserves the right to terminate or suspend any PACE Project Administrator at any time, for any 
reason or no reason, after giving written notice thereof to the PACE Area Administrator at least 
sixty (60) calendar days before the termination or suspension is to be effective.  Upon receiving 
such written notice from the Governmental Unit, the PACE Area Administrator shall give written 
notice thereof to the PACE Project Administrator at least thirty (30) calendar days before the 
termination or suspension is to be effective.  The termination or suspension of any PACE Project 
Administrator shall not relieve such PACE Project Administrator of its obligations incurred before 
such termination or suspension and that are required to be performed thereafter, all of which shall 
survive.   

Section 3. Designation of Illinois Finance Authority as Sole Issuer of Bonds 
or Notes; Creation of the PACE Area; Report of the Illinois Finance Authority PACE 
Program.  

a. The Governmental Unit hereby finds that the financing or refinancing of PACE 
Projects in a statewide, open market is a valid public purpose that furthers essential public and 
governmental purposes, including, but not limited to, reduced energy costs and greenhouse gas 
emissions, enhanced water quality and conservation, economic stimulation and development, 
improved property resiliency and valuation, and increased employment. 

b. The Governmental Unit intends to facilitate access to capital from more than 
one PACE Project Administrator as approved by the PACE Area Administrator and other capital 
providers or their designated transferees as approved by the Authority to provide funds for PACE 
Projects, which will be repaid by assessments on the properties benefitted with the agreement of 
the record owners. 

c. The Governmental Unit hereby designates the Authority to be the sole issuer of 
any bonds or notes under the Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program and hereby authorizes the 
Authority to assist record owners with any interim financing to be provided by a warehouse fund 
prior to the issuance of such bonds or notes under the Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program, 
in each case to fund PACE Projects approved under the Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program.  
The PACE Area Administrator may act as the PACE Project Administrator for one or more PACE 
Projects funded by interim financing provided by a warehouse fund established by the 
Governmental Unit or the Authority, if applicable, under the Illinois Finance Authority PACE 
Program.   

146



d. The Governmental Unit hereby creates a PACE area for the Illinois Finance 
Authority PACE Program that shall be coterminous with the entire corporate limits of the 
Governmental Unit (the “PACE Area”) for the benefit of a statewide, open market. 

e. The C-PACE Open Market Initiative has prepared the report of the Illinois 
Finance Authority PACE Program attached hereto as Exhibit A (as amended, supplemented, or 
modified from time to time by the PACE Area Administrator, the “Program Report”) in conformity 
with the PACE Act, setting forth, inter alia, the types of PACE Projects that may be financed or 
refinanced, or interim financed pursuant to this Ordinance.  The Program Report is hereby 
incorporated by reference thereto and made a part hereof.  The Governmental Unit hereby approves 
the Program Report.  The Program Report shall be made available for public inspection by the 
Governmental Unit in a manner deemed prudent in its sole discretion and shall be posted and 
reasonably made available at all times by the Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program on the 
following website: www.IFApace.com.  The PACE Area Administrator shall provide the 
Governmental Unit at least thirty (30) calendar days prior written notice of the effective date of 
any amendment, supplement, or modification of the Program Report. 

Section 4. No Public Hearing; Program Established.  The Governmental 
Unit hereby finds that no public hearing shall be required in connection with the adoption or 
amendment of the Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program and hereby establishes the Illinois 
Finance Authority PACE Program in accordance with this Ordinance and the  Program 
Report. 

Section 5. Assessment Contracts and Assignment Agreements.   

a. The Governmental Unit shall impose an assessment only pursuant to the terms 
of a recorded assessment contract with the record owner of the property to be assessed, the form 
of which shall be in substantially the form of Appendix A to the Program Report (each, an 
“Assessment Contract”).  The form of Assessment Contract enclosed as Appendix A to the 
Program Report is hereby approved by the Governmental Unit. 

b. The Governmental Unit shall assign Assessment Contracts pursuant to certain 
assignment agreements with the Authority as collateral for the financing or refinancing, or interim 
financing, of PACE Projects, the form of which shall be in substantially the form of Appendix B 
to the Program Report (each, an “Assignment Agreement”).  The form of Assignment Agreement 
enclosed as Appendix B to the Program Report is hereby approved by the Governmental Unit. 

c.   Any one of Chairman of the Board, County Administrator, Deputy County 
Administrator, or any person duly appointed by the Governmental Unit to serve in such offices on 
an interim basis or otherwise authorized to act as provided by an ordinance or resolution of the 
Governmental Unit, acting singly (each, an “Authorized Officer”), is hereby authorized to execute 
and deliver Assessment Contracts with record owners meeting the requirements set forth in the 
PACE Act and the Program Report and execute and deliver related Assignment Agreements with 
the Authority, in each case with such changes, deletions, and insertions as shall be approved by an 
Authorized Officer and such other supporting documents and instruments as may be necessary or 
appropriate to carry out and comply with the provisions of each Assessment Contract and 
Assignment Agreement.  The execution and delivery of such Assessment Contracts, Assignment 

147



Agreements, other contracts, agreements, documents, and instruments shall be conclusive 
evidence of the approval of the forms, terms and provisions thereof, including, without limitation, 
any changes, deletions, or insertions to the forms of documents now before the Governmental Unit, 
by an Authorized Officer executing the same and by the Governmental Unit.  

d. Prior to the PACE Area Administrator submitting an Assessment Contract to 
an Authorized Officer for execution, the applicable PACE Project Administrator shall (i) make the 
determination that the property to be assessed is entirely within the PACE Area, (ii) have received 
evidence of all the enumerated items in Section 25(c) of the PACE Act and Section 25(d) of the 
PACE Act, and (iii) deliver to the PACE Area Administrator a written certification as to the matters 
set forth in clauses (i) and (ii) and a representation and warranty that such PACE Project 
Administrator as a program administrator of the Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program is in 
compliance with its duties and obligations hereunder (the “Compliance Certificate”).  The 
Compliance Certificate shall be in form and substance acceptable to the PACE Area Administrator.  
The Governmental Unit authorizes and directs the PACE Area Administrator to receive each 
Compliance Certificate on its behalf from PACE Project Administrators and, upon receipt, to 
deliver each Compliance Certificate to the Governmental Unit. 

e. Without limiting the generality of the first sentence of Section 5(d), if 
applicable, the Governmental Unit authorizes and directs the applicable PACE Project 
Administrator to receive on its behalf the copies or other proof of the notices to, and written 
consents of, any mortgage holders, pursuant to Section 25(d) of the PACE Act, for the record 
owner to enter into the assessment contract, and to deliver copies thereof to the PACE Area 
Administrator together with the Compliance Certificate for further delivery to the Governmental 
Unit.    

f. Upon execution and delivery of any Assessment Contract and related 
Assignment Agreement, and prior to any funding, the applicable PACE Project Administrator shall 
file or cause to be filed such Assessment Contract and such Assignment Agreement for recording 
with the Office of the Recorder of Deeds of Tazewell County. 

g. Without limiting the generality of the first sentence of Section 5(d), if 
applicable, the Governmental Unit authorizes and directs that the applicable PACE Project 
Administrator receive on its behalf the written confirmation from the record owner, pursuant to 
Section 25(c)(8) of the PACE Act, that the PACE Project was properly acquired, constructed, 
installed, or modified and is operating as intended (the “Completion Certificate”), and to deliver a 
copy thereof to the Governmental Unit, and, if requested, to the PACE Area Administrator.  The 
failure of the PACE Project Administrator to deliver a copy of any Completion Certificate to the 
Governmental Unit or the PACE Area Administrator shall not be deemed to impair the related 
Assessment Contract or any funding thereunder. 

Section 6. Additional Actions.  Each Authorized Officer is hereby authorized 
without any further approval to:   

a. negotiate, execute, and deliver such other supporting documents as may be 
necessary or appropriate to implement the Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program; and 

148



b. ratify amendments, modifications, or supplements to the Program Report from 
time to time as requested by the PACE Area Administrator to the extent such amendments, 
modifications, or supplements comply with the parameters and requirements set forth in the PACE 
Act and this Ordinance. 

Section 7. Governmental Unit Fees.  In consideration of  its execution and 
delivery of any Assessment Contracts, Assignment Agreements, or other supporting documents as 
may be necessary or appropriate to implement the Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program,  any 
record owner entering into an Assessment Contract with the Governmental Unit shall pay or cause 
to be paid a fee of one hundred fifty dollars ($150) to the Governmental Unit, payable on or before 
the closing date of any related financing or  refinancing, or interim financing, that has been 
approved under the Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program, unless such fee is otherwise waived 
by the Governmental Unit on a case-by-case basis. The applicable PACE Project Administrator 
shall be responsible for collecting and remitting such fee to the Governmental Unit. 

Section 8. Reservation of Rights for Other Programs.  The Governmental 
Unit reserves the right to: 

a. create PACE areas and establish related property assessed clean energy 
programs other than the PACE Area and the Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program to be 
administered by other for-profit entities or not-for-profit entities or the Governmental Unit, as 
determined by the governing body, pursuant to one or more separate ordinances or resolutions to 
be considered or previously considered and approved or adopted, as the case may be, at one or 
more meetings of the Governmental Unit; and 

b. issue “PACE Bonds” (as defined in the PACE Act) to fund PACE Projects 
pursuant to the rights and powers vested in the Governmental Unit by the PACE Act if such PACE 
Projects have been approved under any property assessed clean energy program established by the 
Governmental Unit other than the Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program. 

Section 9. Reserved.* 

Section 10. Amendments.  The Governmental Unit acknowledges the 
importance of uniformity and consistency of the Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program in a 
statewide, open market.  Therefore, the Governmental Unit agrees to consider in good faith any 
amendment, supplement, or modification of this Ordinance or the Program Report proposed by 
the PACE Area Administrator or the Authority and not to make any amendment, supplement, or 
modification to this Ordinance or the Program Report proposed by the Governmental Until unless 
and until approved in writing by the PACE  Area Administrator or the Authority, which 
approvals will not be unreasonably withheld. 

Section 11. Enactment.  The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared 
to be separable and if any section, phrase, or provision shall for any reason be declared by a 
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect 
the validity or enforceability of the remainder of the sections, phrases, and provisions  hereof.  

 

149



All ordinances, orders, and resolutions and parts thereof in conflict herewith are to the extent of 
such conflict hereby repealed, and this Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force 
immediately upon its adoption.  No provision of the Tazewell County Code or violation of any 
provision of the Tazewell County Code shall be deemed to impair the validity of this Ordinance 
or the instruments authorized by this Ordinance or to impair the  security for or payment of the 
instruments authorized by this Ordinance; provided further, however, that the foregoing shall 
not be deemed to affect the availability of any other remedy or penalty for any violation of any 
provision of the Tazewell County Code.  

This Ordinance shall become effective upon its passage and approval. 

 

 

             
     

        J. David Zimmerman, Chairman 

        Tazewell County Board 

ATTEST: 

 

      

John Ackerman, County Clerk 

 

 
  

150



 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Report of the Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program (including Appendix A and B) 
    
 

151



Printed by authority of the State of Illinois, 10/11/2022, published electronically only 

 
 
 
 
 

C-PACE OPEN MARKET INITIATIVE 
 

Property Assessed Clean Energy 
Program Report 

 
  

152



 

DSS ADVISORS LLC 

MADE POSSIBLE IN PART BY DSS ADVISORS LLC 
 
 
 

 
 

AND THE GENEROUS SUPPORT OF THE FOLLOWING: 
 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL LAW & POLICY CENTER 

 
 

KATTEN MUCHIN ROSENMAN LLP 

 
 

SMART ENERGY DESIGN ASSISTANCE CENTER  
AT THE UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS, URBANA-CHAMPAIGN 

 
 

FOLEY & LARDNER LLP 
 

 
 
 
 
 

153



 

Preface to the Program Report by the Illinois Finance Authority 
Commercial Property Assessed Clean Energy (“C-PACE”) financing can be used by owners and 
developers of commercial properties to finance or refinance eligible improvements in connection 
with renovations of existing buildings and new construction, in each case up to 25% of the value 
of the property.  Eligible improvements generally include fixtures, products, systems, equipment, 
devices, and materials intended for energy efficiency, renewable energy, resiliency, or water use; 
electric vehicle charging stations are eligible improvements too.  C-PACE financing has features 
that make it very attractive as an alternative or a supplement to existing types of commercial real 
estate financing.  For example, C-PACE financing is non-recourse to the record owner and 
assignable upon transfer of the property.  While these features may be found in conduit mortgage 
loans included in commercial mortgage-backed securities (often referred to as CMBS loans or 
CMBS financing), they are not common in either traditional bank financing or mezzanine 
financing, which is often used to finance significant new commercial real estate construction or 
deep energy retrofit projects.   C-PACE financing also has attractive features that are not 
available with any other type of commercial real estate financing.  C-PACE financing does not 
accelerate upon a default (payment or otherwise), permits terms of up to 40 years, and allows 
financing of up to 100% of all project and closing costs.  All capitalized terms in this Preface not 
otherwise defined have the meanings set forth in the accompanying Program Report. 

C-PACE financing is secured by a voluntary special assessment on the benefited property that is 
represented by an assessment contract between the record owner and the Governmental Unit.  
The special assessment is senior to all mortgages and other private liens on such property and is 
pari passu to other real estate taxes and assessments.  The lien priority and preferences of C-
PACE financing is the primary reason why capital providers are willing to provide up to 100% 
financing that is non-recourse, non-callable in the event of default, and assignable in the event of 
a transfer of the property.  Interest on C-PACE financing is usually fixed throughout the term, 
although that is not required by the PACE Act, and is generally well below the rates charged by 
mezzanine lenders and equipment lenders.  Under the PACE Act, the assessment contract must 
be recorded, and serves as collateral for C-PACE financing, similar to a recorded commercial 
mortgage serving as collateral for a commercial real estate loan.  C-PACE financing to fund 
PACE Projects occurs through the issuance of conduit debt obligations (such as bonds or notes), 
similar to other special assessment financing programs in Illinois.   

Despite these attractive features and plentiful amounts of capital from providers enthusiastic to 
consider environmental, social, and governance factors alongside financial factors in the 
investment decision-making process, the use of C-PACE financing in Illinois has been limited to 
date.  Counties and municipalities have informed the Illinois Finance Authority of their desire to 
avoid the need to devote the time and resources necessary to develop and implement a property 
assessed clean energy program with the features of the Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program 
and to otherwise be required to issue bonds or notes to finance or refinance PACE Projects and 
incur the related compliance or accounting obligations.  Additionally, capital providers have 
informed the Authority of their desire for a fair and competitive statewide, open market 
sponsored by an independent, neutral program administrator.  Finally, record owners have 
informed the Authority of their desire to minimize the program administration and governmental 
fees associated with C-PACE financing.   

 

154



 

The Authority has observed that the lack of market activity is also because C-PACE financing 
under existing property assessed clean energy programs is not uniform throughout Illinois, and 
under such programs, capital providers cannot administer and service their own C-PACE 
financing originations.  Moreover, under existing property assessed clean energy programs, 
program administrators are tasked with roles and responsibilities that are typically performed by 
capital providers, such as marketing, establishing processes for contractors, statutory 
underwriting, processing applications, billing and collecting, and enforcement.  This structure, a 
vestige of the C-PACE financing market’s earliest days, is both cumbersome and costly.  Similar 
to commercial mortgage lenders, the Authority believes capital providers in the C-PACE 
financing market should instead facilitate access to capital by performing these activities for their 
own account or others of their choosing, with their own resources, and within appropriate 
guidelines.   

In consideration of these factors, the Illinois Finance Authority has standardized the structure, 
implementation, and delivery of C-PACE financing in Illinois to lessen the burdens on counties 
and municipalities throughout Illinois that may desire to create PACE areas and establish 
property assessed clean energy programs, to attract capital providers to purchase bonds or notes 
issued by the Authority to fund PACE Projects throughout Illinois, and to assist record owners in 
the financing or refinancing of PACE Projects throughout Illinois.  The nonpartisan, nonpolitical 
Illinois Finance Authority PACE Program intends to achieve these objectives in the PACE Area 
created by the Governmental Unit by applying the structure of the commercial mortgage industry 
to better align the roles and responsibilities of the C-PACE financing market.  The Illinois 
Finance Authority PACE Program allows capital providers to not only originate C-PACE 
financings in a statewide, open market sponsored by an independent, neutral program 
administrator but also allows capital providers to administer and service PACE Projects directly 
or through affiliates in the capacity of PACE Project Administrators,  for their own account or 
others of their choosing.  Record owners will benefit from lower C-PACE financing costs amid 
the resulting fairness and competition among capital providers, at no cost to the Governmental 
Unit.   

All parties will also benefit from the Authority’s vast experience in the issuance of conduit debt 
obligations, which each year amounts to billions of dollars of long-term investment in voluntary 
projects of private-sector borrowers in Illinois.  As a statewide conduit issuer of bonds and notes, 
the Authority’s uniform C-PACE financing documents for all PACE Projects will simplify due 
diligence in the asset-backed securities market for capital providers in contrast to a fragmented 
market of numerous county and municipal issuers of conduit debt obligations throughout Illinois.  
Accordingly, the Authority elected to leverage these competitive advantages to achieve vertical 
integration and economies of scale in local markets such as the PACE Area by forming the C-
PACE Open Market Initiative, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation and component unit of the 
Authority, to offer an independent, neutral program administrator in the capacity of PACE Area 
Administrator to the Governmental Unit and its residents and taxpayers, at no cost to the 
Governmental Unit. 

The goals of the C-PACE Open Market Initiative are to spur investment in energy efficiency and 
water conservation, and to stimulate growth of renewable energy and resilient building design 
throughout Illinois. 

- Brad R. Fletcher

155



Table of Contents

Introduction ..................................................................................................................................... 2 

Purpose of the Program Report ....................................................................................................... 2 

Program Description ....................................................................................................................... 2 

Program Roles and Responsibilities ............................................................................................... 3 

Marketing and Education ................................................................................................................ 6 

Eligibility ........................................................................................................................................ 6 

Quality Assurance and Antifraud.................................................................................................... 7 

Program Underwriting Guidelines .................................................................................................. 8 

Program Application Process ........................................................................................................ 10 

Forms of Assessment Contract and Assignment Agreement ........................................................ 11 

Plan of Finance ............................................................................................................................. 12 

Billing and Collecting ................................................................................................................... 13 

User Fees ....................................................................................................................................... 14 

 

Appendices 

A. Form of Assessment Contract 

B. Form of Assignment Agreement

  

156



 

Introduction 
This Program Report was approved by the Governmental Unit by adopting the ordinance to 
which this Program Report accompanies (the “PACE Ordinance”).  All terms defined in the 
PACE Ordinance will, for all purposes of this Program Report, have the meanings specified 
therein unless the context otherwise requires. 

The PACE Ordinance meets the requirements of Section 15 of the PACE Act.  The 
Governmental Unit created the PACE Area to make financing and refinancing opportunities 
available to any record owner of property that voluntarily requests the levy of a special 
assessment to secure the financing or refinancing of a proposed PACE Project pursuant to an 
assessment contract. 

Purpose of the Program Report 
As required by the PACE Act, the Program Report contains a basic summary of the Illinois 
Finance Authority PACE Program and its statewide, open market architecture.  The Illinois 
Finance Authority PACE Program is sometimes referred to, or marketed as, the “IFA PACE 
Program” or the “IFA Municipal Choice PACE Program” or the “IFA County Advantage PACE 
Program”). 

Program Description 
The Governmental Unit is establishing the nonpartisan, nonpolitical IFA PACE Program to 
accelerate private investment in PACE Projects affixed to existing and newly constructed 
commercial, industrial, non-residential agricultural, and multi-family (5 or more units) properties 
in the PACE Area, at no cost to the Governmental Unit.  The IFA PACE Program is distinctly 
different from any existing property assessed clean energy program that has been launched by a 
county or municipality in Illinois.  Under the IFA PACE Program, the Governmental Unit is 
participating in a statewide, open market of PACE areas administered by the C-PACE Open 
Market Initiative as the independent, neutral program administrator, referred to as the PACE 
Area Administrator.  The PACE Area Administrator, among other things, acts as a liaison to the 
Governmental Unit and its residents, taxpayers, and other interested persons.  Record owners, 
meanwhile, are afforded the opportunity to work with capital providers of their own choosing as 
PACE Project Administrators and to assemble the team of professionals desired for any potential 
PACE Project (e.g., architects, engineers, energy auditors, appraisers, contractors, bond counsel, 
trustees, title companies). 

The IFA PACE Program is appealing because its neutrality among capital providers avoids the 
conflicts of interest that exist under certain other existing property assessed clean energy 
programs throughout Illinois.  Under the IFA PACE Program, capital providers or their affiliates 
will administer and service their respective PACE Projects as PACE Project Administrators.  
This feature eliminates the additional program administration fees otherwise charged by affiliates 
of competing capital providers or other third parties that have secured or will endeavor to secure 
an exclusive role as program administrator for a county or municipality.  As a result, the IFA 
PACE Program incentivizes competition to lower costs and improve service for record owners.  

157



 

Additionally, in their capacity as PACE Project Administrators, capital providers can fairly 
manage existing and future relationships with record owners without the risks associated with 
sharing business intelligence with affiliates of competing capital providers that have secured an 
exclusive role as program administrator for a county or municipality.  

The statewide, open market architecture of the IFA PACE Program also offers what no other 
property assessed clean energy program in Illinois can offer: uniformity; the financing or 
refinancing of all PACE Projects regardless of location is undertaken by a single issuer of bonds 
or notes.  The Illinois Finance Authority has statewide authorization to issue bonds and notes to 
fund PACE Projects located in any PACE area, thus doing away with any issuance of bonds or 
notes by the Governmental Unit.  In turn, the Governmental Unit and its fellow counties and 
municipalities enjoy the benefit of not incurring any related conduit debt compliance or 
accounting obligations.  The simplification of a single conduit issuer with statewide 
authorization to fund PACE Projects attracts capital providers that desire a standardized, 
efficient, and affordable way to facilitate access to capital for record owners, further reducing 
legal and financing costs for such record owners. 

Under the IFA PACE Program, the Governmental Unit always retains its prerogatives as set 
forth in the PACE Act and the PACE Ordinance, including the right to establish other property 
assessed clean energy programs and to issue its own bonds or notes under such other programs.  

Program Roles and Responsibilities 
The roles and responsibilities of the Governmental Unit, the Authority, the PACE Area 
Administrator, the PACE Project Administrators, and the capital providers under the IFA PACE 
Program are described below. 

Governmental Unit 

Pursuant to the PACE Ordinance, any one of the Authorized Officers set forth therein, acting 
singly, on behalf of the Governmental Unit, may execute and deliver an assessment contract and 
related assignment agreement assigning the assessment contract to the Authority as collateral for 
the financing or refinancing, or interim financing, of a PACE Project. 

Illinois Finance Authority 

Pursuant to the PACE Ordinance, the Governmental Unit has designated the Authority as the 
sole conduit issuer of bonds and notes to fund any PACE Projects approved under the IFA PACE 
Program.   

The Authority is a body politic and corporate created under the laws of the State of Illinois (the 
“State”).  The Authority was created under the Illinois Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 
3501/801-1 et seq., as amended from time to time (the “Authority Act”), which consolidated 
seven of the State’s previously existing financing authorities.  Under the Authority Act, the 
Authority may not have outstanding at any time bonds or notes for PACE Projects in an 
aggregate principal amount exceeding $2,000,000,000 (subject to change, from time to time, by 
acts of the State Legislature).  Pursuant to the Authority Act, the Authority is governed by up to 

158



 

15 Members appointed by the Governor with the advice and consent of the State Senate.  The 
Members receive no compensation for the performance of their duties but are entitled to 
reimbursement for all necessary expenses incurred in connection with the performance of such 
duties. 

Members of the Authority consider and approve capital providers to purchase or arrange for the 
purchases of bonds or notes issued by the Authority, and to provide or arrange any related 
interim financing by warehouse funds prior to the issuance of such bonds or notes, in each case 
to fund PACE Projects approved under the IFA PACE Program.   

Meetings of the Authority are conducted in accordance with the Open Meetings Act, 5 ILCS 
120/1 et seq., as amended (the “Open Meetings Act”).  An annual schedule of regular meetings 
of the Authority and all notices, agenda, meeting details, and minutes of each regular or special 
meeting are posted on the following website: www.il-fa.com/public-access.  

PACE Area Administrator 

Pursuant to the PACE Ordinance, the Governmental Unit has authorized the PACE Area 
Administrator to act as the program administrator to manage day-to-day operations of the IFA 
PACE Program.  The PACE Area Administrator will be responsible for administering and 
implementing the IFA PACE Program, including: processing requests for financing or 
refinancing, or interim financing; coordinating among record owners, counsel, the Authority, 
capital providers, PACE Project Administrators, contractors, and other professionals; interfacing 
with the Governmental Unit on the execution and delivery of assessment contracts and 
assignment agreements; and reporting and arranging for any required reporting to the 
Governmental Unit that may be requested from time to time.  The PACE Area Administrator will 
also act as liaison to the community of the Governmental Unit and will conduct, alone or in 
conjunction with others, appropriate marketing and education activities. 

Pursuant to the PACE Ordinance, the Governmental Unit also has delegated to the PACE Area 
Administrator the discretion to determine which capital providers (or their affiliates) will be 
authorized to act as PACE Project Administrators.   The eligibility requirements of, and the 
terms and conditions for, a capital provider (or its affiliate) to participate in the IFA PACE 
Program as a PACE Project Administrator are set forth in a standard form of Master 
Participation Agreement.  The Master Participation Agreement is supplemented by the IFA 
PACE Program Handbook of Supplemental Information and Requirements (as amended, 
supplemented, or modified from time to time, the “PACE Handbook”).  The PACE Area 
Administrator considers and approves PACE Project Administrators, and, if approved, the PACE 
Area Administrator and the PACE Project Administrator enter into the Master Participation 
Agreement.  The form of Master Participation Agreement is available from the PACE Area 
Administrator upon request.  The PACE Handbook is posted on the following website: 
www.IFApace.com.  

Members of the Authority also serve as the Board of Directors of the PACE Area Administrator.  
The Directors receive no compensation for the performance of their duties but are entitled to 
reimbursement for all necessary expenses incurred in connection with the performance of such 

159



 

duties.  Meetings of the PACE Area Administrator are conducted in accordance with the Open 
Meetings Act.  All notices, agenda, meeting details, and minutes of each regular or special 
meeting are posted on the following website: www.il-fa.com/public-access.  

PACE Project Administrators 

Pursuant to the PACE Ordinance, and upon approval of the PACE Area Administrator, PACE 
Project Administrators are authorized to act as program administrators of the IFA PACE 
Program.  PACE Project Administrators are authorized, on a non-exclusive basis, for their own 
account and for the account of others of their choosing, to originate financings or refinancings of 
PACE Projects, to purchase or arrange for the purchases of the related bonds or notes issued by 
the Authority, and to provide or arrange any related interim financing by warehouse funds prior 
to the issuance of such bonds or notes.  They are also responsible for providing or arranging for 
the provision of administrative and servicing responsibilities of such PACE Projects. 

Upon entering into the Master Participation Agreement with the PACE Area Administrator, each 
PACE Project Administrator agrees to perform at its sole cost and expense the duties and 
obligations set forth in the PACE Ordinance, including this Program Report, the Master 
Participation Agreement, and the PACE Handbook, as provided herein and therein.  

The Governmental Unit reserves the right to terminate or suspend any PACE Project 
Administrator at any time, for any reason or no reason, after giving written notice thereof to the 
PACE Area Administrator at least 60 calendar days before the termination or suspension is to be 
effective.  Upon receiving such written notice from the Governmental Unit, the PACE Area 
Administrator shall give written notice thereof to the PACE Project Administrator at least 30 
calendar days before the termination or suspension is to become effective. 

Capital Providers 

Capital providers (or their designated transferee(s)) purchase bonds or notes issued by the 
Authority and provide or arrange any related interim financing by warehouse funds prior to the 
issuance of such bonds or notes, in each case to fund PACE Projects approved under the IFA 
PACE Program. 

Capital providers must be institutional “accredited investors” (as defined in Rule 501(a) of 
Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended) or “qualified 
institutional buyers” (as defined in Rule 144A promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as 
amended).   

To be an approved capital provider of the IFA PACE Program, Members of the Authority 
consider and approve authorizing resolutions in meetings conducted in accordance with the Open 
Meetings Act.  Each authorizing resolution of the Authority for the purchase of bonds or notes 
by a capital provider or its designated transferee(s) remains in effect for up to three years 
following the date of adoption to ensure efficient and timely funding of PACE Projects, 
consistent with market expectations.  Interested capital providers should contact Authority staff.   

A list of approved capital providers is posted on the following website: www.IFApace.com.  

160



 

Marketing and Education 
Given the statewide, open market architecture of the IFA PACE Program, it is anticipated that 
PACE Project Administrators will conduct marketing on behalf of the IFA PACE Program in 
their target markets to originate and fund PACE Projects for their own account or the account of 
others of their choosing.  All marketing materials used by PACE Program Administrators in 
connection with the IFA PACE Program must acknowledge that its services are offered through, 
or in association with, the Governmental Unit and the Authority (and upon request by the 
Authority, the C-PACE Open Market Initiative).   

The Authority and PACE Area Administrator endeavor to provide technical assistance with 
respect to the marketing of the IFA PACE Program and educating the community regarding the 
financing and administration of PACE Projects, as may be reasonably requested by the 
Governmental Unit and its residents, taxpayers, and other interested persons from time to time.  
The Authority has posted education materials and contact information on the following website: 
www.IFApace.com. 

Supplemental information regarding resources available to record owners subjecting properties 
to the IFA PACE Program by Federal or State agencies, including without limitation, the U.S. 
Department of Energy, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, the U.S. 
Department of the Treasury, the Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity, 
the Illinois Department of Natural Resources, the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency, 
regional councils, or economic development corporations may be published from time to time in 
the PACE Handbook. 

Eligibility 
Any financing or refinancing, or interim financing, of a PACE Project approved under the IFA 
PACE Program must be accompanied by a written opinion from a nationally recognized 
municipal bond counsel in form and substance acceptable to the Authority.   

Eligible Improvements 

Each type of improvement as prescribed in the PACE Act qualifies for financing or refinancing, 
or interim financing, under the IFA PACE Program.   

Any of the following types of improvements qualify as PACE Projects under the PACE Act: 

 Alternative energy improvements (i.e., electric vehicle charging stations) 
 Energy efficiency improvements 
 Renewable energy improvements 
 Resiliency improvements 
 Water use improvements 

Pursuant to the PACE Act, the Governmental Unit may exercise discretion to make eligible any 
energy efficiency improvement, resiliency improvement, or water use improvement that is 
intended as a utility or other cost-savings measure but is not otherwise specifically enumerated in 
the PACE Act. 

161



 

All eligible improvements must be affixed to an eligible property. 

Eligible Properties 

Each type of property as prescribed in the PACE Act qualifies for financing or refinancing, or 
interim financing, under the IFA PACE Program.   

Any of the following types of privately-owned properties located in the PACE Area qualifies for 
financing or refinancing under the PACE Act:  

 Commercial  
 Industrial  
 Non-residential agricultural  
 Multi-family (of 5 or more units) 
 Any property owned by a not-for-profit entity 

Eligible Use of Proceeds 

The amount of any financing or refinancing, or interim financing, of a PACE Project approved 
under the IFA PACE Program may include any and all of the following: the cost of materials and 
labor necessary for acquisition, construction, installation, or modification of the PACE Project, 
permit fees, inspection fees, application and administrative fees, financing fees, reserves, 
capitalized interest, costs of billing the assessment, and all other fees, costs, and expenses that 
may be incurred by the record owner pursuant to the acquisition, construction, installation, or 
modification of the PACE Project, and the costs of issuance of bonds or notes issued by the 
Authority on a specific or pro rata basis, as determined by the Governmental Unit, as evidenced 
by its execution of the assessment contract, and may also include a prepayment premium.  

While records owners and PACE Project Administrators may choose any licensed contractor or 
contractors, each licensed contractor must sign a written acknowledgement that the applicable 
PACE Project Administrator will not authorize final payment to the contractor or contractors 
until the Governmental Unit has received the Completion Certificate from the record owner that 
the PACE Project was properly acquired, constructed, installed, or modified and is operating as 
intended; provided, however, that the contractor or contractors retain all legal rights and 
remedies in the event there is a disagreement with the record owner.  The PACE Project 
Administrator is authorized to receive such Completion Certificate on behalf of the 
Governmental Unit.  The Completion Certificate shall be in substantially the form attached to the 
PACE Handbook.   

Quality Assurance and Antifraud 
Quality assurance protocols serve to prevent improper or low-quality construction, installation, 
or modification of PACE Projects and protect against fraud and abuse of the IFA PACE 
Program.  

All work requiring a license under any applicable law to acquire, construct, install, or modify a 
PACE Project shall be performed by a licensed contractor that has agreed to adhere to a set of 

162



 

terms and conditions through a process established by the applicable PACE Project 
Administrator. 

Each PACE Project Administrator shall institute quality assurance protocols.   Despite the 
presence of these protocols and procedures, responsibility for the successful operation of any 
PACE Project is that of the record owner and its registered professionals.  None of the 
Governmental Unit, the Authority, the PACE Area Administrator, the PACE Project 
Administrator, capital provider, trustee, servicer, or any of their respective directors, managers, 
officers, employees, advisors, or agents shall have any liability for the acquisition, construction, 
installation, modification, and operation of any eligible PACE Project. 

Program Underwriting Guidelines 
Each PACE Project Administrator is likely to have underwriting requirements separate and apart 
from the underwriting guidelines prescribed by the IFA PACE Program.  At a minimum, each 
PACE Project Administrator shall determine that a PACE Project meets the following program 
underwriting guidelines, in addition to those guidelines prescribed in the PACE Handbook and 
the PACE Act, which will be evidenced by the Compliance Certificate described hereafter.  At 
no time will the PACE Area Administrator be a party to negotiations of any proposed financing 
and assessment between a record owner and the PACE Project Administrator. 

Record Owners 

In addition to the eligibility requirements described herein, a record owner must be current on all 
mortgage debt on the applicable property and the record owner must not have filed for 
bankruptcy in the last two years. 

Properties/Assets 

Pursuant to the PACE Act, the following characteristics disqualify any eligible property from 
participating in the IFA PACE Program:  

 Any delinquent taxes, special assessments, or water or sewer charges on the property; or 
 Any delinquent assessments on the property under a property assessed clean energy 

program; or 
 Any notices of default or other evidence of property-based debt delinquency have been 

recorded and not cured; or 
 The property is an asset in a current bankruptcy proceeding. 

Each PACE Project Administrator must have further received evidence of whether there are any 
involuntary liens on the applicable property, including, but not limited to, construction or 
mechanics liens, lis pendens or judgments against the record owner, environmental proceedings, 
or eminent domain proceedings.  PACE Project Administrators and capital providers (or their 
designated transferee(s)) have discretion to evaluate the risk, if any, such involuntary liens pose 
to the financing and assessment of the applicable PACE Project. 

 

163



 

Senior Lender Consent 

Each record owner shall provide to the mortgage holders of any existing mortgages encumbering 
or otherwise secured by the applicable property a notice of the record owner's intent to enter into 
an assessment contract with the Governmental Unit, together with the maximum principal 
amount to be financed or refinanced and the maximum annual assessment necessary to repay that 
amount, along with an additional request that the mortgage holders of any existing mortgages 
consent to the record owner subjecting the property to the IFA PACE Program.  The 
Governmental Unit or applicable PACE Project Administrator shall be provided with a copy or 
other proof of those notices and the written consent of the mortgage holder for the record owner 
enter into the assessment contract which acknowledges that (i) the existing mortgage or 
mortgages for which the consent was received will be subordinate to the assessment contract and 
the lien created thereby and (ii) the Governmental Unit and its permitted assignees can foreclose 
the property if the assessment is not paid. 

Maximum Assessment Amount/Lien-to-Value 

The aggregate amount that may be financed or refinanced, or interim financed, under one or 
more assessment contracts for any property located in the PACE Area must not exceed 25% of 
the value of the property as further described below under the caption “Property Valuation” and 
in accordance with guidelines set forth in the PACE Handbook. 

Useful Life 

The term of an assessment shall not exceed the useful life of the PACE Project financed or 
refinanced under an assessment contract.  For any assessment contract financing or refinancing 
multiple improvements or multiple PACE Projects with varying useful lives, the term of an 
assessment shall not exceed the longest useful life of any singular improvement or PACE 
Project.  The expected useful life of each improvement or PACE Project shall be determined by 
the PACE Project Administrator based on industry standards and manufacturers’ warranties.   

Repayment Periods/Maturity 

Under the IFA PACE Program, the term of an assessment cannot exceed 40 years.   In addition, 
pursuant to the Authority Act, the final maturity of any bonds or notes issued by the Authority 
cannot exceed 40 years.   

Interest Rates 

The interest rate or rates that will be charged pursuant to any assessment contract will be 
determined by negotiation between a record owner and the PACE Project Administrator.  Interest 
rates are typically fixed for the term of the assessment contract.  There is no prohibition under 
the PACE Act or the IFA PACE Program for an assessment contract to provide for a variable 
rate of interest. 

 

 

164



 

Credit Enhancement 

Bonds and notes issued by the Authority to fund PACE Projects shall never be general 
obligations of the Governmental Unit, the State, or the Authority but shall be secured by the 
payments under one or more assessment contracts on the respective, benefited properties located 
within the PACE Area and, if applicable, revenue sources or reserves established by the 
Authority (at the request of PACE Project Administrators) from proceeds of bonds or notes or 
other lawfully available funds.  In addition, bonds or notes issued by the Authority may be 
secured by municipal bond insurance, letters of credit, or public or private guarantees or sureties 
as may be arranged from time to time by a PACE Project Administrator. 

Program Application Process 
For any record owner located in the PACE Area to obtain financing or refinancing, or interim 
financing, of a PACE Project, the IFA PACE Program requires a property valuation, an executed 
term sheet, an application that has been approved by the Authority, and a Compliance Certificate 
from the PACE Project Administrator.  The PACE Act further requires an energy audit in certain 
circumstances.   

Energy Audit 

An evaluation of the existing water or energy use and a modeling of expected monetary savings 
are required for any proposed energy efficiency improvement, renewable energy improvement, 
or water use improvement, unless the water use improvement is undertaken to improve water 
quality.  Record owners may work with PACE Project Administrators to satisfy this statutory 
requirement.   

Smart Energy Design Assistance Center, an applied research program at the University of Illinois 
at Urbana-Champaign (“SEDAC”), provides technical assistance to help building managers, 
owners, and administrators make their facilities more energy efficient.  SEDAC’s mission is to 
decrease the energy footprint of the state of Illinois and beyond.  Record owners and PACE 
Project Administrators may select SEDAC to complete the evaluation and modeling of their 
respective PACE Project.  More information is posted on the following website: 
www.smartenergy.illinois.edu. 

Property Valuation 

Each record owner must demonstrate the value of the applicable property for any prospective 
financing or refinancing, or interim financing, of a PACE Project.  Such value may be 
determined by the greater of the following:  

 the value of the property as determined by the office of the county assessor; or  
 the value of the property as estimated in an appraisal report prepared or co-signed by a 

general real estate appraiser certified by the State.   

Values determined by township assessors, multi-township assessors, county supervisors of 
assessments, boards of review, and boards of appeals are not specifically enumerated in the 
PACE Act as acceptable for any prospective financing or refinancing, or interim financing, of a 

165



 

PACE Project.  Each PACE Project Administrator may establish requirements for an acceptable 
appraisal report, including maximum terms of validity, in addition to those set forth above. 

Capital Provider Term Sheet 

Each record owner must have an executed term sheet with a capital provider.  For any 
prospective PACE Project that lacks a commitment from a capital provider for financing or 
refinancing, record owners are encouraged to visit www.IFApace.com for a listing of approved 
capital providers and their respective contact information.   

Authority Application 

Capital providers that have executed a term sheet with a record owner must complete and apply 
to the Authority for the proposed financing or refinancing, or interim financing, of the PACE 
Project.  Application forms are posted on the following website: www.IFApace.com.   

The Authority generally processes applications within 10 business days following the submission 
of a completed application.  Upon approval by the Authority, such application will be deemed 
approved by the PACE Area Administrator.   

Compliance Certificate 

The PACE Project Administrator must undertake the following actions prior to the PACE Area 
Administrator submitting an assessment contract and assignment agreement to an Authorized 
Officer for execution:  

i. make the determination that the property to be assessed is entirely within the PACE Area;  
ii. have received evidence of all the enumerated items in Section 25(c) of the PACE Act and 

Section 25(d) of the PACE Act; and 
iii. execute and deliver to the PACE Area Administrator a Compliance Certificate as to the 

matters set forth in clauses (i) and (ii) and a representation and warranty that such PACE 
Project Administrator is in compliance with its duties and obligations as a program 
administrator of the IFA PACE Program.  The Compliance Certificate shall be in 
substantially the form attached to the PACE Handbook. 

Upon receipt of the PACE Project Administrator’s Compliance Certificate, the PACE Area 
Administrator will facilitate the execution and delivery of the applicable assessment contract and 
related assignment agreement by any one of the Authorized Officers.  PACE Project 
Administrators are encouraged to provide the Governmental Unit a reasonable amount of time 
for such execution and delivery to occur prior to the scheduled closing of any financing or 
refinancing, or interim financing, of a PACE Project approved under the IFA PACE Program. 

Forms of Assessment Contract and Assignment Agreement 
Each assessment contract between the Governmental Unit and any record owner located in the 
PACE Area will be in substantially the form attached hereto as Appendix A.  Each related 
assignment agreement between the Governmental Unit and the Authority assigning the 

166



 

assessment contract to the Authority as collateral for any financing or refinancing, and interim 
financing, will be in substantially the form attached hereto as Appendix B.   

The exhibit and schedules included with each assessment contract will reflect the actual terms 
and conditions governing that particular financing or refinancing and assessment as agreed 
between the record owner and the PACE Project Administrator.  The form of the body of the 
assessment contract is standardized and will not be subject to change.   

Each PACE Project Administrator will record or cause to be recorded each assessment contract 
and related assignment agreement with the applicable county clerk or county recorder in which 
the applicable property is located as a lien on such property, until the assessment, including any 
interest, penalty, and prepayment fee, is paid in full.  The lien has the same priority as real estate 
property taxes and other special assessment liens.  

Pursuant to each standardized assessment contract, each record owner agrees to indemnify, 
defend, protect, and hold harmless the participants in the IFA PACE Program, including the 
Governmental Unit, from and against all losses, liabilities, claims, damages (including 
consequential damages), penalties, fines, forfeitures, costs and expenses (including all out-of-
pocket litigation costs and attorney’s fees) and any demands of any nature related directly or 
indirectly to, or arising out of or in connection with (i) the record owner’s participation in the 
IFA PACE Program, (ii) the assessment and the assessment obligations, (iii) the PACE Project, 
or (iv) any other fact, circumstance or event related to the subject matter of such assessment 
contract, regardless of whether such claims accrue before or after the date of its execution. 

Plan of Finance 
Execution and delivery of an assessment contract and related assignment agreement by an 
Authorized Officer and the satisfaction or waiver of all conditions is required to consummate any 
financing or refinancing, or interim financing, of a PACE Project approved under the IFA PACE 
Program. 

Long-Term Financing 

To fund a PACE Project with long-term financing, the Authority will issue bonds or notes to be 
purchased by a capital provider (or its designated transferee(s)).   

With limited exceptions, each bond and note financing is structured as a direct purchase by the 
capital provider that originated the financing or refinancing of the related PACE Project (or 
PACE Projects in the case of pooled financings).  Any transfer of bonds or notes is conditioned 
upon the receipt by the Authority of an investor letter substantially in the form approved by the 
Authority or with such changes thereto as are agreed upon by the Authority. 

Record owners or PACE Project Administrator may also arrange for an underwriter or placement 
agent to facilitate the public offering or limited public offering of the Authority’s bonds or notes 
to fund a PACE Project.  Such financing structures in the capital markets can add legal costs due 
to the additional marketing documents that must be crafted to facilitate the sale of the bonds or 
notes to long-term investors. 

167



 

Any proceeds of any bond or note issued by the Authority and used by a record owner to fund 
the acquisition, construction, installation, or modification of a PACE Project at closing must 
comply with the prevailing wage requirements and reporting obligations of the State (just as with 
any bond or note otherwise issued by a county or municipality). 

Interim Financing 

To fund a PACE Project with interim financing provided by a warehouse fund established by a 
capital provider, the Authority will assign the assessment contract to the applicable capital 
provider or its transferee as collateral for such interim financing for up to 36 months pursuant to 
a Master Warehouse Agreement.  Upon re-assignment of the assessment contract, the Authority 
will issue bonds or notes to refinance any interim financing that has been provided by such 
warehouse fund.   

Pursuant to the PACE Act, the Governmental Unit or the Authority may also establish a 
warehouse fund to assist record owners with the interim financing of one or more PACE 
Projects.  Any proceeds of any warehouse fund established by the Governmental Unit or the 
Authority and used by a record owner to fund the acquisition, construction, installation, or 
modification of a PACE Project at closing must comply with the prevailing wage requirements 
and reporting obligations of the State. 

Billing and Collecting 
Assessments may be included in the regular property tax bills of the county in which a property 
is located or the Governmental Unit, the PACE Project Administrator, or third-party servicer 
may bill and collect the assessment amount.   

Payment received by mail and postmarked on or before any required due date is not delinquent.  
From and after the due date of any installment of an assessment, an additional rate of interest of 
1 1/2% per month may be imposed with respect to the delinquent amount of such installment, 
which shall be payable to the applicable capital provider, PACE Project Administrator, or third-
party servicer as set forth in the applicable bill. 

IFA Municipal Choice PACE Program 

For assessments imposed by municipalities, it is anticipated that each capital provider or PACE 
Project Administrator will directly bill and collect assessments to record owners or indirectly bill 
and collect assessments through a third-party servicer to record owners.  As a result, capital 
providers keep 100% of any default interest and always have the legal option to pursue a default 
remedy through either the regular county tax sale process or through an accelerated judicial 
foreclosure under the State’s Municipal Code. 

If an assessment becomes delinquent during any year, the applicable capital provider, PACE 
Project Administrator, or third-party servicer shall, on or before the date in such year required by 
the county in which the PACE area is located, make a report in writing to the general office of 
the county in which the applicable property subject to the assessment is situated and authorized 
by the general revenue laws of this State to apply for judgment and sell lands for taxes due the 

168



 

county and the State, of the assessments or installments thereof the applicable capital provider, 
PACE Project Administrator, or third-party servicer has billed for and not received as required 
under the applicable bill, including any interest or penalties that may be due as set forth in the 
applicable assessment contract.   

Such report shall be certified by the applicable capital provider, PACE Project Administrator, or 
third-party servicer and shall include statements that (i) the report contains true and correct list of 
delinquent assessments that the capital provider, PACE Project Administrator, or third-party 
servicer has not received as required by the applicable bill and (ii) an itemization of the amount 
of the delinquent assessment, including interest and penalties, if applicable.  The report of the 
applicable capital provider, PACE Project Administrator, or third-party servicer, when so made, 
shall be prima facie evidence that all requirements of the law in relation to making the report 
have been complied with and that the assessments or the matured installments thereof, and the 
interest thereon, and the interest accrued on installments not yet matured, mentioned in the 
report, are due and unpaid.  

Upon proper filing of such report, at the direction of the applicable capital provider, PACE 
Project Administrator, or third-party servicer, the PACE Act mandates that the county collector 
shall enforce the collection of the assessments in the manner provided by law. 

IFA County Advantage PACE Program 

For assessments imposed by counties, please refer to the PACE Handbook for any billing and 
collecting preferences as the county collector of the county in which the applicable property is 
located may elect to bill and collect assessments with the regular property tax bills of the county. 

User Fees  
At no time will the PACE Area Administrator be a party to negotiations of any proposed 
financing and assessment fees between a record owner and the PACE Project Administrator.  
The fees and costs described below, which may be added to the assessment, are anticipated to be 
in excess of the closing costs and the costs of issuance of the bonds or notes issued by the 
Authority, including, without limitation, bond counsel fees, PACE Project Administrator fees, 
capital provider fees, reserves, trustee fees, title insurance fees, capitalized interest, and prepaid 
servicing fees. 

Governmental Unit 

The PACE Ordinance prescribes the fee payable to the Governmental Unit for entering into an 
assessment contract with any record owner, payable on or before the closing date of any related 
financing or refinancing that has been approved under the IFA PACE Program, unless such fee is 
otherwise waived by the Governmental Unit on a case-by-case basis.  The applicable PACE 
Project Administrator shall be responsible for collecting and remitting such fee to the 
Governmental Unit. 

 

 

169



 

Illinois Finance Authority 

The PACE Handbook prescribes the fee payable to the Authority for any financing or 
refinancing, or interim financing, of a PACE Project. 

PACE Area Administrator 

The PACE Handbook prescribes the fee payable to the PACE Area Administrator for any 
financing or refinancing, or interim financing, of a PACE Project. 

As of the date hereof, services of the PACE Area Administrator are free of charge.  

  

170



APPENDIX A 
 

Form of Assessment Contract 

171



THIS INSTRUMENT WAS PREPARED BY: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RETURN TO: 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

(THE ABOVE SPACE FOR RECORDER'S USE ONLY)  

[INSERT NAME OF VILLAGE/CITY/COUNTY/TOWN], ILLINOIS  
PACE PROGRAM 

ASSESSMENT CONTRACT 

THIS ASSESSMENT CONTRACT (this “Contract”), dated as of the Effective Date (as 
defined below), is by and between the [INSERT NAME], Illinois, a [village/city/county/town] 
duly organized and validly existing under the Constitution and the laws of the State of Illinois 
(the “Governmental Unit”), and the person or persons as the titleholder or owner of the beneficial 
interest set forth on Exhibit A (the “Record Owner”) in the property described on Exhibit A (the 
“Property”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit has conducted the proceedings required by Section 
15 of the Property Assessed Clean Energy Act, 50 ILCS 50/1 et seq. (the “Act”),  and established 
a property assessed clean energy program (the “PACE Program”) within the jurisdictional 
boundaries of the Governmental Unit (the “PACE Area”) to allow the financing or refinancing of 
certain “energy projects” (as defined in the Act), funded through the sale of bonds, subject to the 
Act or alternatively, through the sale of bonds pursuant to subsection (d) of Section 825-65 of the 
Illinois Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1 et seq. (the “Authority Act”) and the Act, 
which bonds will be secured through the levy of certain special assessments pursuant to 
“assessment contracts” (as defined in the Act) on  property (as defined in the Act) benefitted by 
such energy projects; 

WHEREAS, the Act provides that a “record owner” (as defined in the Act) of property 
within the PACE Area may apply to the Governmental Unit or its “program administrator” (as 
defined in the Act) to facilitate access to capital to provide funding for an energy project and that 
the Governmental Unit may enter into an assessment contract with a record owner of property to 
finance or refinance one or more energy projects on the property, which assessment contract 

  
 

172



provides for the repayment of the financed amount of the cost of an energy project through 
assessments on the property benefitted;  

WHEREAS, the Property is located in the PACE Area established by the Governmental 
Unit as of the last date entered with the signatures of the parties below (the “Effective Date”); 

WHEREAS, the Record Owner has requested the Governmental Unit enter into this 
Contract and the Governmental Unit has verified the information required by Section 25(c) of the 
Act as further described herein; 

WHEREAS,  [INSERT NAME AND CORPORATE DESIGNATION OF PROGRAM 
ADMINISTRATOR], is authorized to act as a program administrator (together with any 
successors thereto, the “Program Administrator”) for the PACE Program as it pertains to this 
Contract; 

WHEREAS, the Record Owner has completed an application (the “PACE Project 
Application”) for financing under the PACE Program (“PACE Funding”) for the energy project, 
including the acquisition, construction, installation, and modification thereof, described 
in Exhibit A (the “Project”) and has satisfied the PACE Program requirements, including without 
limitation, obtaining a written consent from any and all holders of mortgages recorded against 
the Property, and the Program Administrator has issued an approval of the Record Owner’s 
PACE Project Application, all in accordance with the PACE Program guidelines  administered 
by the Program Administrator with respect to the PACE Program and in effect on the Effective 
Date (the “Program Guidelines”);  

WHEREAS, the Program Administrator and the Record Owner may request that the 
Illinois Finance Authority, a body politic and corporate duly organized and validly existing under 
and by virtue of the laws of the State of Illinois (the “Authority”), finance or refinance the 
Project through the sale of bonds pursuant to subsection (d) of Section 825-65 of the Authority 
Act, and if applicable, that a Warehouse Fund (as defined in the Act) provide interim financing 
prior to the issuance of bonds by the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Governmental Unit and the Record Owner desire to 
enter into this Contract, pursuant to which the Record Owner will agree to pay the assessment in 
order to finance or refinance the Project and the Governmental Unit may agree to assign this 
Contract in furtherance of providing financing for the Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the material covenants 
hereinafter contained, the Record Owner and the Governmental Unit formally covenant, agree 
and bind themselves and their successors and assigns as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

Section 1. Purpose.  The Record Owner and the Governmental Unit are entering into 
this Contract for the purpose of financing or refinancing the Project. 

Section 2. The Property.  This Contract relates to the Property.  The Record Owner 
has provided to the Governmental Unit sufficient evidence that the Record Owner is the 

173



titleholder or owner of the beneficial interest in the Property and possesses all legal authority 
necessary to execute this Contract. 

Section 3. Assessment; Bonds; Installment; Prepayment; Collection.   

(a) The Assessment.  The Record Owner hereby freely and willingly agrees that a 
special assessment (the “Assessment”) in the amount specified in Schedule I (the “Assessment 
Amount”) shall be levied by the Governmental Unit on the Property pursuant to the Act.  The 
Assessment  Amount  includes an amount to pay all or a portion of the costs of (i) the Project, 
(ii) the Program Fees (including costs of issuance of Bonds and, if applicable, closing under the 
Warehouse Fund), Capital Provider Fees and Other Fees if so specified in Schedule I, (iii) 
capitalized interest on Bonds or, if applicable, the Warehouse Fund, if so specified in Schedule I, 
and (iv) funding any required debt service reserve or other reserve, if so specified in Schedule I 
(collectively, the “Financing Purposes”).  The Record Owner acknowledges and agrees that the 
Assessment Amount does not exceed the special benefit conferred on the Property by the 
Financing Purposes thereon. 

(b) Bonds.  The Governmental Unit hereby determines that bonds, which may be 
serial bonds, term bonds or both, shall be issued (i) by the Governmental Unit pursuant to the 
Act or (ii) upon assignment of this Contract to the Authority, by the Authority pursuant to the 
Authority Act, all in accordance with the Act (the “Bonds”) and shall be secured by the 
Assessment to pay the cost of the Financing Purposes, and that, if applicable, interim financing 
prior to the issuance of Bonds may be provided through a Warehouse Fund by assignment of this 
Contract thereto. 

(c) Interest; Assessment Installments.  Interest on the Assessment Amount shall begin 
to run from the date the Bonds are issued or, if applicable, interim financing from the Warehouse 
Fund is issued, and shall be computed at the rate specified in Schedule I.  The payment of the 
Assessment shall be in annual installments of the Assessment Amount and the interest thereon 
(the “Assessment Installments”)  as set forth in Schedule I.   

(d) Collection.  The annual Assessment Installment, plus the Assessment 
Administrative Fee (the “Annual Assessment Amount”)  coming due in any year shall be payable 
in the same manner and at the same time and in the same installments as the general taxes on the 
Property are payable or as otherwise provided in Schedule I attached hereto, and have the same 
priority, become delinquent at the same time and in the same proportionate amounts as the 
general taxes on the Property, and bear the penalties and interest after delinquency as set forth in 
the Act.  The Annual Assessment Amount may be included in the regular property tax bills of the 
county in which the Property is located or the Governmental Unit, the Program Administrator or 
another third party may bill and collect the Annual Assessment Amount.  Property Owner 
represents that all mortgagees to the Property have, in advance of the Effective Date, been 
provided notice of the imposition of the Assessment and have consented to the Assessment and 
Annual Assessment Amount in the amounts described on Schedule I.   

(e) Assessment Administrative Fees.  In addition to the Assessment Installments, the 
Governmental Unit or any Assignee (as defined below) may (or may direct the Program 
Administrator or another third party on behalf of the Governmental Unit or any such Assignee, 

174



as the case may be, to), in accordance with the Act, add thereto amounts in order to pay for the 
costs of collecting the Assessment (including any and all costs of enforcement, including 
foreclosure or other remedies for default on the Assessment), the administration of the 
Assessment, the administration of the Bonds or the Warehouse Fund, other administrative costs 
and any amounts the Record Owner may owe for indemnification as set forth in Section 12 
hereto (the “Assessment Administrative Fee”).  Schedule I shows the estimated scheduled 
Assessment Administrative Fees, however such estimated Assessment Administrative Fees 
might increase if the costs of collecting the Assessment or administering the Program increase. 
The Record Owner agrees to pay actual scheduled Assessment Administrative Fees, which may 
be higher than such estimates, as well as any other Assessment Administrative Fees. 

(f) Prepayment of the Assessment.  The Assessment Amount may be prepaid, in 
whole or in any amount at least equal to the minimum set forth in Schedule I, at any time upon 
the payment of (i) the amount of any delinquent Annual Assessment Amounts, together with any 
interest and penalties accrued to the date of prepayment, plus (ii) the whole or, subject to the 
minimum amount set forth in Schedule I, a portion of the unpaid non-delinquent Assessment 
Amount (the “Assessment Prepayment Amount”), plus (iii) interest on the Assessment 
Prepayment Amount to the redemption date occurring at least [30] days following the date the 
prepayment is made, plus (iv) an amount equal to the redemption premium, if any, set forth on 
Schedule I, plus (v) a reasonable fee, if charged by the Governmental Unit or any Assignee or 
the Program Administrator or another third party on its behalf, for the cost of administering the 
prepayment, if applicable, and the redemption of Bonds, plus (vi) any other due and outstanding 
or accrued Assessment Administrative Fees. 

(g) No Reduction or Offset.  The Record Owner hereby acknowledges and agrees that 
the Assessment will not be subject to reduction, offset or credit of any kind in the event that the 
Project fails to perform in any way or for any reason. 

(h) No Acceleration; Survival.  Amounts due under the Assessment will not 
accelerate upon a default or late payment or enforcement of remedies under this Contract and the 
Assessment, the lien thereof and the obligation to pay Assessment Obligations when they 
become due shall survive any such event and continue until paid in full. 

Section 4. Record Owner’s Representations and Warranties 

The Record Owner represents and warrants to the Governmental Unit and each Assignee, 
which representations and warranties shall be true and correct as of the Effective Date and at all 
times thereafter as follows: 

(a) Organization and Authority.  The Record Owner, if a legal entity, is duly 
organized, validly existing and in good standing in the state of its organization and with authority 
to do business under the laws of the State of Illinois.  The Record Owner has all necessary power 
and authority to own the Property and to conduct its business and enter into the transactions 
contemplated hereby.  The Record Owner has the right to enter into and perform this Contract, 
and the execution, delivery and performance of this Contract and each and every document 
specified in the List of Documents contained in Exhibit A executed in connection herewith 
(collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) have been duly authorized, executed and delivered 

175



and constitute valid and binding obligations of the Record Owner, each enforceable in 
accordance with its terms, and will not violate any applicable law or result in the creation of a 
lien against the Property except as contemplated by this Contract. 

(b) Financial Statements.  All financial statements delivered to the Governmental 
Unit or the Program Administrator are true and correct, have been prepared in accordance with 
United States generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied, fairly represent the 
financial condition of the Record Owner as of the date thereof, and no material adverse change 
has occurred in the financial condition presented therein since such date. 

(c) No Litigation.  There are no actions, suits or proceedings pending or, to the 
knowledge of the Record Owner, threatened, against or affecting it or the Property which could 
materially adversely affect the Record Owner, its financial condition, the Property or the 
construction of the Project or the Record Owner’s ability to satisfy its obligations under this 
Contract and any of the Transaction Documents, if applicable except as noted in Schedule II 
attached herein. 

(d) Title.  The Record Owner has good and insurable title to the Property. Except as 
set forth on Schedule II (“Permitted Liens”), there are no involuntary liens on the Property, 
including, but not limited to, construction or mechanics liens, lis pendens or judgments against 
the Record Owner, environmental proceedings, or eminent domain proceedings. 

(e) Property-Based Debt; Taxes.  The Record Owner is not in default, and has 
received no notices of default, under any property-based debt that has not been otherwise cured.  
The Record Owner is current on all mortgage debt on the Property, has not had an Insolvency 
Event in the last two (2) years from the Effective Date, and the Property is not the subject of any 
Insolvency Event.  There are no delinquent taxes, special assessments, or water or sewer charges 
on the Property.  There are no delinquent assessments on the Property in a property assessed 
clean energy program (including the Program). 

(f) Compliance With Laws.  The Record Owner has complied with, and will continue 
to comply with, all applicable statutes, regulations and ordinances in connection with the 
Property and construction of the Project.  All permits, consents, approvals and authorizations 
required to be issued by any governmental body (collectively, the “Permits”) necessary for (a) 
the construction of the Project in accordance with the plans and specifications (together, the 
“Plans”) submitted by the Record Owner; (b) the construction, connection and operation of all 
utilities necessary to service the Project; and (c) the construction and use of all roadways, 
driveways, curb cuts and other vehicular or other access to and egress from the Project, as shown 
on the Plans either (i) have been obtained, are valid, are in full force and effect and have been 
complied with by the Record Owner in all respects; or (ii) will be obtained, will be valid, will be 
in full force and effect prior to the initiation of construction of the Project, and Record Owner 
will be in compliance therewith in all respects prior to any “permitted assignee” (as defined in 
the Act), including any bond trustee or “capital provider” (as defined in the Act) to which this 
Contract has been assigned (the “Assignee”) disbursing any Bond proceeds or interim financing 
provided by a Warehouse Fund, if applicable.  Construction of the Project in accordance with the 
Plans will comply with applicable zoning, use, building or other applicable codes, laws, 
regulations, ordinances and Permits and any restrictive covenants affecting the Property. 

176



(g) Approval of Plans and Budgets.  Any Plans submitted will be a true and accurate 
reflection of the Project (when completed) and have been approved as required by all 
governmental bodies or agencies having jurisdiction over the Project or will be approved prior to 
the first disbursement request.  The budget for construction of the Project (the “Budget”) is an 
accurate current budget of all costs necessary to construct the Project in accordance with the 
Plans and is attached to the construction contract(s) to which the Record Owner is a party and 
described on Exhibit A pertaining to the construction and installation of the Project (the 
“Construction Contract”).  The cost of construction of the Project is not expected to exceed the 
cost therefor set forth in the Budget.  The Record Owner is responsible for any costs in excess of 
the Budget.   

(h) Contractors.  All work requiring a license under any applicable law to acquire, 
construct, install, or modify the Project has been and will be performed by licensed contractors 
that have agreed to adhere to the Governmental Unit’s or the Program Administrator’s terms and 
conditions.  All such contractors have signed a written acknowledgment that the Governmental 
Unit or its Program Administrator will not authorize final payment to such contractor until the 
Governmental Unit or the Program Administrator has received written confirmation from the 
Record Owner that the Project was properly acquired, constructed, installed or modified and is 
operating as intended. 

(i) Mortgage Holder Consent.  The Record Owner represents and warrants that the 
Record Owner has (i) disclosed to the Governmental Unit or the Program Administrator, the 
identities of all persons, if any, that hold mortgage liens against the Property (whether recorded 
or unrecorded) that may be affected by the Assessment; (ii) has obtained and delivered to the 
Governmental Unit or the Program Administrator the written consent of all such persons to the 
Assessment, which consent complies with the requirements of the Act; and (iii) to the Record 
Owner’s knowledge, no such consent has been withdrawn or revoked. 

(j) Insurance.  The Record Owner has provided to the Governmental Unit or the 
Program Administrator satisfactory evidence of current insurance policies on the Property.  Such 
policies shall meet the specifications set forth in accordance with the Program Guidelines but, 
notwithstanding such specifications, to the extent Bonds are issued under the Authority Act, the 
Authority and any Bond Trustee, and, to the extent any interim financing is provided, any 
Warehouse Fund shall be named as an additional insured (mortgagee/loss payee) on all insurance 
policies required hereunder. 

(k) PACE Project Application.  All representations, warranties, statements, exhibits, 
instruments and other documents contained in or included as a part of the PACE Project 
Application are true, correct and complete as of the Effective Date.  The Project constitutes an 
“energy project” and the Property constitutes “property” as each term is defined in the Act. 

(l) No Impairment.  No fraud, error, omission, misrepresentation, negligence or 
similar occurrence with respect to the Property, Plans, Budget, Construction Contract or Project 
has taken place on the part of the Record Owner or any other person, including, without 
limitation, any appraiser, title company, closing or settlement agent, realtor, builder or developer 
or any other party involved in the Property, Plans, Budget, Construction Contract or Project, that 
would impair in any way the rights of the Governmental Unit, any Assignee or any Warehouse 

177



Fund in the Property, Plans, Budget, Construction Contract or Project or that violated applicable 
law. 

(m) Environmental Matters.  Except as shown on Schedule III attached hereto (the 
“Environmental Schedule”), there are no underground storage tanks located on the Property; 
there is no past or present non-compliance with environmental laws, or with permits issued 
pursuant thereto, in connection with the Property (which has not been fully remediated in 
accordance with environmental laws); there is no environmental remediation required (or 
anticipated to be required) with respect to the Property; and Record Owner does not know of, 
and has not received, any written or oral notice or other communication from any person 
(including but not limited to a governmental entity) relating to hazardous substances or 
remediation thereof, of possible liability of any person pursuant to any environmental law, other 
environmental conditions in connection with the Property, or any actual or potential 
administrative or judicial proceedings in connection with the foregoing. 

(n) Property Value.  The aggregate amount to be financed or refinanced hereunder 
and any other assessment contract related to the Property does not exceed 25% in relation to the 
greater of (i) the value of the Property as determined by the office of the applicable county 
assessor; or (ii) the value of the Property as determined by an appraisal conducted by a licensed 
appraiser. 

Section 5. Record Owner Covenants 

The Record Owner hereby covenants and agrees as follows: 

(a) Maintenance of Property.  The Record Owner shall, at all times, maintain the 
Property and, after construction, the Project.  The Record Owner shall pay when due all taxes, 
assessments (including the Assessment), water charges, sewer charges and all other charges 
levied on or against the Property, and upon written request, submit to the Governmental Unit or 
any Assignee or any third party acting on their behalf official receipts evidencing such payments. 

(b) Construction Start and Completion.  The Record Owner shall commence 
construction of the Project and shall diligently proceed with construction of the Project in 
accordance with the approved Plans and Budget and in a good, substantial and workmanlike 
manner in accordance with the Construction Contract and all applicable laws, ordinances, codes, 
rules and regulations.  [Construction of the Project shall be completed on or prior to the Outside 
Completion Date as defined in Exhibit A]*. 

(c) Protection Against Liens.  Except for any Permitted Liens, the Record Owner 
shall promptly pay and discharge all claims for labor performed and material and services 
furnished in connection with construction of the Project, and take all other steps necessary to 
prevent the assertion of claims or liens either against the Property or the Project, other than (i) 
the claims and lien provided herein, (ii) liens, if any, for taxes imposed by any governmental 
authority not yet due or delinquent, and (iii) such other title and survey exceptions as the 

* Drafting Note:  The bracketed language can be removed for refinancings of completed Projects, or to the extent an 
Outside Completion Date is not required by a capital provider. 

178



Governmental Unit (or its Assignee, as applicable) or any Assignee or any third party acting on 
their behalf has approved or may approve in writing in its sole discretion. 

(d) Periodic Reports/Certifications.  Upon request by the Governmental Unit or any 
Assignee or any third party acting on their behalf during the period construction of the Project 
begins on the Property until the Project has been accepted as completed pursuant to the terms of 
the Construction Contract, the Record Owner shall provide to the Governmental Unit or any 
Assignee or any third party acting on their behalf a written statement, certified as true, correct 
and complete, setting forth the status of the Project, including an updated schedule for 
completion of construction of the Project.  Such certification shall be in such form and with such 
detail as the Governmental Unit or any Assignee or any third party acting on their behalf shall 
specify and may be included in completion certificate(s) as set forth in the Program Guidelines. 

(e) Notice of Claims; Adverse Matters.  The Record Owner shall promptly notify the 
Governmental Unit or any Assignee or any third party acting on their behalf in writing of any 
potential Insolvency Event and all pending or threatened litigation or other matters that may 
materially and adversely affect the Property or Record Owner’s ability to meet its obligations 
under the Transaction Documents or otherwise with respect to the Financing Purposes.  
“Insolvency Event” shall mean the Record Owner has (i) consented to the appointment of a 
conservator or receiver or liquidator in any insolvency, bankruptcy, readjustment of debt, 
marshalling of assets and liabilities or similar proceeding  relating to the Record Owner or 
relating to all or substantially all of such Record Owner’s property, (ii) failed to pay its debts as 
they become due and such failure has not been cured within thirty (30) days of the event; (iii) 
admitted in writing its inability to pay its debts as they become due, (iv) filed a petition to take 
advantage of any applicable insolvency or reorganization statute, (v) made an assignment for the 
benefit of its creditors, (vi)  filed against it a petition for involuntary bankruptcy or some other 
involuntary insolvency proceeding which is not dismissed within thirty (30) days, or (vii) 
voluntarily suspended payment of its obligations. 

(f) Waiver and Release of Claims Against Governmental Unit, the Program 
Administrator, the Authority and Related Parties.  For and in consideration of the Governmental 
Unit’s execution and delivery of this Contract and the Authority and, if applicable, the 
Warehouse Fund providing capital to finance the Project, Record Owner (for itself and for any 
successor-in-interest to the Property and for anyone claiming by, through or under Record 
Owner, including without limitation, heirs, personal representatives, mortgagees and transferees), 
hereby waive the right to recover from the Governmental Unit, the Authority, the Warehouse 
Fund, any other Assignee, the Program Administrator and another third party acting on behalf of 
the Governmental Unit, the Authority, the Warehouse Fund and any other Assignee, any owner 
of the Bonds, any bond trustee, any placement agent and any and all members, officers, officials, 
agents, employees, attorneys and representatives of any of them, as well as their successors and 
assigns (collectively, the “Financing Parties”), and fully and irrevocably release the Financing 
Parties from, any and all claims, obligations, liabilities, causes of action, set-offs or damages 
(including attorneys’ fees and court costs), that Record Owner may now have or hereafter 
acquire against any of the Financing Parties and accruing from or related to (i) this Contract, (ii) 
the disbursement of Bond proceeds or interim financing provided by a Warehouse Fund, if 
applicable, (iii) the levy and collection of the Assessment, (iv) the imposition of the lien of the 
Assessment, (v) the performance of the Project, (vi) the Project, (vii) any damage to or 

179



diminution in value of the Property that may result from construction or installation of the 
Project, (viii) any injury or death that may result from the construction or installation of the 
Project, (ix) the selection of manufacturer(s), dealer(s), supplier(s), contractor(s) and/or 
installer(s), and their action or inaction with respect to the Project, (x) the merchantability and 
fitness for any particular purpose, use or application of the Project, (xi) the amount of energy 
savings, energy production, water conservation or other performance outcomes resulting from 
the Project or any assured performance guaranty, (xii) the workmanship of any third parties 
under any agreements including, without limitation, any Construction Contract, and (xiii) any 
other matter with respect to the PACE Program (collectively, the “Liabilities”).   

This release includes claims, obligations, liabilities, causes of action and damages of 
which the Record Owner is not presently aware or which the Record Owner does not suspect to 
exist which, if known by the Record Owner, would materially affect Record Owner’s release of 
the Financing Parties.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Record Owner’s releases under this 
Section shall not extend to Liabilities arising from any Financing Parties willful misconduct.  
The Record Owner acknowledges that the Financing Parties established the PACE Program 
solely for the purpose of facilitating financing of energy projects arranged by owners of 
commercial property located in the PACE Area.  The Financing Parties are not responsible for 
the selection, management and/or supervision of the Project, the Project’s performance, the 
Construction Contracts or any assumed performance guaranty.  Any issues related to 
performance of the Project should be discussed with chosen contractors, installers, manufacturers 
and/or distributors involved with the Project.  The waivers and releases by Record Owner 
contained in this Section shall survive the disbursement of any Bond proceeds, interim financing 
provided by a Warehouse Fund, if applicable, or any portion thereof, the transfer or sale of the 
Property by Record Owner and the termination of this Contract. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything to the contrary contained in this Contract, the 
waiver and release provided for in this Section shall not bar the Record Owner, its successors-in-
interest to the Property, from bringing an equitable action against the Governmental Unit for 
specific performance of its duties and obligations under this Contract, or to enjoin or prevent the 
violation of this Contract thereby, it being understood and agreed, however, that the Financing 
Parties shall not be liable for money damages or costs of such equitable proceeding except 
insofar and to the extent such Liabilities arise from their willful misconduct. 

(g) Energy Assessment. 

(i) To the extent the Project consists of an energy efficiency improvement, 
renewable energy improvement or water use improvement (each as defined in the Act, 
and except for a water use improvement that is undertaken for water quality), the Record 
Owner must obtain an assessment and analysis of the energy and/or water conservation 
impacts for the Project, as applicable (an “Energy Assessment”). The Energy Assessment 
must assess the existing water and/or energy use of relevant systems, or code baseline 
usage in the case of new construction and include a modeling of expected monetary 
savings to be achieved by the Project. To implement this provision, the Record Owner 
shall obtain an Energy Assessment from a qualified provider approved by the Program 
Administrator. The cost of the Energy Assessment, as well as the cost of any other third-

180



party review of the Energy Assessment, may be included in the Assessment Amount 
(defined in Schedule I). 

(ii) Upon completion of the Project, the Record Owner shall submit a post-
construction report to the Governmental Unit or the Program Administrator in a form 
provided by the Program Administrator.  This report shall contain: 

(1) A statement that Project has been completed in accordance 
with the Plans and the Transaction Documents, and that the systems are 
performing as expected; and 

(2) Identification and discussion of any substitutions, 
compromises, or variances between the final Plans and Transaction 
Documents with the as-built conditions of the Project. 

(h) Property Transfers.  The Record Owner covenants that it will provide the 
Governmental Unit, any Assignee, the Program Administrator and the capital provider notice of 
any sale or transfer of interest to fee title in the Property after the Effective Date concurrently 
with such transfer or sale, and no later than three (3) business days thereafter.   

Section 6. Lien; Foreclosure.   

(a) Lien.  The Assessment, in the amount of the Assessment Amount, the interest 
thereon, the Assessment Administrative Fees, any other amounts due and payable by the Record 
Owner under this Contract and the Act, and any interest and penalties allowable on any past-due 
amounts thereof and any indemnification and reimbursement obligations (collectively, the 
“Assessment Obligations”), shall constitute a lien against the Property until it is paid, which lien 
shall be coequal to and independent of the lien for general taxes. 

(b) Foreclosure.  The Record Owner acknowledges and agrees that if any portion of 
the Assessment Obligations is not paid when due, the Governmental Unit shall have all rights 
and remedies for such non-payment as it does with respect to delinquent property taxes and other 
delinquent special assessments as set forth in Article 9 of the Illinois Municipal Code, including 
the lien, sale, and foreclosure remedies described in that Article (“Enforcement Remedy”). Any 
Assignee shall have and possess the delegable powers and rights at law or in equity as the 
Governmental Unit would have with respect to an Enforcement Remedy with regard to (i) the 
precedence and priority of liens evidenced by this Contract, (ii) the accrual of interest, and (iii) 
the fees and expenses of collection, and shall have the right to enforce such liens through an 
Enforcement Remedy. The Record Owner acknowledges that the Assignee may obligate itself, 
through a covenant with the owners of the Bonds, to exercise an Enforcement Remedy with 
respect to enforcement of delinquent Assessment Obligations under circumstances specified in 
such covenant. 

Section 7. Financing or Refinancing of the Project.  The parties hereby agree that 
the net proceeds of the Bonds or interim financing provided by a Warehouse Fund, if applicable, 
allocable to the Assessment shall be used to finance or refinance the Project.   

181



Section 8. Term; Contract Runs with the Land; Division.   

(a) Except as otherwise set forth in this Contract, this Contract shall expire upon the 
final payment or prepayment of the Assessment. 

(b) This Contract establishes rights and obligations that are for the benefit of the 
Property and, therefore, such rights and obligations run with the land. 

(c) The obligation to pay the Assessment Obligations is an obligation of the Property 
and no agreement or action of the Record Owner shall be competent to impair in any way the 
rights of the Governmental Unit or the Program Administrator or the rights of any Assignee, 
including, but not limited to, the right to pursue judicial foreclosure of the Assessment lien or the 
right to enforce the collection of the Assessment Obligations or any installment thereof against 
the Property. 

(d) In the event the Property is divided while the Assessment remains unpaid, the 
unpaid installments of the Assessment Obligations shall be segregated and apportioned by the 
Governmental Unit or the Assignee or the Program Administrator or a third party acting on its 
behalf in accordance with a method selected by it in its good faith judgment.  

Section 9. Recordation of Documents.  The Governmental Unit or the Assignee or 
the Program Administrator or other third party acting on its behalf shall record or cause to be 
recorded in the office of the County Recorder this Contract and any other documents required by 
applicable law or any Assignee to be recorded. 

Section 10. Notice.  The Record Owner shall provide written notice to any subsequent 
purchaser of the Property, or a portion thereof, of the obligation to pay the Assessment. 

Section 11. Waivers, Acknowledgment and Contract. 

(a) Since the Assessment is voluntary and imposed, in accordance with the Act, 
pursuant to this Contract, the Record Owner hereby waives any requirements otherwise 
applicable to special assessments under any other provision of Illinois law, for notice or public 
hearing. 

(b) The Record Owner hereby waives its right to appeal or contest the Assessment or 
to file any lawsuit or other proceeding to challenge the Assessment or any aspect of the 
proceedings of the Governmental Unit undertaken in connection with the PACE Program.  The 
Record Owner hereby agrees that the Record Owner and its successors in interest to fee title in 
the Property shall be solely responsible for the installation, operation and maintenance of the 
Project.  The Record Owner hereby acknowledges that the Record Owner and its successors in 
interest to fee title in the Property will be responsible for payment of the Assessment regardless 
of whether the Project is properly installed, operated, maintained or performs as expected. 

(c) The Record Owner hereby agrees that the Governmental Unit is entering into this 
Contract solely for the purpose of assisting the Record Owner with the financing or refinancing 
of the Project, and that neither the Governmental Unit, any Assignee, the Program Administrator 
nor any third party acting on its behalf has any responsibility of any kind for, and shall have no 

182



liability arising out of, the installation, operation, financing, refinancing, maintenance or 
performance of the Project.  The Record Owner hereby certifies to the Governmental Unit that 
the Governmental Unit has complied with the provisions of Section 25 of the Act.  The Record 
Owner hereby waives the right to recover from and fully and irrevocably releases the Financing 
Parties from any and all losses, liabilities, claims, damages (including consequential damages), 
penalties, fines, forfeitures, costs and expenses (including all reasonable out-of-pocket litigation 
costs and reasonable attorney’s fees), relating to the subject matter of this Contract that the 
Record Owner may now have or hereafter acquire against the Financing Parties. 

Section 12. Indemnification.   

(a)   The Record Owner agrees to indemnify, defend, protect, and hold harmless the 
Financing Parties from and against all losses, Liabilities, claims, damages (including 
consequential damages), penalties, fines, forfeitures, costs and expenses (including all out-of-
pocket litigation costs and attorney’s fees) and any demands of any nature (collectively 
“Claims”) related directly or indirectly to, or arising out of or in connection with (i) the Record 
Owner’s participation in the PACE Program, (ii) the Assessment and the Assessment 
Obligations, (iii) the Project, or (iv) any other fact, circumstance or event related to the subject 
matter of this Contract, regardless of whether such Claims accrue before or after the Effective 
Date. 

(b) The provisions of this Section shall survive the termination of this Contract and 
payment in full of the Assessment Obligations. 

Section 13. Right to Inspect Property.  The Record Owner hereby grants the 
Governmental Unit or any Assignee, the Program Administrator or any third party acting on its 
behalf, or any owner of the Bonds or any third party acting on its behalf, and their respective 
agents and representatives the right to enter at any reasonable time, upon reasonable notice, to 
inspect the Project.  The Record Owner further hereby grants such persons the right to examine 
and copy any documentation relating to the Project. 

Section 14. PACE Project Application.  The Record Owner hereby represents and 
warrants to the Governmental Unit, each Assignee and the Program Administrator, that the 
information set forth in the PACE Project Application submitted to the Governmental Unit or the 
Program Administrator in connection with its request for PACE Funding is true and correct as of 
the Effective Date, and that the representations set forth in the PACE Project Application with 
respect to the Property and the Record Owner are true and correct as of the Effective Date as if 
made on the Effective Date. 

Section 15. Amendment.  This Contract may be modified or amended only by the 
written agreement of the Governmental Unit (or its Assignee, as applicable) and the Record 
Owner and the consent of the Assignee, if any. 

Section 16. Binding Effect; Assignment.  This Contract inures to the benefit of and is 
binding upon the Governmental Unit and the Record Owner and its respective successors and 
assigns.  The Governmental Unit has the right to assign any or all of its rights and obligations 
under this Contract without the consent of the Record Owner.  Each of the Authority (either 

183



directly or via an intermediate assignment), any bond trustee (either directly or via an 
intermediate assignment), the Warehouse Fund or any other Assignee shall be a “permitted 
assignee” (as defined in the Act) for any purpose hereunder. 

Section 17. Exhibits.  Exhibit A, Schedule I, Schedule II and Schedule III attached to 
this Contract are incorporated into this Contract by this reference as if set forth in their entirety in 
this Contract. 

Section 18. Severability.  If any provision of this Contract is held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding will not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision of this Contract. 

Section 19. Corrective Instruments.  The Governmental Unit (or its Assignee, as 
applicable) and the Record Owner, with the consent of the Assignee, if any, shall, from time to 
time, execute, acknowledge and deliver, or cause to be executed, acknowledged and delivered, 
such supplements hereto and such further instruments as may reasonably be required in order to 
carry out the expressed intention of this Contract; provided, however, the prior written consent of 
the Authority shall be obtained in connection with any such amendment or supplement if Bonds 
are issued through the Authority, pursuant to subsection (d) of Section 825-65 of the Authority 
Act; provided, further, however, if applicable, the prior written consent of the Warehouse Fund 
shall be obtained in connection with any such amendment or supplement if funding by the 
Warehouse Fund is outstanding.  

Section 20. Governing Law:  Venue.  This Contract shall be construed in accordance 
with and governed by the laws of the State of Illinois applicable to contracts made and performed 
in the State of Illinois.  This Contract shall be enforceable in the State of Illinois, and any action 
arising hereunder shall (unless waived by the Governmental Unit in writing) be filed and 
maintained in the Circuit Court of [INSERT GOVERNMENTAL UNIT’S PREFERRED 
COUNTY] County; provided, however, that if Bonds are issued through the Authority, such 
action shall be filed and maintained in the Circuit Court of Cook County; provided, however, 
that actions to foreclose delinquent installments of the Assessment shall be filed and maintained 
in the Circuit Court of the County identified in Exhibit A. 

Section 21. Counterparts.  This Contract may be executed in several counterparts, 
each of which is an original and all of which constitutes one and the same instrument. 

Section 22. Electronic Signatures.   

(a) The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that this Contract may be executed by 
one or more electronic means (“Electronic Signatures”).  Each party hereto agrees that Electronic 
Signatures provided by such party shall constitute effective execution and delivery of this 
Contract by such party to all other parties to or relying on this Contract.  Each party hereto 
agrees that Electronic Signatures shall constitute complete and satisfactory evidence of the intent 
of such party to be bound by those signatures and by the terms and conditions of this Contract as 
signed.  Each party hereto agrees that Electronic Signatures shall be deemed to be original 
signatures for all purposes. 

184



(b) Each party hereto agrees to accept Electronic Signatures provided by any and all 
other parties to this Contract as (i) full and sufficient intent by such parties to be bound 
hereunder, (ii) effective execution and delivery of this Contract, and (iii) constituting this 
Contract an original for all purposes, without the necessity for any manually signed copies to be 
provided, maintained or to exist for back up or for any other purpose. 

(c) If Electronic Signatures are used to execute this Contract, each party hereto 
hereby accepts the terms of, and intends and does sign, this Contract by its Electronic Signature 
hereto. 

Section 23. Transaction Documents.   

(a) The Record Owner acknowledges and agrees that the entire agreement between 
Record Owner and the Governmental Unit includes the Transaction Documents. 

(b) By executing this Contract, the Record Owner acknowledges and agrees that: 

(i) The Record Owner has had sufficient time to review and has reviewed each 
of the Transaction Documents and has had the opportunity to ask any questions of the 
Governmental Unit, the Program Administrator, or the Assignee that Record Owner may 
have regarding such Transaction Documents; 

(ii) The Record Owner acknowledges receipt of and has reviewed, understands 
and agrees to each and every additional requirement and term contained in the Program 
Guidelines; and 

(iii) The Record Owner has reviewed, understands, agrees to and affirms each 
and every representation and warranty contained in the Record Owner’s PACE 
Application and the Program Guidelines.  

Section 24. Execution and Return of Contract.  The Record Owner must execute and 
return this Contract to the Governmental Unit or the Program Administrator at the address set 
forth in the “Notice Information” section of Exhibit A so that it is received by the Governmental 
Unit or the Program Administrator not later than the expiration date set forth on Exhibit A.  If the 
Record Owner fails to return this Contract so executed to the Governmental Unit or the Program 
Administrator by the expiration date, the Governmental Unit reserves the right to require the 
Record Owner to enter into a new Contract.  The signature of each person signing as or on behalf 
of the Record Owner must be notarized by a duly licensed notary unless executed by Electronic 
Signatures. 

[Signature Pages Follow] 

185



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Governmental Unit and the Record Owner have caused 
this Contract to be executed in their respective names by their duly authorized representatives, all 
as of the Effective Date. 

Record Owner: 

[INSERT FORMAL NAME OF RECORD OWNER]  

By: 

      
 
Name:_________________________ 
 
Title:__________________________ 
 
 
STATE OF   ) 
   ) 
COUNTY OF   ) 
 
  I, ________________________, a notary public in and for said County, in the State 
aforesaid, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ___________________________________, the 
__________ of    , a    , personally known to me to be the 
same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument as such ______________, 
appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged that ____ signed and delivered the said 
instrument, pursuant to authority given by said    , as _____ own free and 
voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act of the municipal corporation for the uses and 
purposes therein set forth. 
 
  GIVEN under my hand and notarial seal as of ______________________, ______. 
 
 
          
        Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires:   (SEAL) 
 

 

186



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Governmental Unit and the Record Owner have caused 
this Contract to be executed in their respective names by their duly authorized representatives, all 
as of the Effective Date. 

Governmental Unit:  Authorized 
Signatory 

      
Name (Please Print) 

     
Signature  Date of Execution 
 

 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
   ) 
COUNTY OF COOK ) 
 

  I, ________________________, a notary public in and for said County, in the State 
aforesaid, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ___________________________________, the 
__________ of the Governmental Unit, a [village/city/county/town] duly organized and validly 
existing under the Constitution and the laws of the State of Illinois, personally known to me to be 
the same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument as such ______________, 
appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged that ____ signed and delivered the said 
instrument, pursuant to authority given by said municipal corporation, as _____ own free and 
voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act of the municipal corporation for the uses and 
purposes therein set forth. 

 

  GIVEN under my hand and notarial seal as of ______________________, ______. 
 
 
          
        Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires:   (SEAL) 

187



EXHIBIT A 
 

RECORD OWNER, DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT, 
TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS, OUTSIDE COMPLETION DATE, IDENTIFICATION 

OF CIRCUIT COURT, NOTICE INFORMATION AND EXPIRATION DATE 

Record Owner:  [INSERT FORMAL NAME OF RECORD OWNER]  

Description of Property:  

[INSERT COMMON PROPERTY STREET ADDRESS]  

PINS: [TO BE COMPLETED]  

County: [INSERT COUNTY IN WHICH PROPERTY IS LOCATED]   

Description of Project: 

The Project consists of the following (check all that apply): 

___ Energy Efficiency Improvement   ______Alternative Energy Improvement 

____Water Use Improvement    _______Renewable Energy Improvement 

____ Resiliency Improvement 

Transaction Documents: 
 
[To be Completed] 

Outside Completion Date:  [To be inserted] 

Identification of Circuit Court for Foreclosure Actions:  

Expiration Date: [___] 

Notice Information: 

If to PACE Program: 

_______________ 
_______________ 
_______________ 

188



 
 
With a copy to 

_______________ 
_______________ 
_______________ 
 

 
If to Record Owner: 

_______________ 
_______________ 
_______________ 
 

With a copy to 

_______________ 
_______________ 
_______________ 
 

  

189



Legal Description: 

[INSERT FORMAL PROPERTY LEGAL DESCRIPTION] 

 

190



SCHEDULE I 
 

TERMS OF ASSESSMENT AND SCHEDULE OF ANNUAL ASSESSMENT AMOUNTS, 
INCLUDING PRINCIPAL, INTEREST AND ESTIMATED ASSESSMENT 

ADMINISTRATIVE FEES 

Terms of the Assessment 

Closing Date:  [______] 

Redemption Dates: [June 1 and December 1] 

Interest Rate:  [___] 

Term: [___]  

Prepayment:  The Assessment may be prepaid, in whole or in part, as described in Section 3(f) 
of this Contract and as set forth below: 

(i) In the event the Project is completed and the full amount of the Assessment 
was not utilized to complete the Project such that there are excess proceeds on deposit 
with respect to the Project remaining after such completion of the Project, then, such 
excess funds shall be applied as a prepayment of the Assessment and, if applicable, the 
Bonds shall be redeemed in accordance with the applicable Bond documents. Such 
prepayment shall not reduce the amount of the Annual Assessment Installments as set 
forth in Schedule I attached hereto except for the last Annual Assessment Installments to 
the extent necessary to reflect the application of such prepayment to such last 
installments. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Contract or any 
of the exhibits or schedules to this Contract, the payment of such excess funds as 
provided in the first sentence of this clause (i) shall not be subject to any of the 
requirements of Section 3(f) of this Contract, and it shall not be required that any such 
payment be made on any particular date, any such payment be subject to a minimum 
amount or the Minimum Prepayment Amount, or that there be any Redemption Premium 
paid in connection therewith, as a result thereof or as a condition thereto.  

(ii) In the event the Record Owner makes a Prepayment of the Assessment and 
the Property constitutes more than one parcel (i.e., more than one PINs), the Program 
Administrator in consultation with the Governmental Unit shall have the right to apply 
the Assessment Prepayment Amount to one or more of such parcels as determined by the 
Program Administrator and the Governmental Unit in their sole and absolute discretion 
such that the Assessment Amount with respect to the parcel or parcels to which the 
Program Administrator in consultation with the Governmental Unit applies the 
Assessment Prepayment Amount shall be reduced by the portion of the Assessment 
Prepayment Amount applied to such parcel or parcels.  

Minimum Prepayment Amount: $[______] 

RedemptionTerms:  

191



Prepayment Date [Redemption] Premium 
 

  
  

 

The Assessment 

Annual Assessment Amount:  The “Annual Assessment Amount” is the Assessment 
Installment and Assessment Administrative Fees collectible under this Contract in a given 
calendar year, and as estimated pursuant to the Schedule of Annual Assessment Amounts below. 

Assessment Administrative Fees:  The “Assessment Administrative Fees” means, as set forth 
in Section 3(e) of this Contract, all amounts necessary in order to pay for the costs of collecting 
the Assessment (including any and all costs of enforcement, including foreclosure or other 
remedies for default on the Assessment), the administration of the Assessment, the 
administration of the Bonds or the Warehouse Fund, other administrative costs and any amounts 
the Record Owner may owe for indemnification as set forth in Section 12 hereto.  

Assessment Amount:  The  initial amount of the Assessment (the “Assessment Amount”) that is 
the total of all costs, fees, and expenses eligible for financing, as set forth in the chart below and 
described as follows: the cost of the Project (“Project Cost”), including the cost of materials and 
labor necessary for installation, permit fees, inspection fees, and other eligible costs, fees and 
expenses related to the acquisition, construction, installation, or modification of the Project; 
program administrative fees (“Program Fees), including the costs and fees of the Program or 
other fees that may be charged to the Record Owner in connection with the application for PACE 
Funding, the execution of this Contract, the costs of issuance of Bonds by the Governmental Unit 
or the Authority and the provision of interim financing by the Warehouse Fund; other third-party 
fees, costs, and expenses (“Other Fees”) that may be incurred by or charged to the Record Owner 
in connection with the execution of this Contract, the issuance of Bonds and the provision of 
interim financing, including property specific legal reviews and recording fees; prepaid interest 
that is capitalized (“Capitalized Interest”); a debt service reserve, if required (“Debt Service 
Reserve”); and any fees charged by any capital provider purchasing the Bonds upon issuance and 
Warehouse Fund (“Capital Provider Fees).   

Project Cost  $[______] 
Program Fees $[______] 
Other Fees $[______] 
Capitalized Interest $[______] 
Debt Service Reserve (if required) $[______] 
Capital Provider Fees $[______] 
Assessment Amount $[______] 

 
[The Assessment shall be allocated among the PINs in the [years and] amounts as set forth 

192



below][in an amendment to this Schedule I which shall be executed when the Bonds are issued 
or interim financing is provided].]2 Record Owner consents and agrees to the allocation of the 
Assessment as set forth below and further agrees that Record Owner shall not have the right to 
subdivide any parcels of the Property, whether identified by PIN herein or otherwise, without 
first either (a) prepaying the Assessment in full in accordance with the terms of this Contract, or 
(b) obtaining the prior written consent of the owners of the Bonds or the Warehouse Fund, as the 
case may be, which consent may be withheld in their sole and absolute discretion. 

Assessment Installment:  Each “Assessment Installment” is the annual amount of the 
Assessment Amount  and the interest thereon due under this Contract as further set forth in the 
Schedule of Annual Assessment Amounts below. 

Assessment Obligations: The “Assessment Obligations” include the Assessment  Amount, any 
Assessment Administrative Fees, all Assessment Installments, any interest and penalties 
allowable on due but unpaid Annual Assessment Amounts, and any other amounts due and 
payable by the Record Owner under this Contract.   

Schedule of Annual Assessment Amounts:  The anticipated schedule of Annual Assessment 
Amounts due under this Contract is set forth below. 

  

2 Drafting Note:  This bracketed language, or a variation thereof, should be used for Properties comprised of more 
than one tax parcel or PIN, and should be deleted for Properties comprised of only one tax parcel. 

193



[Pin: [_____] 
Percentage of Project Installed: [___]% 

Assessment Amount: $[_____]]3 

Tax  Year 
(commencing 

January 1) Interest Principal 

Assessment 
Installment 

(Sum of 
Principal 

and Interest) 

Estimated 
Assessment 

Administrative 
Fees* 

Total 
Estimated 

Annual 
Assessment 

Amount 
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      

*Subject to change as set forth in Section 3(e) of this Contract.   

  

3 Drafting Note:  This table should be repeated for multi-PIN or tax parcel properties.  It may be removed for single-
Pin or tax parcel properties. 

194



SCHEDULE II 

DISCLOSURES AND EXCEPTIONS; PERMITTED LIENS 

[TO BE COMPLETED BY RECORD OWNER, IF ANY]  

195



SCHEDULE III 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL SCHEDULE 

[TO BE COMPLETED BY RECORD OWNER, IF ANY] 

 

196



APPENDIX B 
 

Form of Assignment Agreement 

197



 

 

 

 

 
 

(THE ABOVE SPACE FOR RECORDER'S USE 
ONLY) 

ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT 

 

This ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT (this “IFA Assignment”) is made and entered into 
effective as of [INSERT DATE], 20[   ] (the “Effective Date”), by and between [INSERT 
NAME OF GOVERNMENTAL UNIT], a [village/city/county/town] duly organized and validly 
existing under the Constitution and the laws of the State of Illinois (the “Governmental Unit”) 
and the ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY, a body politic and corporate created and existing 
under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Illinois (along with its successors and assigns, the 
“Authority,” and, together with the Governmental Unit, each a “Party” and collectively the 
“Parties”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, [Insert Name of Property Owner], a [Insert Corporate Designation] (the 
“Property Owner”) is the owner of certain real property located at [Insert Street Address of 
Property] (“Property”). 

WHEREAS, the Property Owner has applied to the Governmental Unit for assistance in 
financing or refinancing a certain “energy project” (as defined in the Property Assessed Clean 
Energy Act, 50 ILCS 50/1 et seq., as amended (the “PACE Act”)) at the Property (the “Project”).  

WHEREAS, [INSERT NAME OF PROGRAM ADMINISTRATOR], a [INSERT COR-
PORATE DESIIGNATION], is authorized to act as a program administrator (together with any 
successors thereto, the “Program Administrator”) to administer its property assessed clean ener-
gy program (the “PACE Program”) within its jurisdictional boundaries (the “PACE Area”). 

WHEREAS, to finance or refinance the Project, the Governmental Unit and the Property 
Owner have entered into that certain Assessment Contract dated as of [INSERT DATE], 20[ ] 

 

198



(“PACE Contract”) pursuant to which, inter alia, (i) the Governmental Unit, through the Pro-
gram Administrator, has agreed to arrange financing for the Project through the issuance of 
bonds, (ii) the Property Owner has agreed to repay such financing by consenting to the imposi-
tion of an annual assessment on the Property payable in installments (“Assessment Install-
ments”), and has agreed to pay certain administrative expenses (“Assessment Administrative 
Fees”), (iii) the Property Owner has consented to the assignment of the PACE Contract to secure 
any bonds issued to finance the Project, and (iv) the Governmental Unit has agreed to impose 
such assessment and to direct that the Assessment Installments be paid directly to the Govern-
mental Unit or its designee.  

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit and the Property Owner have requested that the Au-
thority provide financing for the Project, and the Authority has agreed to provide such financing 
by issuing revenue bonds secured by the PACE Contract (the “Bonds”) pursuant to a Master In-
denture (the “Indenture”) dated as of [___________] among the Authority, [INSERT NAME 
OF BANK], as trustee (the “Trustee”) and [INSERT NAME OF CAPITAL PROVIDER] (the 
“Capital Provider”) and lend the proceeds of such Bonds to the Property Owner in one or more 
advances to pay, or to reimburse the Property Owner for payment of, the costs of the Project, 
subject to the terms and conditions contained in the PACE Contract and the Indenture, and as 
authorized pursuant to [Resolution    ] (the “PACE Bond Resolution”) of the Au-
thority authorizing the sale of Bonds to the Capital Provider or its Designated Transferee as de-
fined in the Indenture.  

WHEREAS, interim financing through a warehouse fund to be provided by the Capital 
Provider or the Authority (the “Interim Financing”) may be utilized prior to the issuance of the 
Bonds, and the Authority has approved the use of interim financing pursuant to Resolution No. 
2019-0910-CF08. 

WHEREAS, as one condition, among others, to issuing the Bonds and, if applicable, uti-
lizing Interim Financing, and lending the proceeds thereof, the Authority requires the Govern-
mental Unit to assign, and the Governmental Unit wishes to assign, all of its rights, title and in-
terest (reserving to itself only the “Reserved Rights” specified herein) in the PACE Contract, in-
cluding the right to receive Assessment Installments and Assessment Administrative Fees from 
the Property Owner, to the Authority, subject to and upon the terms and conditions set forth here-
in, and the Property Owner has consented to such pledge and assignment. 

WHEREAS, one condition among others to any Interim Financing provided by the Capi-
tal Provider, if applicable, is for the Authority to assign to the Capital Provider its rights, title and 
interest, other than Reserved Rights, in the PACE Contract until such time as the Bonds are is-
sued. 

199



WHEREAS, pursuant to the Indenture, as security for the Bonds, the Authority will 
pledge and assign to the Trustee all of its right, title and interest in and to the PACE Contract 
(other than certain “Authority Reserved Rights” as defined therein), including the right to receive 
and apply the Assessment Installments, and certain other funds, property and collateral, collec-
tively defined as the “Security” in the Indenture, and the Property Owner has consented to such 
pledge and assignment. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the mutual promises hereinafter 
set forth, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
hereby acknowledged by the parties, the Governmental Unit and the Authority agree as follows: 

Section 1. Assignment and Assumption of PACE Contract.  The Governmental 
Unit hereby assigns to the Authority all of the Governmental Unit’s right, title and interest in and 
to the PACE Contract, other than its rights to indemnification and payment of Governmental 
Unit’s costs and expenses, and any rights and obligations of the Governmental Unit to pursue an 
“Enforcement Remedy” (as defined in Section 6(b) of the PACE Contract) which may be non-
delegable as a matter of law, as set forth in the PACE Contract (the “Reserved Rights”).  The 
Authority hereby assumes, as of the date hereof, and agrees to perform or cause to be performed 
all of the Governmental Unit’s obligations under the PACE Contract from and after the date 
hereof, subject to its right to assign such obligations pursuant to an assignment of the PACE 
Contract.  

Section 2. Governmental Unit’s Representations and Warranties; Disclaimer.   

(a) Representations and Warranties.  The Governmental Unit hereby repre-
sents and warrants that, as of the date of this IFA Assignment:   

(i) It is a Governmental Unit duly organized and validly existing un-
der the Constitution and the laws of the State of Illinois and has all 
necessary power and authority to enter into this IFA Assignment 
and to assign its rights under the PACE Contract, other than Re-
served Rights,  to the Authority pursuant hereto; 

(ii) The execution and delivery of this IFA Assignment and the Gov-
ernmental Unit’s undertakings herein, including assignment of the 
Governmental Unit’s rights under the PACE Contract, other than 
Reserved Rights, to the Authority pursuant hereto, have been duly 
authorized by all necessary action on the part of the Governmental 

200



Unit and will not contravene or violate the Governmental Unit’s 
municipal or county authority; 

(iii) The Governmental Unit has not previously assigned or transferred
any of its rights under the PACE Contract.

(iv) This IFA Assignment and the PACE Contract constitute the legal,
valid and binding obligations of the Governmental Unit enforcea-
ble in accordance with their respective terms and, upon infor-
mation and belief, the PACE Contract constitutes the legal, valid
and binding obligation of the Property Owner, enforceable in ac-
cordance with its terms; except in either case as the enforcement
thereof may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization,
arrangement, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium and other laws
relating to or affecting creditors’ rights, and to the application of
equitable principles;

(v) The execution, delivery and performance by the Governmental
Unit of this IFA Assignment and the transactions contemplated
hereby: (A) do not contravene any provisions of law applicable to
the Governmental Unit; and (B) do not conflict and are not incon-
sistent with, and will not result (with or without the giving of no-
tice or passage of time or both) in the breach of or constitute a de-
fault or require any consent under any applicable court or adminis-
trative order or any credit agreement, indenture, mortgage, pur-
chase agreement, deed of trust, security agreement, lease, guaran-
tee or other instrument to which the Governmental Unit or its
property may be subject, or the PACE Act; and

(vi) There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law
or in equity, before or by any court, governmental agency, public
board or body, pending or, to its knowledge threatened, against the
Governmental Unit seeking to restrain or enjoin or in any way con-
testing the validity or enforceability of this IFA Assignment or the
PACE Contract.

(b) Disclaimer.  Except as set forth in this Section 2, the Governmental Unit
(i) has not heretofore made, nor does it make by this IFA Assignment, any representa-
tions or warranties with respect to the Property, including any warranty of title or any en-
vironmental matters, and (ii) makes no representation or warranty in connection with, and

201



assumes no responsibility with respect to, the solvency, financial condition or statements 
of the Property Owner, or with respect to the performance or observance by the Property 
Owner of its obligations under the PACE Contract. 

Section 3. Authority’s Representations.  The Authority represents that, as of the 
date of this IFA Assignment, it is a body politic and corporate created and existing under and by 
virtue of the laws of the State of Illinois and has full power and authority to enter into and to per-
form its obligations under this IFA Assignment; and when executed and delivered by the respec-
tive parties thereto, this IFA Assignment will constitute the legal, valid and binding obligations 
of the Authority enforceable in accordance with their respective terms, except as the enforcement 
thereof may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, arrangement, fraudulent con-
veyance, moratorium and other laws relating to or affecting creditors’ rights, to the application of 
equitable principles, to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases and to the limita-
tion on legal remedies against the Authority. 

Section 4. Consideration.  The Governmental Unit acknowledges and agrees that the 
assumption by the Authority of the Governmental Unit’s obligations under the PACE Contract 
and the issuance of the Bonds and the loan to the Property Owner are of substantial benefit to the 
Governmental Unit as a source of liquidity and financing or refinancing of the Project, and con-
stitute good, valuable, fair and adequate consideration for the Governmental Unit’s assignment 
as contemplated herein. 

Section 5. Delivery of Documents. 

(a) As a condition to the Governmental Unit’s performance of its obligations 
under this IFA Assignment, the Authority shall have delivered to the Governmental Unit 
an original of this IFA Assignment, in recordable form, duly executed by the Authority. 

(b) As a condition to the Authority’s performance of its obligations with re-
spect to this IFA Assignment, the Governmental Unit shall have delivered to the Authori-
ty all of the following, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Authority: 
(i) a certified true and correct copy of the PACE Contract, in recordable form, bearing the 
original signature(s) of the Property Owner and the Governmental Unit and (ii) an origi-
nal of this IFA Assignment, in recordable form, duly executed by the Governmental Unit. 

(c) As a condition to each Party’s performance of its obligations under this 
IFA Assignment, all of the Authority’s, the Governmental Unit’s and the Property Own-
er’s respective representations and warranties contained in the PACE Contract and this 
IFA Assignment, as applicable, shall be true and correct on the date of the execution of 
this IFA Assignment. 

202



Section 6. Recording of Documents.  Upon the execution of this IFA Assignment 
by both Parties hereto, the Governmental Unit shall direct the Program Administrator to record 
this IFA Assignment in the office of the Recorder for the County in which the Property is situat-
ed. 

Section 7. Acknowledgement and Consent to Further Assignment.  By execution 
of this IFA Assignment, the Governmental Unit hereby acknowledges and consents to any as-
signment of the PACE Contract by the Authority, subject to the Reserved Rights and any reas-
signment of the PACE Contract.   

Section 8.  Successors and Assigns.  This IFA Assignment shall be binding on, and 
inure to the benefit of, the parties hereto, their respective successors in interest, and their respec-
tive assigns.   

Section 9. Governing Law; Submission to Jurisdiction.  This IFA Assignment 
shall be governed exclusively by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the State 
of Illinois applicable to contracts to be wholly performed therein.  This IFA Assignment shall be 
enforceable in the State of Illinois, and any action arising hereunder shall (unless waived by the 
Authority in writing) be filed and maintained in the Circuit Court of Illinois, County of Cook. 

Section 10. No Effect on PACE Contract.  Nothing in this IFA Assignment, express 
or implied, is intended to or shall be construed to modify, expand, or limit in any way the terms 
of the PACE Contract. To the extent that any provision of this IFA Assignment conflicts or is 
inconsistent with the terms of the PACE Contract, the PACE Contract will govern. All terms not 
defined herein shall be given the meaning ascribed to such terms in the Indenture. 

Section 11. Amendment.  This IFA Assignment may not be modified or amended, 
except in writing executed by both Parties. 

Section 12. Severability.  If any provision of this IFA Assignment is declared void or 
unenforceable by any court or government authority, the remaining provisions of this IFA As-
signment shall be effective and shall control.  

Section 13. Entire Agreement.  This IFA Assignment constitutes the entire agree-
ment between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. This IFA Assignment super-
sedes and replaces any prior or contemporaneous oral or written understandings, agreements, or 
representations between the parties. 

Section 14. Recitals.  The provisions set forth in the Recitals are made a part of this 
Assignment and are incorporated by reference into the terms hereof. 

203



Section 15. Counterparts.  This IFA Assignment may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original, but all of which taken together will constitute 
one single agreement between the parties. Signatures sent digitally will be deemed to be original sig-
natures for all purposes. 

 

[Signature Page Follows.] 

 

204



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this IFA Assignment to be ex-
ecuted as of the day and year first above written. 

Governmental Unit: 

            , [Title] 
 , Signature 

Date:      
 Month/Day/Year   

 
 
STATE OF   ) 
   ) 
COUNTY OF   ) 
 
  I, ________________________, a notary public in and for said County, in the State 
aforesaid, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ___________________________________, the 
__________ of    , a    , personally known to me to be the 
same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument as such ______________, 
appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged that ____ signed and delivered the said 
instrument, pursuant to authority given by said    , as _____ own free and 
voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act of the municipal corporation for the uses and 
purposes therein set forth. 
 
  GIVEN under my hand and notarial seal as of ______________________, ______. 
 
 
          
        Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires:   (SEAL) 
 
      

  

205



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this IFA Assignment to be ex-
ecuted as of the day and year first above written. 

Authority: 

            , Executive Director 
 , Signature 

Date:      
 Month/Day/Year   

 
 
STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
   ) 
COUNTY OF COOK ) 
 
  I, ________________________, a notary public in and for said County, in the State 
aforesaid, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ___________________________________, the 
__________ of    , a    , personally known to me to be the 
same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument as such ______________, 
appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged that ____ signed and delivered the said 
instrument, pursuant to authority given by said    , as _____ own free and 
voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act of the municipal corporation for the uses and 
purposes therein set forth. 
 
  GIVEN under my hand and notarial seal as of ______________________, ______. 
 
 
          
        Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires:   (SEAL) 
 

206



207



§ 31.06 SMALL PURCHASE PROCUREMENT. 

   The following procedures shall be adhered to for all purchases or contracts less than 
$30,000. 

   (A)   All purchases or contractsfor goods and services, including professional services, in 
an amount of $10,000$20,000 or more, but less than $30,000, shall require the department 
head to submit put forth reasonable effort to obtain  three written quotations to the 
appropriate standing committee, who shall then forward its recommendation for purchase 
authorization to the County Board for action. The auditor may issue a purchase order upon 
request of the department head, provided that sufficient monies have been appropriated by 
the Board. Internal Control Officers will submit put forth reasonable effort to obtain three 
informal written quotations and provide them directly to the Auditor to have a purchase 
order issued, provided that sufficient monies have been appropriated by the County Board. 

   (B)   All purchases or contracts for goods and services, including professional services, in 
an amount of $5,000 $10,000 or more, but less than $10,000 $20,000, shall require the 
department head to submit three put forth reasonable effort to obtain two informal, 
written quotations documented by the department headto the Board Chairperson, or in his 
or her absence the County Administrator for his or her approval. The Auditor may issue a 
purchase order upon request of the department headBoard Chairperson, or in his or her 
absence the County Administrator, provided that sufficient monies have been appropriated 
by the County Board. Internal Control Officers will submit shall put forth reasonable effort 
to obtain twothree informal written quotations  and submit documentation directly to the 
Auditor to have a purchase order issued. 

   (C)   All purchases for goods and services, including professional services, in an amount in 
excess of $3,500 but less than $5,000 shall require the department head to submit two 
informal, written quotations to the Board Chairperson, or in his or her absence, the County 
Administrator for his or her approval. The Auditor may issue a purchase order upon the 
request of the Board Chairperson, or in his or her absence, the County Administrator 
provided that sufficient monies have been appropriated. Internal Control Officers will 
submit two informal written quotations directly to the Auditor to have a purchase order 
issued. 

   (DC)   All purchases or contracts for goods and services, including professional services, 
in the amount of $3,500 $10,000 or less shall be made in a way that is in the best interest of 
the county on the authorization of the department head or designee provided that 
sufficient monies have been appropriated and a purchase order has been issued by the 
Auditor, or in the case of the Highway Department, by the County Engineer or designee. 
Two informal, written quotations shall be submitted for amounts over $1,000. Department 
heads shall provide to the Auditor a list of all employees designated to authorize purchases 
within their respective departments. 

 

   (ED)   Exceptions to comparative quotations are granted when at least one of the 
following conditions exist: 

      (1)   There is only one source for the required supply, service, or construction item; 

208



      (2)   The required item is a dealer item, which may be purchased from multiple dealers, 
but at a fixed cost from dealer to dealer; 

      (3)   It is a purchase of used equipment; or 

      (4)   It is an emergency purchase. 

(Prior Code, 1 TCC 2-6) 

209



§ 31.06 SMALL PURCHASE PROCUREMENT. 

   The following procedures shall be adhered to for all purchases or contracts less than 
$30,000. 

   (A)   All purchases or contracts in an amount of $20,000 or more, but less than $30,000, 
shall require the department head to put forth reasonable effort to obtain three written 
quotations. The auditor may issue a purchase order upon request of the department head, 
provided that sufficient monies have been appropriated by the Board. Internal Control 
Officers will put forth reasonable effort to obtain three informal written quotations and 
provide them directly to the Auditor to have a purchase order issued, provided that 
sufficient monies have been appropriated by the County Board. 

   (B)   All purchases or contracts in an amount of $10,000 or more, but less than $20,000, 
shall require the department head to put forth reasonable effort to obtain two informal 
quotations documented by the department head. The Auditor may issue a purchase order 
upon request of the department head, provided that sufficient monies have been 
appropriated by the County Board. Internal Control Officers shall put forth reasonable 
effort to obtain two informal quotations and submit documentation directly to the Auditor 
to have a purchase order issued. 

   (C)   All purchases or contracts in the amount of $10,000 or less shall be made in a way 
that is in the best interest of the county on the authorization of the department head or 
designee provided that sufficient monies have been appropriated and a purchase order has 
been issued by the Auditor, or in the case of the Highway Department, by the County 
Engineer or designee. 

   (D)   Exceptions to comparative quotations are granted when at least one of the following 
conditions exist: 

      (1)   There is only one source for the required supply, service, or construction item; 

      (2)   The required item is a dealer item, which may be purchased from multiple dealers, 
but at a fixed cost from dealer to dealer; 

      (3)   It is a purchase of used equipment; or 

      (4)   It is an emergency purchase. 

(Prior Code, 1 TCC 2-6) 

210



211



212



213



214



 Tazewell County Board 
Calendar of Meetings  

 August 2023 
 

     
   

Zoning Board of Appeals  Tuesday, August 1  Crawford, M. Goddard, Hall, Joesting ,   
 Duane Lessen, Chair   5:30pm – JCCR  Krehbiel, Nelms, Sinn, Smith 
 
 Land Use    Tuesday, August 8  Crawford, M. Goddard, Hall, Krehbiel,     
 Kim Joesting, Chair   5:00pm – Jury Room   Nelms, Sinn, Smith  
 

Health Services   Thursday, August 10  S. Goddard, Hagaman, Longfellow,    
 Jay Hall, Chair    5:30pm – TCHD  Paget, Sinn, Smith  
  
 Rules     Monday, August 14  Crawford, Harris, Proehl, Smith  
 Bill Atkins, Chair   4:00 p.m. – Jury Room       

 
 Insurance Review   No meeting scheduled   S. Goddard, Mingus, Rich-Stimson     

 David Zimmerman, Chair   
 
  Heritage Lake   Tuesday, August 15  G. Menold 
  Mike Deluhery, Chair   8:00 a.m. – 2nd Floor  
       (McKenzie) 
 
  Transportation   Tuesday, August 22  Crawford, Deppert, Hall, Harris,     
 Greg Menold, Chair   1:30pm - Tremont   Paget, Proehl, Nelms     
 
 Property    Tuesday, August 22  Atkins, M. Goddard, Graff,     
 Greg Longfellow, Chair  3:30pm – JCCR  Hagaman, Joesting, Mingus, Rich-Stimson,   
            Schneider 
 
 Finance    Tuesday, August 22  Atkins, Deppert, S. Goddard,    
 Nick Graff, Chair   following Property – JCCR Harris, Krehbiel, Longfellow, Menold,  
            Mingus, Proehl, Rich-Stimson, Schneider   
 
 Human Resources   Tuesday, August 22  Atkins, Deppert, S. Goddard,    
 Tammy Rich-Stimson, Chair  following Finance – JCCR Graff, Harris, Krehbiel, Longfellow, Menold,  
          Mingus, Proehl, Schneider   
  

Risk Management  Wednesday, August 23 Atkins, Graff, Hall, Harris, Joesting,    
 4:00 pm – Jury Room  David Zimmerman, Chair  
       Longfellow, Menold, Mingus, Proehl,  

          Rich-Stimson, Schneider 
 

Executive    Wednesday, August 23  Atkins, Graff, Hall, Harris, Joesting, 
 David Zimmerman, Chair  following Risk Management Longfellow, Menold, Mingus, Proehl, 
          Rich-Stimson, Schneider 
 

Board of Health   Monday, August 28   Hall   
      6:30pm - TCHD   
 
 County Board    Wednesday, August 30 All County Board Members   
      6:00 pm – JCCR   

215




